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Director

August 29, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
retroactively exercise a renewal option to an existing sole source agreement with JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, (Vendor #161611-6001) 501 South Street, 2nd
Floor, Bow, NH 03304 to continue providing a broad range of support services across a number of public
health programs by increasing the price limitation by $2,266,254 from $1,920,705 to $4,186,959 and by
extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2021 effective retroactive to June
30, 2019 upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 81.61% Federal Funds, 12.54% General
Funds, and 5.85% Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21, 2017
(Item #51), as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
February 21, 2018 (Item #8) and as amended (Amendment #2) and approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on April 17, 2019 (Item #19)

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the. availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limibtion and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the Department experienced delays in sending the
amendment to the Contractor for execution due to the extensive updates in the scope of services that
were needed to ensure comprehensive delivery of services.

This request is sole source because Amendment #1 increased the total price limitation by more
than ten percent (10%) of the original contract value

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in the Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the Department
may extend contract services for up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The
Department is in agreement with renewing contracted services for two (2) years at this time.

In State Fiscal Year 2019 the vendor received funding to conduct a data-driven vulnerability
assessment to identify communities most vulnerable to an infectious disease outbreak due to injection
drug use. The findings will be utilized to allocate future resources for the prevention of infectious diseases
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related to injection drug use. These are one-time funds from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, which will end on November 30. 2019. This vulnerability assessment is a requirement of the
federal Public Health Crisis Response grant.

The Contractor will implement a broad range of public health professional services to increase
the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to provide high-quality public
health services to NH citizens and ensure successful outcomes across nine (9) Division of Public Health
programs and the Department's Emergency Services unit. These include transparent and informed
community engagement and planning, needs assessments, and evaluation processes; supporting large
conferences and training programs; and enhancing the knowledge and skills among community based
agencies providing public health services.

The Contractor currently provides a broad range of public health professional support services
including, but not limited to developing and implementing risk and needs assessments; training programs;
developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences as well as smaller meetings
and conferences; serving as a fiscal agent for the Department, including entering into subcontracts;
providing technical assistance to local partners; and providing subject matter expertise.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department may lack
the ability to strategically direct infectious disease prevention services to communities; offer large
conferences, trainings, and consultation services to community-based agencies providing public health
services; and conduct a needs assessment and evaluation process to improve services. The Department
may not meet the key deliverables of this award if these funds are not made available to complete this
project.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Funds being added are 81.61% Federal (the Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Program, the Hospital Preparedness Program, the Environmental Public Health Tracking
Program, the Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program, the Preventative Health
and Services Block Grant Program, the HIV Integrated Prevention and Surveillance Program, and the
Opioid Assessment Program), 12.54% General (the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Program),
and 5.85% Other (Pharmaceutical Rebates).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no Ignger available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

pectfull ubmitted.

effrey A. Meyers
ommissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS, 74% Federal. 26% General

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 $0 $115,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $245,000 $0 $245,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $0 $115,000 $115,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $0 $115,000 $115,000

Sub Total $360,000 $230,000 $590,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 $0 $70,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 $0 $70,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $0 $20,000 $20,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $0 $20,000 $20,000

Sub Total $140,000 $40,000 $180,000

05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION
PROGRAM, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title '  Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 $0 $65,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 $0 $65,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $0 $95,000 $95,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $0 $95,000 $95,000

Sub Total $130,000 $190,000 $320,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES, 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $183,800 $0 $183,800

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $133,800 $0 $133,800

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $0 $250,000 $250,000

2021- 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $0 $200,000 $200,000

Sub Total $317,600 $450,000 $767,600
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05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General, 63% Other

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current/

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $18,000 $0 $18,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $18,000 $0 $18,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $0 $15,000 $15,000

Sub Total $36,000 $30,000 $66,000

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH
TRACKING, 100% Federal

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $70,000 $0 $70,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $0 $70,000 $70,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $0 $70,000 $70,000

Sub Total $120,000 $140,000 $260,000

05-95-90-901510-7936 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION, 100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90007936 $0 $44,670 $44,670

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90007936 $0 $37,760 $37,760

Sub Total $0 $82,430 $82,430

05-95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD PROTECTION, 100%
Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $36,000 $0 $36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $50,000 $0 $50,000

Sub Total $86,000 $0 $86,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $9,000 $0 $9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $40,000 $0 $40,000

Sub Total $49,000 $0 $49,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $0 $155,190 $155,190

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $0 $40,000 $40,000

Sub Total $0 $195,190 $195,190

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $0 $111,795 $111,795

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $0 $40,000 $40,000

Sub Total $0 $151,795 $151,795

Sub Total $135,000 $346,985 $481,985

Page 2 of 4



05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH-SERVICES, HOME VISITING
X10 FORMULA GRANT, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

.  2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083200 $221,990 $0 $221,990

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083201 $247,569 $0 $247,569

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083203 . $0 $221,000 $221,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc ■  90083203 $0' $221,000 $221,000

Sub Total $469,559 $442,000 $911,559

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, MATERNAL -
CHILD HEALTH, 48% Federal/52% General

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $0 $24,000 $24,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $0 $24,000 $24,000

Sub Total $48,000 $48,000 $96,000

05-95-90-903010-1835 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES, EPIDEMIOLOGY LABORATORY
AND CAPACITY, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90183504 ,  $0 $30,000 $30,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90183504 $0 $30,000 $30,000

Sub Total $0 $60,000 $60,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, RADIOLOGICAL
EMERGENCY RESPONSE, 100% Other

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9,000 ■  $0 $9,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9,000 $0 $9,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $18,000 $0 $18,000

Page 3 of 4



05-95-90-902510-7536 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, STD/HIV PREVENTION,
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $0 $100,000 $100,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 SO $100,000 .  $100,000

Sub Total $75,000 $200,000 $275,000

05-95-90-901010-5362 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS. POLICY, AND PERFORMANCE,
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $15,000 $0 $15,000

05-95-90-902510-7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS
RESPONSE, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

>(Decrease)
j

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $56,546 $0 $56,546

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $0 $6,839 $6,839

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $56,546 $6,839 $63,385
i TOTAL $1,920,705 $2,266,254 $4,186,959
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the

Public Health Professional Support Services

This 3rd Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and JSI Research & Training Institute,
Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation with a place of
business at 501 South Street, 2"'' Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #51), as amended on February 21, 2018 (Item #8), and subsequently amended on
April 17, 2019 (Item #19) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be'amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and i

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,186,959.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read;

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment #3,
Scope of Services.

6. Add Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead, SPY 2020 Amendment
#3.

8. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Climate and Health, SPY 2020
Amendment #3.

9. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Sen/ices - EPA Lead, SPY 2020 Amendment
#3.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute -v /U/U/d neaiLii II laiiiuic C H t /"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

10. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPHT, SPY 2020 Amendment #3.

11. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Food Safety, SPY 2020 Amendment
'  , #3.

12. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Healthcare Acquired Infections,
SPY 2020 Amendment #3.

13. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - CDC, SPY 2020 Amendment
#3.

14. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - Rebates, SPY 2020
Amendment #3.

15. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting, SPY 2020
Amendment #3.

16. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting - MCH Block Grant.
SPY 2020 Amendment #3.

17. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Immunization Program, SPY 2020
Amendment #3.

18. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Medical Reserve Corps
Coordination (MRC), SPY 2020 Amendment #3.

19. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Crisis Response, SPY
2020 Amendment #3.

20. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Emergency Preparedness
{PHEP), SPY 2020 Amendment #3.

21. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead, SPY 2021 Amendment
#3.

22. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services 7 Climate and Health, SPY 2021
Amendment #3.

23. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPA Lead, SPY 2021 Amendment
#3.

24. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPHT, SPY 2021 Amendment #3.

25. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services-Pood Safety, SPY 2021 Amendment
#3.

26. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Healthcare Acquired Infections,
SPY 2021 Amendment #3.

27. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - CDC, SPY 2021 Amendment
#3.

28. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - Rebates; SPY 2021
Amendment #3.

29. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting, SPY 2021
Amendment #3.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials'*^
d/b/a Community Health Institute -
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Page2of5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

30. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting - MCH Block Grant,
SPY 2021 Amendment #3.

31. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Immunization Program, SPY 2021
Amendment #3.

32. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Medical Reserve Corps
Coordination (MRC), SPY 2021 Amendment #3.

33. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Emergency Preparedness
(PHEP), SPY 2021 Amendment #3.

34. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #3 , Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Page 3 of 5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

This amendment shall be effective retroactive to June 30. 2019.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name; Lisa Morris

Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute

Date Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

state of Mf.W Hcmnp^irf.. County of M>inrHYfftC.VS on before ttie
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified direcfly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Pitolic or Justice of the Peace

\

ij Cn.MYD ̂  ibUc.
Name and Tit/e of Notary dr Justice o(jhe Peace

COURTNEY A. CASTRO, Notuy PubOo
My Commission Explrse Novombor 8,2022

My Commission Expires:

'/.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #3
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Page 4 of 5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date
Ajljll Name: '§■ 7"

Sf- Asil ■ ■
I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

JS! Research & Training Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC

Amendment #3

Page 5 of 5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide a broad range of public health professional support services
Including, but not limited to:

1.3.1. Conducting needs assessments.

1.3.2. Develop and implement prevention-focused training programs.

1.3.3. Providing logistical support for conferences and meetings.

1.3.4. Providing technical assistance ensuring subject matter experts are available to
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of Public Health
Services (DPHS) contractors.

1.3.5. Developing educational materials.

1.3.6. Developing and implementing evaluation plans.

1.3.7. Assisting the Department with updating strategic plans.

1.3.8. Maximizing the efficient use of resources.

1.3.9. Overseeing programs as directed by the Department.

1.3.10. Conducting HIV and Hepatitis Community Vulnerability Assessments.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. Develop and Implement Needs Assessments

2.1.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MiECHV)/Maternai
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.1.1.1. In consultation with MIECHV/MCH staff, facilitate a training needs assessment
for eleven (11) MIECHV contracted home visiting sites.

2.1.2. infections Disease Prevention, investigation & Care

2.1.2.1. The Contractor shall conduct a needs assessment to determine service needs
among affected populations. The Contractor shall:

2.1.2.1.1. Gather information from People Living with HIV/AIDS (PLWHA)
as well as from their families and careglvers in order to identify
common themes and trends through qualitative data gathering

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment #3 Contractor Iniliaj^^^^^,
d/b/a Community Health InstituteU/u/a wvi IIII lui iiiy I *7 ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

processes that will yield;

2.1.2.1.1.1. Qualitative feedback for the needs assessment.

2.1.2.1.1.2. Survey questions to be utilized in a questionnaire
that will be conducted to targeted statewide
populations including, but not limited to individuals
who:

2.1.2.1.1.2.1. Are in or out of HIV medical care.

2.1.2.1.1.2.2. Have, CO morbidities that may
include but are not limited to

Tuberculosis, Sexually
Transmitted Diseases, Hepatitis
C, Mental Illness, and/or
substance use disorders.

2.1.2.1.2. Create statistical reports that reflect results of the survey.

2.1.2.1.3. Analyze the data to obtain information to generate
recommendations.

2.1.2.1.4. Share preliminary results with the Bureau of Infectious Disease
Prevention, Investigation and Care Services (ID-PICS) Section in
order to obtain input for final recommendations that will be
submitted to the Department.

2.1.2.1.5. Ensure that priority PLWHA populations are included in the Needs
Assessment.

2.1.2.2. The Contractor shall identify the extent to which services identified in the
inventory of resources are accessible, available, appropriate, affordable and
acceptable to PLWHA. The Contractor shall:

2.1.2.2.1. Estimate capacity of how much of each service can be provided.

2.1.2.2.2. Assess capability of how well providers provide services,
including expertise of agency staff and its accessibility.

2.1.2.2.3. Develop and implement a provider survey, in collaboration with
the BIDC ID-PICS Section as approved by the Department, to
determine capacity and capability to deliver services identified in
the resource inventory.

2.1.2.3. The Contractor shall assess service gaps/unmet needs of PLWHA and provide
a written report that includes both quantitative and qualitative data on:

2.1.2.3.1. Service needs.

2.1.2.3.2. Resources.

2.1.2.3.3. Barriers.

2.1.2.4. The Contractor shall conduct a thorough assessment of unmet needs for
PLWHA who know their status but are not enrolled in primary care services.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit A, Amenctnent #3 Contractor Initial
d/b/a Community Health Institute — .
RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBLIC Page 2 of 18 Date <5/1 iff



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

2.1.2.5. The Contractor shall make recommendations to the Department based on
quantitative and qualitative data on service needs, resources and barriers to
assist with setting priorities and allocating resources.

2.1.3. HIV Comprehensive Needs Assessment (HIV-CAN)

2.1.3.1. The Contractor shall conduct an HIV Comprehensive Needs Assessment (HIV-
CAN) that is in compliance with the rules, regulations and policies outlined by
U.S. Health' Resources Services Administration (HRSA, the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the Department.

2.1.3.2. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable responsibilities outlined in the
HRSA National Monitoring Standards, as instructed by the Department.

2.1.3.3. The Contractor shall ensure the HIV-CAN process is compliant with needs
assessment principles and strategies outlined in the Ryan White HIV/AIDS
Program Part B Manual and by the Department.

2.1.3.4. The Contract shall ensure the HIV-CAN includes all specific components as
outlined and detailed by HRSA, CDC and the Department including but not
limited to:

2.1.3.4.1. Epidemiologic Overview

2.1.3.4.2. HIV Care Continuum

2.1.3.4.3. Financial and Human Resources Inventory.

2.1.3.4.4. Assessment of Needs, Gaps and Barriers.

2.1.3.4.5. Data Access, Sources and Systems.

2.1.3.5. The Contractor shall produce a document that includes all five (5) components
outlined above.

2.1.4. Epidemlologlcal Profile

2.1.4.1. The Contractor shall maintain regular contact with the Department throughout
the life of the contract through:

2.1.4.1.1. Quarterly in-person meetings with Department staff;

2.1.4.1.2. Weekly emails and/or telephone calls.

2.1.4.2. The Contractor shall review HIV surveillance data, as provided by the BIDC,
and create an epidemiological profile report for Department review.

2.1.4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the epidemiological profile report:

2.1.4.3.1. Summarizes pertinent information including but not limited to
prevalence, incidence, and unmet need data by:

2.1.4.3.1.1. Age.

2.1.4.3.1.2. Gender.

2.1.4.3.1.3. Race/ethnicity.

2.1.4.3.1.4. Transmission mode.
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2.1.4.3.1.5. Geographic area.

2.1.4.3.2. Identifies descriptive trends in HIV and associated co-morbidities
since case reporting by name began in 2005.

2.1.4.4. The Contractor shall create a profile that projects the status of the HIV
epidemic, statewide, over the next three (3) to five (5) years, and includes and
CO morbidities, which may include, but is not limited to:

2.1.4.4.1. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs).

2.1.4.4.2. Tuberculosis (TB).

2.1.4.4.3. Hepatitis associated with the HIV/AID epidemic in NH.

2.1.4.5. The Contractor shall provide community population estimates, in writing, to the
Department that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.4.5.1. The number of individuals diagnosed and living with HIV/AIDS
within each Public Health Region (PHR).

2.1.4.5.2. A comparison of the rates and percentages for the state.

2.1.4.5.3. A description of individuals at-riskfor HIV infection based on rates
of sexually transmitted diseases.

2.1.4.6. The Contractor shall provide a draft report of an epidemiological profile to the
Department in an electronic format acceptable to the Department for review
and approval no later than January of 2020.

2.1.4.7. The Contractor shall publish the epidemiological profile in compliance with
state and federal security and confidentiality guidelines and DPHS Data
Release Policy, ensuring clients cannot be identified as a result of the
published data. ,

i

2.1.4.8. The Contractor shall provide an assessment of service needs in an electronic
format that Is acceptable to the Department for review and approval no later
than April of 2020.

2.1.4.9. The Contractor shall present options for meeting service needs by:

2.1.4.9.1. Maximizing identified resources.

2.1.4.9.2. Identifying barriers to resources.

2.1.4.9.3. Overcoming identified barriers, including coordinating Ryan White
and HIV prevention services with other health care delivery
systems.

2.1.4.10. The Contractor shall present recommendations for improving service
delivery, bridging gaps and reducing duplicative services within the Ryan White
and HIV Prevention service delivery system, as appropriate. The Contractor
shall:

2.1.4.10.1. Provide a written assessment of service gaps and unmet needs
in an electronic format acceptable to the Department for
Department review and approval no later than October of 2020.
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2.1.4.11. The Contractor shall make recommendations for future gap analysis with
emphasis on perceived and unmet needs statewide. The Contractor shall;

2.1.4.11.1. Develop a strategy for meeting training, education and capacity
needs of HIV providers, as identified by the assessment of service
gaps/unmet needs.

2.1.4.11.2. Provide a written strategy for meeting the needs of HIV providers,
as identified by the assessment of service gaps and unmet needs,
in an electronic format acceptable to the Department .for review
and approval no later than May of 2020.

2.1.4.12. The Contractor shall make an in-person presentation on the final
Epidemiological Profile report to the Department no later than June of 2020.

2.2. Develop and Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs

2.2.1. General Training Requirements

2.2.1.1. The Contractor shall consult with Department subject matter experts to develop
and/or implement program-specific training programs.

2.2.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure training programs are based on adult learning
theories utilizing various training modalities in order to maximize reach.

2.2.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure training modalities include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1.3.1. In-classroom sessions.

2.2.1.3.2. Web-based training.

2.2.1.3.3. Train-the-trainer sessions.

2.2.2. Food Protection Section (FPS)

2.2.2.1. The Contractor, in consultation with the FPS staff, shall develop training
curricula for FPS staff and Food Service Establishment (FSE) inspectors in
municipalities that are classified as self-inspecting.

2.2.2.2. The Contractor, in consultation with FPS staff, shall develop training curricula
for staff from state agencies that conduct food safety inspections as one
component of a more comprehensive operational inspection, which includes,
but is not limited to:

2.2.2.2.1. The Department of Environmental Services Youth Camp
inspection staff.

2.2.2.2.2. The Department of Health and Human Services Health Facilities
Licensing staff who inspect child care centers, nursing homes and
assisted living facilities.

2.2.2.3. The Contractor, in consultation with FPS staff, shall develop training curricula
for Food Service Workers including, but not limited to individuals who work in
or for:

2.2.2.3.1. Restaurants.

2.2.2.3.2. Retail food stores.
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2.2.2.3.3. Schools.

2.2.2.3.4. Caterers.

2.2.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.2.3.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement training programs for RPHN
emergency preparedness coordinators

2.2.3.2. The Contractor shall develop and implement training programs for individuals
who are engaged in regional PHEP planning and response, including but not
limited to: '

2.2.3.2.1. Local municipal officials.

2.2.3.2.2. Healthcare preparedness personnel.

2.2.3.2.3. Volunteers.

2.2.3.3. The Contractor shall participate in the State Training and Exercise Program
(STEP) workgroup that is convened by the Department.

2.2.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.2.4.1. The Contractor shall plan and implement 1-day Renovation, Repair and
Painting Training programs in New Hampshire's highest risk communities
utilizing the US Environmental Protection Agency curriculum.

2.2.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.2.5.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement an annual training plan that
includes, but is not limited to"

2.2.5.1.1. Site-specific training plans.

2.2.5.1.2. Pre- and Post-evaluations of trainings.

2.2.5.1.3. A minimum of ten (10) training opportunities are offered to
MIECHV-funded home visiting sites per year.

2.2.6. Environmental Public Health Tracking (EPHT)

2.2.6.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to host a maximum of ten (10)
meetings with Regional Public Health Networks to gather feedback on the
EPHT Data Portal.

2.2.6.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to a maximum of five (5) focus
groups conducting user research of EPHT data and projects.

2.2.6.3. The Contract shall utilize current train-the-trainer curriculum for tick-safe
practices when providing training sessions to target audiences in two (2)
regions of the State, ensuring each session has a maximum duration of three
(3) hours. The Contractor shall:

2.2.6.3.1. Develop and apply a set of adult learning principles to ensure
target audiences understand information.

2.2.6.3.2. Utilize an array of delivery techniques for different learning styles
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and processing skill sets.

2.2.6.3.3. Set up classrooms in a manner conducive to adult learning.

2.2.6.3.4. Meet participant needs, as appropriate.

2.2.6.3.5. Provide learners with opportunities for feedback.

2.2.6.3.6. Provide learners with a variety of coaching skills to utilize for
future trainings.

2.2.6.3.7. Adapt existing educational materials, as approved by the
Department, from Tick Free NH, the Department, the Centers for
Disease Control (CDC), or other sources in order to meet the

learning needs of target audiences.

2.2.6.3.8. Evaluate all training programs to measure competencies of
participants.

2.2.7. Climate and Health Adaption

2.2.7.1. The Contractor shall ensure subject matter experts consult with local
community partners, in collaboration with Department leads, to develop

' evidence-based public health plans and interventions to reduce the health
impacts of extreme weather events , which may include:

2.2.7.1.1. Extreme heat.

2.2.7.1.2. Cold temperatures.

2.2.7.1.3. Seasonal storms.

2.2.7.1.4. Other changing climate conditions that may result in individual
injury, illness or death.

2.2.7.2. The Contractor shall develop a white paper, in collaboration with the
Department, utilizing subject matter experts on measures of community
resilience to natural disasters. The Contractor shall ensure measures are:

2.2.7.2.1. Viable metrics for self-reliance and emergency preparedness.

2.2.7.2.2. Feasible to collect at the town or regional level

2.2.7.2.3. Based on national standards for population vulnerability and
resilience.

2.3. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups

2.3.1. General Logistical Support for Conferences

2.3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support, as approved by the
Department, for conferences that may include, but is not limited to:

2.3.1.1.1. Convening, facilitating, and documenting meetings of each
conference planning team.

2.3.1.1.2. Developing the conference agenda in coordination with planning
teams.
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2.3.1.1.3. Compiling e-mail lists to promote conferences using addresses
supplied by members of the planning team.

2.3.1.1.4. Designing and electronically publishing conference brochures,
"Save the Date" announcements and other marketing materials
as funding allows.

2.3.1.1.5. Designing the layout and printing materials for conference
attendees.

2.3.1.1.6. Coordinating logistics with speakers.

2.3.1.1.7. Coordinating logistics with vendors and supporting their logistical
needs during conferences.

2.3.1.1.8. Providing operations support during conferences, including but
not limited to:

2.3.1.1.8.1. Registering attendees.

2.3.1.1.8.2. Coordinating IT needs.

2.3.1.1.8.3. Coordinating with the conference site staff.

2.3.1.1.8.4. Conducting other activities typically associated with
conference support.

2.3.1.1.9. Compiling data from evaluation forms completed by attendees,
.  analyze data and provide written reports to programs.

2.3.1.1.10. Receiving payment from vendors, which shall be utilized for
supporting conferences with any additional funding to be utilized
for activities funded by the program sponsoring the conference.

2.3.1.1.11. Facilitating reservations and logistics of each conference site.

2.3.1.1.12. Reporting all costs and Income generated for each conference to
the program funding the conference.

2.3.2. General Logistical Support for Committees and Planning Groups

2.3.2.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support, as approved by the
Department, for conferences committees and planning groups that may
Include, but Is not limited to:

2.3.2.1.1. Convening, facilitating, and documenting meetings, including
those of subcommittees, work groups or similar bodies.

2.3.2.1.2. Developing meeting agendas in coordination with Department
staff.

2.3.2.1.3. Disseminating announcements of meetings to members and
posting publicly, as requested by the Department.

2.3.2.1.4. Maintaining contact information for all members of
committee/planning groups, including subcommittees,
workgroups or similar bodies.
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2.3.2.1.5. Maintaining existing websites to inform members and the public
of the purpose, membership and activities of planning groups and
committees.

2.3.2.1.6. Coordinating logistics with speakers.

2.3.2.1.7. Coordinating logistics with vendors and supporting their logistical
needs during conferences.

2.3.2.1.8. Providing operations support during meetings, including but not
limited to:

2.3.2.1.8.1. Registering attendees.

2.3.2.1.8.2. Coordinating IT needs.

2.3.2.1.8.3. Coordinating with site staff.

2.3.2.1.8.4. Publishing minutes.

2.3.2.1.8.5. Conducting other activities typically associated with
meeting support.

2.3.2.1.9. Compiling data from evaluation forms completed by attendees
analyze data and provide written reports to programs.

2.3.3. Healthcare Acquired Infections

2.3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for up to eleven (11) meeting
per year of the Antimicrobial Resistance Advisory Workgroup (ARAW).

2.3.3.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for the annual
Antimicrobial Stewardship Symposium for up to 400 attendees, which includes,
but is not limited to providing continuing education credits.

2.3.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.3.4.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the New England Lead
Coordinating Committee (NELCC), which includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.4.1.1. No more than (12) regular meetings of the full NELCC.

2.3.4.1.2. No more than two (2) committee/workgroup meetings per year.

2.3.4.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for the Healthy
Homes annual conference for up to 300 attendees.

2.3.4.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for a minimum of
four (4) regional dinner meetings each of which shall have capacity for 120
attendees.

2.3.5. Climate and Health Adaption

2.3.5.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for a minimum of two (2) half-
day meetings, each having a minimum duration of four (4) hours, for state-level
partners that are members of the Climate and Health Advisory Council.

2.3.5.2. The Contractor shall implement and maintain a web-based collaboration portal
accessible to Advisory Council members that includes all materials relevant to
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council meetings and work products.

2.3.6. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.3.6.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support on a quarterly basis for the
Home Visiting Task Force, the MIECHV Advisory Group, which includes but is
not limited to collaborating partners, who have an interest and background in
home visiting.

2.3.6.2. The Contractor shall participate In Data Systems; Strategic Planning; and
Communications workgroup meetings.

2.3.6.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support, including
evaluation, to semi-annual conferences-learning exchanges for up to 55 staff
at MIECHV contracted sites. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.3.6.3.1. The spring 2018 training focuses on Healthy Families America
required content training for continued certification.

2.3.6.3.2. The fall training 2018 is based on findings from the needs
assessment.

2.3.6.4. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support a minimum of (2)
two in-person statewide and/or regional trainings.

2.3.7. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.3.7.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the NH HIV Planning Group
(HPG), which includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.7.1.1. A maximum of six (6) regular meetings of the full HPG.

2.3.7.1.2. A maximum of (30) committee/workgroup meetings per year.

2.3.7.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support, which includes
providing continuing education credits to attendees, for the bi-annual NH STD,
HIV, Hepatitis, TB conference for up to 250 attendees.

2.3.8. Immunization Program

2.3.8.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for the annual Immunization
Conference for approximately 400 attendees.

2.3.9. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.3.9.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for the annual NH
Statewide Preparedness conference for up to 800 attendees.

2.4. Provide Technical Assistance

2.4.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.4.1.1. The Contractor, in consultation with Department subject matter experts, shall
provide technical assistance to three (3) discrete groups directed toward
meeting national standards described in the U.S. Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention's (CDC) Public Health Preparedness Capabilities (March 2011)
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and subsequent editions;

2.4.1.1.1. DPHS/Emergency Services Unit (ESU) preparedness staff.

2.4.1.1.2. Public health preparedness coordinators at the 13 organizations
providing Regional Public Health Network services. TA will be
available to both individuals and as a group.

2.4.1.1.3. Medical Reserve Corps units recognized by the registered with
the U.S. Surgeon General, Office of the Civilian Volunteer Medical
Reserve Corps, to support recruitment, training and deployment
of the MRC volunteers.

2.4.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, investigation & Care Services Section

2.4.2.1. The Contractor, in consultation with Department subject matter experts, shall
identify and coordinate the availability of technical assistance providers to
DPHS contractors and service provider agencies.

2.4.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section

2.4.3.1. The Contractor shall provide Continuous Quality Improvement technical
assistance through site visits and phone consultations to support local
implementing agencies funded by DPHS that seek accreditation from the
Healthy Families America accreditation board.

2.5. Develop and Produce Educational Materials

2.5.1. General Standards for Educational Materials

2.5.1.1. The Contractor shall, in consultation with Department subject matter experts,
develop and/or produce educational materials on topics identified by DPHS
staff.

2.5.1.2. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval prior to distribution of any
produced materials and ensure all materials produced give credit to the funding
source utilized to create the materials.

2.5.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all materials are developed in accordance with
CDC recommendations specified in Simply Put: Guide to Developing Easy-To-
Understand Materials, CDC July 2010.

2.5.2. Environmental Public Heaith Tracking Program (EPHT)

2.5.2.1. The Contractor shall develop educational materials that:

2.5.2.1.1. Include information that increases knowledge and understanding
of the EPHT program at the state and local levels.

2.5.2.1.2. Target public health professionals, emergency preparedness
officials, and local partners.

2.5.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP)

2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall develop educational materials, in collaboration with the
HHLPPP, that:
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2.5.3.1.1. Include information that increases knowledge and understanding
of:

2.5.3.1.1.1. Best practices relative to Screening and
Management Guidelines.

2.5.3.1.1.2. Lead-safe work practices.

2.5.3.1.1.3. Keeping children safe from lead hazards.

2.5.3.1.2. Target clinicians, contractors, and families.

2.5.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.5.4.1. The Contractor shall, in consultation with the Department, maintain and update
the NH HIV Planning Group (HPG) website.

2.6. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

2.6.1.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop evaluation plans
that clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
performance measures.

2.6.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHT)

2.6.2.1. The Contractor shall. In consultation with Department subject matter experts:

2.6.2.1.1. Develop and implement a plan that clearly outlines goals,
objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance
measures in order to evaluate ongoing EPHT projects to ensure
they meet criteria outlined by the CDC and fulfill federal
requirements.

2.6.2.1.2. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate previously funded
HHLPPP projects that addressed dissemination techniques and
understanding of the 2015 Lead Surveillance Report and the
Childhood Lead Screening and Management Guidelines.

2.6.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.6.3.1. The Contractor shall monitor implementation of the current MIECHV
Continuous Quality Improvement Plan

2.6.3.2. The Contractor shall participate in updating the MIECHV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

2.7. Update Strategic Plans

2.7.1. General Assistance with Strategic Plans

2.7.1.1. The Contractor shall, in consultation with Department subject matter experts,
assist the Department with: ^
2.7.1.1.1. Updating pre-existing strategic plans.

2.7.1.1.2. Outlining goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
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performance measures for various programs.

2.7.1.1.3. Updating the 2010 MIECHV Strategic State Plan.

2.8. Maximize the Efficient Use of Resources

2.8.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHTP)

2.8.1.1. The Contractor shall work with Department vendors and grant recipients that
provide Regional Public Health Network services to increase the amount of
funding and amend work plans.

2.8.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services (IDPICSS)

2.8.2.1. The, Contractor shall facilitate reimbursements of costs incurred by
approximately five (5) public members of the HPG to attend out-of-state
conferences identified by the Department as well as mileage costs to attend in
state meetings.

2.8.2.2. The Contractor shall procure and supply prevention supplies as determined by
the IDPICSS to a minimum of six (6) clinics funded by the IDPICCS to provide
testing and treatment for sexually transmitted infections and human
immunodeficiency virus.

2.8.3. Public Health Preparedness

2.8.3.1. The Contractor shall provide E-Studio, a web-based collaboration system
currently in use by the Department.

2.8.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.8.4.1. The Contractor shall support a minimum of two (2) MIECHV-funded home
visiting agency staff selected by the Department to attend the annual MIECHV
grantee conference.

2.8.4.2. The Contractor shall research and identify methods to increase utilization of
postpartum visits by home visiting families.

2.9. Conduct HIV and Hepatitis Community Vulnerability Assessments

2.9.1. Methodology & Data Assembly

2.9.1.1. The Contractor shall design methodology that includes but is not limited to;

2.9.1.1.1. Working with the Department's Bureau of Infectious Disease
Control (BICD) to organize and engage a stakeholder group to
provide input on the vulnerability assessment design, methods,
expected output and outcomes.

2.9.1.1.2. Reviewing current literature that describes similar Vulnerability
Assessments in order to inform the study design.

2.9.1.1.3. Working with the BICD to coordinate technical assistance
available from the Center for Disease Control and Prevention for
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

study design and interpretation of results.

2.9.1.2. The Contractor shall assemble data, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.9.1.2.1. Working with the BICD to develop data use agreements, as
applicable, to obtain data for the assessment to include data on:

2.9.1.2.2. Overdose mortality and morbidity.

2.9.1.2.3. Emergency medical service and emergency department
utilization.

2.9.1.2.4. Incidence of blood borne infections associated with non-sterile
drug injection.

2.9.1.2.5. Demographic data. Medication Assisted Treatment capacity.

2.9.1.2.6. Other substance-use related treatment capacity.

2.9.1.2.7. Controlled drug prescription rates.

2.9.1.2.8. Public safety data;

2.9.1.3. The Contractor shall conduct an analysis to facility resource targeting with
geographical context, to the extent such data is available.

2.9.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure any work performed complies with all state rules,
and state and federal laws, as required, to safeguard the confidentiality of the
information, and to comply with 42 CFR part 2, as applicable.

2.9.2. Conduct and Apply Findings of Vulnerability Assessments

2.9.2.1. The Contractor shall conduct analyses for the Vulnerability Assessment, which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.9.2.1.1. Cpmpleting statistical analyses following design and modeling
procedures as defined in collaboration with the Stakeholder
Group.

2.9.2.1.2. Working with the BICD and the Stakeholder Group to review
interim findings.

2.9.2.1.3. Refining the analysis, as necessary and possible, with additional
data, methodological variations or innovations;

2.9.2.1.4. Completing the analysis for different sub-geographies of the state
as determined in conjunction with BICD and the Stakeholder
Group.

2.9.2.2. The Contractor shall disseminate and apply findings of the Vulnerability
Assessment by:

2.9.2.2.1. Producing jurisdictional maps identifying high-risk areas identified
through the assessment process.

2.9.2.2.2. Distributing findings to key stakeholders in formats that support
action.

2.9.2.2.3. Presenting at public health and healthcare provider meetings.

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute p , -
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

2.9.2.2.4. Creating fact sheets or report cards for geographic sub-regions of
New Hampshire.

2.9.2.2.5. Publishing findings in professional journals.

2.9.2.2.6. Use the findings from the assessment to assist the Department in
the development of plans that strategically allocate prevention
and intervention services.

3. Performance Measures & Deliverables

3.1. Performance Measures

3.1.1. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance measures for Section 2.2,
Develop and Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs, as follows;

3.1.1.1. A minimum of 85% of participants rate training programs as not less than
'Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance measures for Section 2.3,
Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups as follows:

3.1.2.1. A minimum of 85% of conference planning committee members rate
conference logistical support for conferences as not less than Very
Good' in evaluation surveys.

3.1.2.2. A minimum of 85% of conference participants rate the elements
pertaining to conference logistics as not less than 'Very Good' in
evaluation surveys.

3.1.2.3. A minimum of 85% of workgroup participants rate elements pertaining
to workgroup logistics as not less than 'Very Good' in evaluation
surveys.

3.1.2.4. A minimum of 85% of planning group members rate meeting logistics as
not less than Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

3.1.3. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance measures for Section 2.4,
Provide Technical Assistance, as follows:

3.1.3.1. A minimum of 90% of all requests for high-priority consultation services
are responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

3.1.3.2. A minimum of 90% of all requests for high-priority technical assistance
are responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

3.1.4. The Contractor shall identify barriers to meeting performance measures on a semi
annual basis and provide a corrective action plan that:

3.1.4.1. Identifies barriers to success.

3.1.4.2. Includes a work plan for mitigating barriers.

3.1.4.3. Includes a timeline in which cornpliance with performance measures will

Page 15of 18 Date €*/^U/l^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

be met.

3.2. Deliverables

3.2.1. Needs Assessments

3.2.1.1. The Contractor shall conduct training needs assessments for eleven
(11) MIECHV home visiting sites.

3.2.1.2. The Contractor shall provide a written report to the Department no later
than June 1, 2021 of recommendations that result from the needs
assessment conducted to determine service needs for PLWHA.

3.2.1.3. The Contractor shall provide the HIV-CAN to the Department no later
than March 30, 2021.

3.2.1.4. The Contractor shall participate in quarterly in-person meetings with
Department staff.

3.2.1.5. The Contractor shall maintain ongoing communication with the
Department by weekly e-mail or telephone contact from the contract
effective date through the contract completion date.

3.2.1.6. The Contractor shall provide a draft report of the epidemiological profile
to the Department for review and approval no later than January 31,
2020.

3.2.1.7. The Contractor shall provide a written assessment of service gaps and
unmet needs with the Ryan White and HIV Prevention service delivery
system to the Department for review and approval no later than October
31, 2020.

I

3.2.1.8. The Contractor shall provide a written strategy for meeting the needs of
HIV providers as Identified by the assessment of service gaps and
unmet needs no later than May 31, 2020.

3.2.1.9. The Contractor shall make an in-person presentation of the final
Epidemiological Profile report to the Department no later than June 30,
2020.

3.2.2. Prevention-Focused Training Programs

3.2.2.1. The Contractor shall facilitate two (2) 1-day Renovation, Repair and
Painting Training programs in New Hampshire's high-risk communities.

3.2.2.2. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum often (10) training opportunities
are offered to MIECHV-funded home visiting sites per year.

3.2.2.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to five (5) focus groups
conducting user research of EPHT data and projects.

3.2.2.4. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of two (2) training sessions on
tick-safe practices that target audiences in different regions of the state,
ensuring each session has a maximum duration of three (3) hours.

3.2.3. Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment #3 Contractor Initials.
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Exhibit A, Amendment #3

3.2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for eleven (11) meetings
per year of the ARAW.

3.2.3.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for twelve (12) meetings
of the NELCC.

3.2.3.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for two (2) NELCC
committee workgroup meetings.

3.2.3.4. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support at the
Health Homes annual conference for 300 attendees.

3.2.3.5. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for a
minimum of four (4) regional dinner meetings of the Healthy Homes and
Lead Poisoning Prevention Program, each of which have capacity for
120 attendees.

3.2.3.6. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for a minimum of two (2)
half-day meetings each having a minimum duration of four (4) hours for
state-level partners that are members of the Climate and Health
Advisory Council.

3.2.3.7. The Contractor shall provide logistical support on a quarterly basis for
the Home Visiting Task Force.

3.2.3.8. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for semi
annual conferences - learning exchanges for up to fifty-five (55) staff at
MIECHV contracted sites.

3.2.3.9. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for two (2)
in-person statewide or regional trainings of staff at MIECHV contracted
sites.

3.2.3.10. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for six (6) regular
meetings of the full HPG per year.

3.2.3.11. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for thirty (30) HPG
committee workgroup meetings per year.

3.2.3.12. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for the bi
annual NH STD, HIV, Hepatitis, TB conference, each of which has
capacity for up to 250 attendees.

3.2.3.13. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for the annual
Immunization Conference, which has capacity for 400 attendees.

3.2.3.14. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for the annual NH
Statewide Preparedness Conference for up to 800.

3.2.4. Conduct and Apply Findings of Vulnerability Assessments

3.2.4.1. The Contractor shall conduct an analyses for the Vulnerability
Assessment no later than November 28, 2019.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibil A, Amendment #3 Contractor Initial
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3.2.4.2. The Contractor shall produce jurisdictional maps identifying high-risk
areas and distribute findings to key stakeholders in formats that support
action no later than November 28, 2019.

3.2.4.3. The Contractor shall present findings at- two (2) public health and
healthcare provider meetings.

3.2.4.4. The Contractor shall create fact sheets or report cards that summarize
the vulnerability assessment information no later than November 28.
2019.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

3. This contract is funded with Funds from:

3.1. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, TP19-1901 Public Health Emergency Preparedness
(PHEP) Program, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.069; Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) # NU90TP922018,

3.2. US Assistant Secretary for Preparedness & Response, TP19-1901 Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP),
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.889, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #
U3REP190580,

3.3. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Immunization Cooperative Agreements, Immunization and
Vaccines for Children, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.268, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # NH23IP922595,

3.4. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program - Network
Implementation, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.070, Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) # NU1EH001357,

3.5. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Climate and Health Adaptation and Monitoring Program
(CHAMP), Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.070, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#NUE1EH001332;

3.6. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. NH - Reduce the Burden of Lead Poisoning in Young
Children in High Risk Communities and Populations, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #
93.197, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # NUE2EH001408.

3.7. US Environmental Protection Agency, Lead 404(g) Training and Certification, Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 66.707, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 99151216.

3.8. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA),
Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program , Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 93.870, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # X10MC32206.

3.9. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Maternal,
and Child Health Services, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.994, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # B04MC32557.

3.10. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.991, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #
NB010T009205.

3.11. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Public Health Crisis Response, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.354, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #U90TP921693.

3.12. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, PS 18-1802 HIV Integrated Prevention and Surveillance
Programs, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.940, Federal Award Identification (FAIN) #
U62PS924538.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit B, Amendment #2 Contractor Initials.
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3.13. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for Infectious
Diseases, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.323, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN) #NU50CK000522,

3.14. Other Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates, Food Protection Fees and Radiological Health Fees

3.15. General Funds.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows;

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this
agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved budget line items.

4.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth working day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.
The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department programs and services.

4.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice, subsequent
to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. Contractors will keep detailed
records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and sen/ices.

4.4. The final Invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37, Block
1.7 Completion Date.

4.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

4.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit A,
Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made
without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
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CDC Lead Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2020

Total Program Cost

Line Item Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SaiarvAVaqes $ 39,669.58 $ $ 39,669.58

2. Employee Benefits $ 15,074.44 $ $ 15.074.44

3. Consultants $ - $ $ -

4. Equipment: $ 1,190.09 $ $ 1,190.09

Rental $ - $ $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $

Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ $ -

5. Supplies: $ 2,776.87 $ $ 2,776.87

Educational $ - $ $ -

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ - $ $ -

6. Travel $ 300.00 $ $ 300.00

7. Occupancy $ 3,966.96 $ $ 3,966.96

8. Current Expenses $ 2,776.87 $ $ 2,776.87

Telephone $ - $ $ -

Postage $ $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $

Audit and Legal $ $ $

Insurance $ $ $

Board E)q3enses $ •$ $

9. Software $ $ $

10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $ 793.39 $ $ 793.39

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ $ -

Meetings & Conference $ 31,000.00 $ 31,000.00

Educational Outreach $ 22,353.96 $ 22,353.96

Health Promotion $ 28,544.00 $ 28,544.00

Information Systems $2,181.83 $ 2,181.83

HR .  SI.190.09 $ 1,190.09

Gen Admin $ $1,190.09 $ 1,190.09

Payroll and Accounting $ -
$2,181.83 $ 2,181.83

TOTAL $ 148,446.16 $ 6,743.84 $ 155.190.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 4.5%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick.and vacation.

CDC Lead SPY 2020

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
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Climate and Health Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for PutHIc Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2020

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Waqes $  15.767.57 S $  15,767.57

2. Employee Berets $  5,991.68 $ $  5,991.68

3. Consultants $ $ $

4. Equipment: $  473.03 $ $  473.03

Rental S S $

Repair and Maintenance S $ $

Purchase/Depredation $ $ $

5. Supplies: $  1.103.73 $ $  1,103.73

Educational S s $

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ s $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ $  . $

6. Travel $ $

7. Occupancy S  1,576.76 s $  1,576.76

8. Current Expenses $  1,261.40 s $  1,261.40

Telephone $ s $

Postaoe $ $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $

Audit and Leqal $ $ $

Insurance $ $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $

10. Marketinq/Cfommunications $ $ $

11. Staff Education and Traininq $  - 315.35 $ $  315.35

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $  10,000.00 $ $  10,000.00

13. Other (spedfic details nnandatory): $ s $

Curriculum Development & Logistics $  5,500.00 $  5,500.00

$

$

Information Systems $867.22 $  867.22

HR $473.02 $  473.02

Gen Admin $ $473.02 $  473.02

PayrotI and Accounting s $867.22 $  867.22

TOTAL S  41,989.52 $  2,680.48 $  44,670.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 6.4%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting artd payroll, human
resources and staff development, and genera) administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages or^y including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
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EPA Lead Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Irrc.

Budget Request for: Put)lic Health Professional Support Services

-  Budget Period: SFY 2020

.  . . . . ■ ^TotaLProqram Cost 4  L

Line Item • Direct - ,  Indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Waoes $ 14.398.91 $ $  14.398.91

2. Emplovee Benefits S 5.471.58 $ $  5.471.58

3. Corrsultants s . $ $

4. Equipment: $ 431.97 $ $  431.97

Rental $ ■ s $

Repair and Maintenarrce $ $ $

Purchase/Depredation $ - $ $

5. Supplies: $ 1.007.92 $ $  1,007.92

Educational $ • $ $

Lab s $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ - $ $

6. Travel s 100.00 $ $  100.00

7. OccuparKV $ 1.439.89 % $  1.439.89

8. Cunant Expenses $ 1,007.92 % $  1.007.92

Telephone $ • s $

Postaoe s s $

Subscriptions $ % $

Audit and Leqal $ $ $

Insurance $ $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $

10. Marketinq/Communications $ - s $

11. Staff Education artdTrainina s 287.98 5 $  287.98

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ $

13. Other (specific details martdatory): s . S $

Meetirxis & Conferer>ce $ 10.106.01 $  10.106.01

Educational Outreach $ 3.300.00 $  3.300.00

$

Informalicxi Sysfems \  $791.94 $  791.94

HR $431.97 $  431.97

Gen AdrrHP $ $431.97 $  431.97

Payroll and Accounting s - $791.94 $  791.94

TOTAL s 37,552.18 $  2,447.82 $  40,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 6.5%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. includes
fringe tienefits (38% of salary) arxl other general operaUng costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general ofTice supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, arxl general administrative support costs. The approved t)asis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Trainirtg Institute, Inc. d/tVa Community Health Institute
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EPHT Program

New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training institute. Inc.

1
Budaet Request for Public Health Professional Supoort Services

Budget Period: SFY 2020

Total Program Cost -

Line Item ' * ' Direct •  Undli^ • '' ' Total ■

^. Total Satarv/Waoes %  9.277.88 8 8  9.277.88

2. Errvlovee Benefits $  3.525.59 8 8  3.525.59

3. Consultants $ 8 8

4. Eautoment: $  278.34 8 8  278.34

Rental s 8 8  - -

Reoair and Malntenar>ce S 8 8

Purchase/Deoreciation $ 8 8

5. SuDOlies: $  649.45 8 8  649.45

Educational 8 8 8

Lab $ 8 8

Pharmacv $ 8 8

Medical S 8 8

Office S 8 8

6. Travel S  335.92 8 8  335.92

7. OccuoarKv $  927.79 8 8  927.79

8. Current Exoenses S  742.23 8 8  742.23

Teleohone $ 8 8

Postage 8 8 8

Subscriptions 8 8 8

Audit and Leoal 8 8 8

Insurance 8 8 8

Board Exoenses 8 8 8

9. Softv/are 8 8 8

to. Mar1(etir)Q/Communications 8 8 8

11. Staff Education and Trainino 8  185.56 8 8  185.56

12. Subcontracts/Aareements 8  50,000.00 8 8  50.000.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): 8 8 8

Printing 8  1.250.00 8  1.250.00

Meeting Expenses 8  1.250.00 8  1,250.00

Infonmtion Systems 8510.28 8  510.28

HR 8278.34 8  278.34

Gen Admin 8 8278.34 8  278.34

Pavroff and Accountino 8 8510.28 8  510.28

TOTAL 8  68.422.76 8  1.577.24 8  70.000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 2.3%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment.
ger>eral office supplies, tetecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payrol. human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages onlv including holiday, side and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
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Food Safety Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Line Item - 'v

.  Total Program Cost
;»5.. .i. ■ Direct^' ■ -'' .■ -indirect Total

1. Total SalaryArt/ages $ 5,621.62 $ $ 5,621.62
2. Employee Benefits $ 2,136.22 $ $ 2,136.22
3. Consultants S - $ $ -

4. Equipment; $ 168.65 $ $ 168.65
Rental $ - $ $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ $ .

5. Supplies: s 393.51 $ $ 393.51
Educational $ - $ $
Lab $ $ $
Pharmacy $ $ $
Medical $ $ $
Office $ $ -

6, Travel $ 300.00 $ $ 300.00

7. Occupancy s 562.16 $ $ 562.16

8. Current Expenses $ 449.73 $ $ 449.73

Telephone $ - $ $ -

Postage $ $ $
Subscriptions $ $ $
Audit and Legal $ $ $
Insurance $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $ 112.43 $ $ 112.43

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ $ -

Printing $ 500.00 $ 500.00

Meeting Expenses $ 3,800.00 $ 3.800.00
Information Systems $309.19 $ 309.19

HR $168.65 $ 168.65
Gen Admin $ $168.65 $ 168.65

Payroll and Accounting $ -
$309.19 $ 309.19

TOTAL $ 14,044.32 $ 955.68 $ 15,000.00
6Indirect As A Percent of Direct .8%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NiCRA) for JSl Research and Training Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

Food Safety Program

JSl Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC/ Page 1 of l
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Healthcare Acquired Infections

New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Contractor Name; JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Senfces

Budget Period: FY20

Total Program Cost

Line item Direct indirect TobI

1. Total Salaty/Waoes $  15.675.66 $ $  15.675.68

2. Emplovee Benefib %  5.956.76 s $  5,956.76

3. Consultants S s 8

4. Equipment: S  470.27 8 $  470.27

Rental S s 8

Repair and Matitenance s $ 8

Purchase/Deprecialion % 8 8

5. Supplies: S  1,097.30 8 .$ 1.097.30

Educatlonal 8 8

Lab S 8 8

Pharmacy $ S 8

Medical $ S 8

Office s 8 8

6. Travel 8 8

7. Occupancv %  1.567.57 8 $  1.567.57

8. Current Expenses S  1.254.05 8 $  1.254.05

Telephone $ 8 8

Postage $ 8 8

Subscriptions $ 8 8

Audit and Leoal $ 8 8

Insurance S 8 8

Board Expenses s S 8

9. Software $ 8 8

10. MarketinQ/Communications $ 8

11. Staff Education and TrainirK] S  313.51 8 8  313.51

12. Sut>conlracta/AQreements 8 8

13. Other (spedlic detals mandatory): $ 8 $

Meetlna Materiab S  1,000.00 8  1,000.00
8

8

8

fn/brmslibn Systems $862.16 $  862.16

HR 8470.27 $  470.27

Gen Admin s 8470.27 8  470.27

Payrol and Accounting s $662.16 $  862.16

TOTAL $  27,3)5.14 $  2,664.88 8  30,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.7*

The federaly approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) (or JSI Research and Trainiig Institute. Ir>c. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupartcy, equipment.
gei>eral office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accountirtg and payrd, human
resources and staff deveiopmenl. and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for applcation of the NICRA b
on salaryfwages only including hoHay. sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training insUtute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-DPHS^34>UBLIC/

Healthcare Acquired Infections

Page 1 of
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HIV-CDC

New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research ft Trainlrtg Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Servicet

Budget Period: FY20

Uine Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect ToUl

t. Total Salatv/Waaes $  22.972.97 8 8  22.972.97
2. Employee Benefits $  8,729.73 8 8  8.729.73
3. Consulants S 8 8

4. Equipment: i  689.19 8 8  669.19

Rental $ s ft

Repair and Makttenance $ $ ft

Purchase/Depredation $ 8 ft

5. Supplies: i  1.608.11 8 8  1.608.11

Educational 8 ft

Lab S s ft

Pharmacy S $ ft

Medical S s ft

Office S 8 ft

6. Travel $ $ 8

7. Occupancy S  2,297.30 8 8  2.297.30

8. Cunreni Expenses S  1,837.84 8 8  1.837.84
Telephone 8 s ft

Postaae $ 8 ft

Subscriptions $ s ft

Audit and Leoal $ $ ft

Insurance 8 8 ft

Board Expenses 8 $ ft

9. Software 8 $ ft

10. Marketina/Communications ft ft

11. Staff Education and Tralnina 8  4S9.46 ft 8  459.46
12. Sut>coniracts/Aareements ft ft

13. Other (specific details mandatory): 8 ft ft

Prevention Supples 8  40,000.00 8  40,000.00
Caoadtv buldina. marketinQ. and events 8  17,500.00 8  17.500.00

S ft

ft

Informadon Systems 81.263.51 8  1.263.51

HR 8689.19 8  689.19

Gen Admin 8 8689.19 8  689.19
Payrol and Accounting 8 81.263.51 8  1.263.51

TOTAL 8  .98,094.80 8  3,905.40 8  100,000.00
Indlract As A Ptrcsnt of DImct 4.1%

The (ederaly approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Trainkig Institute. Inc. includes
fringe t>enefit$ (38% ol salary) and other general operating costs to support project acUvilies including occupancy, equipment,
general office suppBes. telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accountirtg and payrol. human
resources and slafl development, aid general admirastrative support costs. The approved t>asis for appBcation of the NICRA is
on salaryAvages only including hoiday. sick and vacatkm.

JSI Research Tralnkig Institute. Inc. d/lt/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018.DPHS-03-PtJBLIC/

HIV-CDC

Page l of 1
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HIV • Rebates

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name; JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for PutiUc Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total Salarv/Waoes $  84.054.07 s $  84.054.07

2. Emplovee Benefts 5  31.940.54 S $  31.940.54

3. ConsullarU $ $ $

4. Equ^eni: 5  2,521.62 $ $  2.621.62

Rental 5 s $

Repair and Maimertance s $ $

Purchase/Depreciation s 5 $

5. Sifpfias; S  5.883.78 $ $  5,883.78

Educational $ $

Lab $ 5 $

Pharmacy % s $

Medical S 5 $

Office s $ $

6. Travel $  2.000.00 S $  2,000.00

7. Ocojjarcy S  8.405.41 s $  8.405.41

8. Current Expenses S  6.724.32 s $  6,724.32

Telephone % s $

Postage % 5 $

Subscriptions s $ $

Audit and Leoal s $ $

Insurance $ 5 $

Board Expertses s s $

9. Software 5 S $

10. • MarketinglCommunications s 5

11, Stall Education arxl Trainina i  1.681.08 S $  1.681.08

12. SUxontracts/Agreements $  5.000.00 $ $  5.000.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): 5 5 $

HfV Assessmers ParticiDani Incentives $  15.000.00 $  15.000.00

Tax Prep Services S  10.000.00 $  10.000.00

Capadtv buikJirxi. maritetina. and events S  62.500.00 $  62.500.00

$

Infonrtalion Systems $4,622.97 $  4.622.97

HR $2,521.62 $  2.521.62

Gen Admin $ $2,521.62 $  2,521.62
Payroll and Accounting $ $4,622.97 $  4,622.97

TOTAL S  235.710.82 $  14,289.18 $  250.000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 6.1%

The federaly approved Negotiated indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research arxi Training Instltule. Ina irxdudes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities irxAiding occupancy, equipment,
general ofTice supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information tiystems. accounting and payrol. iunan
resouces and staff developmerA and general administrative support costs. The approved t>asis for application of the NICRA is on
seiary/wages only induding hotidsy. sid( and vacatioa

JSI Research Training Instltuts, Inc. dAVa Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-OPH$-03-PUBLIC/

HIV • Rebates

Pagei of
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Home Voiting Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research A Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professionil Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Line Item

;  Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

t. Total SaiaryiWaqes i  91.891.89 s 8  91.891.89

2. Emplovee Benefits $  34,918.92 s 8  34.918.92

3. Consultants S s 8

4. Equiomenl: S  2.756.76 s 8  2.756.76

Rental $ 5 8

Repair and Maintenance s 8 8

Purchase/Depreciation s 8 8

5. Supplies: $  6.432.43 8 8  6.432.43

Educational s 8 8

Lab s 8 8

Pharmacy i 8 8

Medical s 8 8

Office s 8 8

6. Travel $  2.500.00 $ 8  2.500.00

7. Occupancy $  9.189.19 % 8  9,169.19

8. Current Expenses $  7.351.35 8 8  7.351.35

Telephone $ 8 8

Postage i 8 8

Subscriptions s 8 8

Audit and Legal $ 8 8

.  Insurance $ 8 8

Board Expenses $ 8 8

9. Software $ 8 8

10. Marketinq/Communications s 8 8

11. Staff Education and Trafeiina S  1.837.84 8 8  1.637.84

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements 8 8

13. Other (spedftc details mandatory): $ 8 8

Learning Exchanges $  6.000.00 8  6.000.00

Core Training S  20.000.00 8  20.000.00

CQI $  2.500.00 8  2.500.00
HFA Trainina & Supports 8  20.000.00 8  20.000.00

fn/brmation Systems 85.054.05 8  5.054.05

HR 82.756.76 8  2.758.76

Gen Adtmn s 82.756.76 8  2.758.76

Payml and Accounting s 85.054.05 8  5.054.05

TOTAL $  205,378.38 8  18,621.62 8  221,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 7.6%

The federate approved Negotiated Indkect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research artd Training Institute. Irtc. Includes

fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities irtduding occupartcy, equipment,
general office supples, telecommunications artd other current expenses, information systems, accoundrig and payrol. human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for appication of the NiCRA is
on satary/wages only including hoiday. sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training institute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health institute

RFP-2018^PHS-03-PUBLIC/

Home Visitiig Program
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Home Visiting • MCH Bkxk Grant

New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Contractor Name; JSI Research & Training institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Heatth ProfesslonaJ Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct indirect Total

1. Total Salarv/Waoes S $

2. Emplovae Benefits S s

3. Consullants $ $ $

4. Eauloment: $ s

Rental $ $ $

Repair arxl MaintertarKe S S $

Purchase/Depredafion S $ s

5. Supplies: $ s

Educationel s $

Lab s $ $

Pharmacy s s s

Medical s S s

Office $ s s

6. Travel s S s

7. Occupancy $ %

8. Cuneni Ermertses s $

Tetephone s $ $

Postage $ s $

Subscriptions s i %

Audll and Legal s $ %

insurance s s s

Board Expenses s $ s

9. Soflware s $ $

10. Marketiirg/Communications s s

11. Staff Education arxl TrairMrxi $ s

12. Subcontracts/Agreements s 21.425.00 s $  21.425.00
13. Other (spedfic details marxlatorv): s - s s

Partidpant irtcentives s 2.576.00 $  2.575.00
s

$ $

$

InfyrniaOon Systim s

HR $

GenAdtnn s $

PaymM and Accounting s • s

TOTAL $ 24,000.00 $ $  24,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

The federaSy approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. indudes

fringe t>ef)efits (38% of salary) arxl other gerteral operating costs to support project activities Including occupancy, eqtipmenl.
general office s^rplles. telecommunications and other current ei^renses. Information systems, accounting artd payroO. human

resources arwl stafi development, and gerteral administrative sipport costs. The apprt>ved trasis for application of the NICRA Is
on sataryAvages only liKludirrg holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute. ItK. dAVa Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLia

Home VIsitirtg - MCH Block Grant

Page 1 of 1
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Immunization Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Researclt & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SalarvAVaaes S  29,548.21 s $  29.548.21

2. Employee Benefits $  11,228,32 s $  11.228.32

3. Consultants $ s $

4. Eoulomenl: S  886.45 s $  686.45

Rental s $ $

Repair and Mainlenance s s $

Purchase/PeDreciation s s $

S. Supplies: S  2,068.37 s $  2,068.37

Educational $ s $

Lab s s $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ s $

6. Travel $  335.81 s $  335.81

7. Occuoancv $  2,954.82 s $  2,954.82

8. Currenl Expenses S  2.363.86 $ $  2,363.66

Telephone s $ $

Postaae $ $ $

Subscriptions s s $

Audit and Legal $ s $

Insurance $ s $

Board Expenses s $ $

9. Software s $ $

10. MarketinofCommunications S  5.000.00 $ $  5.000.00

11. Staff Education and TrainInQ $  590.96 s $  590.96

12. Subcontracts/Agreements S  30.000.00 s $  30,000.00

13. Other (specific detais mandatory): s s $

Conference S  5.000.00 $  5,000.00
$

$

$

tnfoemaOon Systems $1,625.15 $  1,625.15

HR $886.45 $  886.45

Gen Admin $ $866.45 $  886.45

Payrol and Accounting s $1,625.15 $  1,625.15

TOTAL $  89,976.80' $  5,023.20 $  95,000.00

indlract As A Percent of Direct 5.6%

Ttie federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) (or JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. Includes
fringe t>enefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general ofTne supplies, telecommunicadons and other current expenses, information systems. accounUng and payrol. human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only including hoiday. sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institule. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC/

Immunization Program
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Medical Reserve Corps Coordination (MRC)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSl Research & Training Institute, IrK.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total Salarv/Waoes S  10.648.64 $ $  10.648.64

2. Emptovee BeneTits S  4,046.49 s $  4.046.49

3. Consukants $ $ $

4. Equipment: 6  319.46 s $  319.46

Rental s $ $

Repair and Maintertance s $ $

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: $  745.41 $ $  745.41

Educational s $ $

Lab s $ $

Pharmacy $ s $

Medical $ s $

Office $ $ $

6. Travel S  100.00 s $  100.00

7. Occupancv S  1,064.86 $ $  1.064.86

8. Current Expenses S  851.69 $ $  851.89

Telephone $ $ $

Postage $ $ $

Subscriptions $ s $

Audit and Legal $ s $

Insurance s $ $

Board Expenses $ s $

9. Software s s $

10. Marketing/Communications $ s $

11. Staff Education and Training $  212.97 s $  212.97

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ $

13. Other (spectTic details mandatorv): S $ $

Meeting and Training Supples S  200.00 $  200.00

Information Systems S585.68 $  585.68

HR $319.46 $  319.46

Gen Admin s $319.46 S  319.46

Pavrot and Accounttnq s $585.68 $  585.68

s $ $

TOTAL $  18,189.72 $  1,810.28 $: 20,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Tne lederaly approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) tor JSl Researcn and Training institute, inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities itxAjding occupancy, equipment,
general olTice supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payrol. human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for appfcation of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSl Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBLIC/

Medical Reserve Corps Coordination (MRC)

Page 1 of 1
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PH Crisis Response

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research ft Training Institute, Irtc.

Budget Request for PuMIc Hetltri Proftssloruil Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Line item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SalarvfWaaes S  3,700.00 $ ft 3.700.M

2. Emptoyae Benefits S  1,406.00 S ft 1,406.00

3. Cortsulants s $ ft

4. Equipment: S  111.00 s ft 111.00

Rental i $ ft

Repair and Maintenance % $ s

Purcriase/Depredation $ s ft

5. Supples: $  253.00 $ ft 253.00

Educational s $ ft

Lab $ s $

Pharmacy $ s ft

Medical % s ft

Office s $ ft

6. Travel s S

7. Occupaf>cv $  370.00 ft ft 370.00

8. Current Expenses t  296.00 ft S  296.x

Telepfione S ft ft

Postaoe % ft ft

Subscriptions s ft ft

Audit and Leoal s ft ft

Insurance $ ft ft

Board Expenses s ft ft

9. Software $ ft ft

10. Merketinq/Communications $ ft

11. Staff Education and Traininq S  74.00 s ft 74.x

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements s ft

13. Otrier (specific details mandatory): % s ft

ft

ft

ft

ft

Information Systems ft203.50 ft 203.x

HR ftlll.OO ft 111.x

Gen Admin $ $111.00 ft 111.x

fayml and Accounting $ $203.50 ft 203.x

TOTAL I  6,210,00 ft 629.00 ft 6,839.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.1%

Trie federely approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NiCRA) for JSi Research and Training institute, inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities oKluding occupancy, equipment,
general ofTica supples. tetecommunicaUons arxl otrier current expenses, information systems, accounting artd payrol, riuman
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. Trie approved basis for appication of trie NICRA is
on satary/woges only nduding ridday. sick arxl vacation.

JSi Researcri Training Institute, IrK. d/bfa Community Heairi institute

RFP.2018.DPHS^3-PUBLiC/

PH Crisis Response

Page 1 of 1
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Public HaaRh Emaroancy Praparadna** (PHEP)

New Hampshire Depertmeitt of Heatth and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Instltuts, Inc.

Budget Request (or: Public Health Profassiorul Support Servicas

Budget Period: FY20

Total Proflrim Cost

Una Item CMred indlred Tdat

1. Total SalarWWaoes S  51,989.17 S S  51,989.17

2. Emolovee Benefits 5  19,755,89 $ S  19.755.89

3. Consultartts S %

4. Eouipment: S  1.559.68 S S  1.559.68

Rental

Rapair and Maimanance s S

Purchase/Deoradation s S

<i SuooHas- S  3,639.24 s S  3,639,24

Educational $ s

Lab s J

Ptnaimacv s s

Medical $

Office s s

6. Travel S  200.00 s S  200,00

7. Occuoancv S  5,198.92 s S  5,198,92

8. Current Exoenses S  4,159.14 s S  4,159.14

Tetephone 5 %

Postaoe $ %

Subscriptiora %

Audit and Leoal % s

Insurance s s

Board Exoenses $ 6

9. SoltMere $ s $

10. Markeino/Communications s $

11. Staff Education and Trainina S  1.039,78 s $  1.039,78

12.. Subcontracts/Aoraemenis s

13. Other (specific detais marxlatorv): s

Web^sed Colaboration System %  8120.00 S  8.120.00

Preparedness Corference Supper $  10.000.00 S  10.000.00

Meetina & TraHno Suoofias S  500.00 S  500.00

IntorTTatton Svslarm S  2.859.41 S  2,859.41

HR S  1.559.68 S  1,559.66

Gen Adrrsn S  1.559.68 S  1.559.68

Pavrof and AccourMina S  2.859.41 $  2.859.41

s %

1 TOTAL S  106,161.82 S  8,838.18 5  115,000.00

Indract As A Parcant of Diract

Tba fadarafy approved Nagotiatad Indiract Cost Rats Agraefnant (NICRA) tor JSI Rasaarcb and Tranrtg Irtstituta. Inc indudas
(rings banafits (38% of salary) and otoar ganerai operating costs to support projact actrvitias including occupancy, aquiprnanl.
general olTica suppias, lelacomfTiurwcalioni atvf other currant axpansas, information syslams, accounting and payret. human
resources aivl staff davalopmant. arid gartaral admnstrativa support costs. The approved basis tor apptcation of the NCRA is on
salary/wages only Induding hotday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Trainiig Instituta. Inc. dtola Community Health Institute

RFP-20ie-OPHS-03.PUBUCf

Public HeaHh Emergency Preparedness (PHEP)
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CDC Lead Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name; JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for; Public Heaith Professional Support Services

Budget Period:SPY 2021

'  ...

Line Item • ' , '

Total Program Cost

r  Direct .  indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Waqes $  31,945.42 $ $  31,945.42

2. Employee Benefits $  12,139.26 $ $  12,139.26

3. Consultants $ $ $

4. Equipment; $  958.36 $ $  958.36

Rental $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Suppiies: $  2.236.18 $ $  2,236.18

Educational $ $ $

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ $ $

6. Travel $  300.00 $ $  300.00

7. Occupancy $  3,194.54 $ $  3,194.54

8. Current Expenses $  2,236.18 $ $  2,236.18

Telephone $ $ $

Postage $ $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $

Audit and Leqai $ $ $

insurance $ $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Softv/are $ $ $

10. Marketing/Communications $ $ $

11. Staff Education and Training $  638.91 $ $  638.91

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $

Meetings & Conference $  17,000.00 $  17,000.00

Educational Outreach $  35.715.43 $  35,715.43

Health Promotion $

Information Systems $1,757.00 $  1,757.00

HR $958.36 $  958.36

Gen Admin $ $958.36 $  958.36

Payroll and Accounting $ $1,757.00 $  1,757.00

TOTAL $  106,364.28 $  5,430.72 $  111,795.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

I he rederaiiy approved Negotiated indirect Cost Kate Agreement (NIUKA) for Jbi Kesearch and I raining institute, inc. includes
fringe benefits {38% of salary) and other generai operating costs to support project activities inciuding occupancy, equipment,
general office suppiies, teiecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroii. human
resources and staff development, and generai administrative support costs. The approved basis for appiication of the NiCRA is
on saiary/wages oniy inciuding hoiiday. sick and vacation.

JSi Research Training institute, inc. d/b/a Community Heaith Institute

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLiC Page 1 of 1
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Climate and Health Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Publie Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2021

Total Program Cost

Line Item Direct Indirect ToUi

V Total Salatv/Wages $ 12,032.46 $ $ 12,032.46

2. Emdovee Benefits S 4,572.32 $ $ 4,572.32

3. Consultants S . $ $ -

4. Eguioment: $ 360.97 $ $ 360.97

Rental $ - $ $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $

Purchase/Depreciation s - $ $ -

S. Supplies; s 842,27 $ $ 842.27

Educational $ . $ $ -

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ 5 $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ $ $

6. Travel $ $ -

7. Occupancy s 1,203.24 $ $ 1,203.24

8. Cunent Expenses $ 962.59 $ $ 962.59

Telephone s - $ $ -

Postage i $ $

Subscriptions s S $

Audit and Legal s S $

Insurance s $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $

10. MarVeting/Communications s • 6 $ •  -

11. Staff Education and Training s 240.65 $ $ 240.65

12. Subcontracts/Agreements s 10,000.00 $ $ 10,000.00

13. Other (spedfrc details mandatory): s - $ $ -

Curriculum Development & Logistics s 5,500.00 $ 5,500.00

$ •

Information Systems $661.78 $ 661.78

HR $360.97 $ 360.97

Gen Admin $ $360.97 $ 360.97

Payroll and Accounting s -
$661.78 $ 661.78

TOTAL s 35,714.60 $ 2,045.60 $ 37,760.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 5.7%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is on
salaryAvages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018.DPHS-O3-PUBLIC

Contractor In:

Page 1 of 1 Date



EPA Lead Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2021

Line Item

Total Program Cost j

•• Direct Indirect Total 1

1. Total SalaryAWaqes $  14,398.91 $ $  14,398.91

2. Employee Benefits $  5,471.58 $ $  5.471.58

3. Consultants $ $ $

4. Equipment: $  431.97 $ $  431.97

Rental $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: $  1.007.92 $ $  1.007.92

Educational $ $ $

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ $ $

6. Travel $  100.00 $ $  100.00

7. Occupancy $  1,439.89 $ $  1,439.89

8. Current Expenses $  1,007.92 $ $  1,007.92

Telephone $ $ $

Postage $ $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $

Audit and Legal $ $ $

Insurance $ $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $

10. Marketing/Communications $ $ $

11, Staff Education and Training $  287.98 $ $  287.98

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $

Meetings & Conference $  10,106.01 $  10,106.01

Educational Outreach $  3.300.00 $  3,300.00

$

Intormaiion Systems $791.94 $  791.94

HR $431.97 $  431.97

Gen Admin $ $431.97 $  431.97

Payroll and Accxiunting $ $791.94 $  791.94

TOTAL $  37,552.18 $  2,447.82 $  40,000.00 1

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC/ Page 1 of 1

Contractor lnitial?''^[^''t^
Date



EPHT Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: rY21

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SalaryAVages $  9,277.88 $ $  9,277.88

2. Employee Benefits $  3,525.59 $ $  3,525.59

3. Consultants S $ $

4. Equioment: S  278.34 $ $  278.34

Rental $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ s $

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: S  649.45 $ $  649.45

Educational $ $ $

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ $ $

6. Travel S  335.92 $ $  335.92

7. Occupancy S  927.79 $ $  927.79

8. Current Expenses $  742.23 s $  742.23

Telephone $ $ $

Postage $ $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $

Audit and Legal $ $ $

Insurance $ $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $

10. Marketing/Communications $ $ $

11. Staff Education and Training $  185.56 $ $  185.56

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $  50.000.00 $ $  50.000.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $

Printing

Meeting Expenses

$  1.250.00 $  1.250.00

$  1.250.00 $  1.250.00

Information Systems $510.28 $  510.28

HR S278.34 $  278.34

Gen Admin $ $278.34 $  278.34

Payroll and Accounting $ $510.28 $  510.28

TOTAL ' %  68,422.76 $  1,677.24 $  70,000.00

2Indirect As A Percent of Direct .3%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA Is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
EPHT Program

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC/ Page 1 of i

Contractor Initials

Date



Food Safety Progrem

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Narrte: JSI Research & Training IrtstKuta, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health PrefeaalOfUl Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Line Item

. Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

t. Total Saiarv/Wages $  7.027.03 s $  7.027.03

2. Emplovee Benefits S  2.670.27 % $  2.670.27

3. Consultants s s $

4. Equipment; S  210.81 s $  210.61

Rental $ s $

Repair ar>d Maintertance $ s $

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: S  491.89 $ $  491.89

Educational S s $

Lab S $ $

Pharmacy s s $

Medical s s $

Offica s s $

6. Travel s $

7. Occupancy S  702.70 $ $  702.70

8. Current Expenses S  562.16 $ $  562.16

Teleohorre S s $

Postage s $ $

Subscriptions s $ $

Audit and Legal s $ $

Insurance s s $

Board Expenses s s $

9. Software s s $

10. Marketing/Communications s s $

11. Staff Education and Traintirg S  140.54 $ $  140.54

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $

13. Other (specific details mandatory): s s $

Meeting Expenses & Webinar Recording S  2.000.00 $  2.000.00

$

Information Systams S386.49 $  386.49

HR $210.81 $  210.81

Gen Admrn S $210.81 $  210.81

Payroll and Accounting s $386.49 $  386.49

TOTAL $  13,805.40 $  1,194.60 $  16,000.00

Indirect At A Percent of Direct B.7%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (3B% of salary) and other general operatirtg costs to support project activities irtduding occupancy, equipment,
general ofTtce supplies, telecommunications arto other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources artd staff development, artd gerteral administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is on
salary/wages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Tratnirtg Institute. Inc. d/bfa Community Health Institute

RFP-201S-OPHS-03-PUBLIC/

Food Safety Program

Page i of 1
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Date_5/^^f/



Healthcare Acquired Infections

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Putillc Health Professional Support Servtces

Budget Period: FY21

Total Program Cost

Line Item Direct . Indirect Total

t. Total Salary/Wages $  15,675.68 s $  15.675.68

2. Employee Benefits S  5,956.76 s $  5.956.76

3. Consultants S $ $

4. Equipment: S  470.27 5 $  470.27

Rental $ 5 $

Repair artd Maintenance s S $

Purchase/Depredation s S $

5. Supplies: S  1,097.30 $ $  1.097.30

Educational S $

Lab s « $

Pharmacy $ 5 $

Medical s S $

Office s S $

6. Travel $ $

7. Occupancy S  1,567.57 $ $  1.567,57

6. Current Expenses $  1,254,05 $ $  1.254.05

Telephone s s $

Postage $ 5 $

Subscriptions s $ $

Audit and Leqal s 5 $

InsuratKe $ $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software s $ $

to. Marketinq/Communications $ $

11. Staff Education and Training S  313.51 $ $  313.51

12. Sutxxintracts/Aqreements 5 $

13. Other (specific details mandatory): s % $

Meeting Materials S  1,000.00 $  1,000.00

$

$

$

Intimation Systems $862.16 $  662.16

HR $470.27 $  470.27

Gen Admin $ $470.27 $  470,27

Payroll and Accounting $ $862.16 $  862.16

TOTAL 27,335.14 $  t, . 2,664.86 $  30,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.7%

fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities Including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources arrd staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salatv/wages only indudir)g holiday, sick artd vacation. j

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health institute

RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PU8LIC/

Healthcare Acquired Infections

Page 1 of 1
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HIV - CDC

New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Tralnirtg Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period; FY21

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

t. Total SataryfWaoes S  22.972.97 S $  22,972.97
2. Employee Benefits S  8.729.73 S $  8,729.73

3. Consulants S s s

4. Equipment: S  689.19 s $  689.19

Rental $ s $

Repair and MaintenarKe s s $

PurchasefDeoredation s $ $

5. Supples: $  t,606.11 s $  1.608.11
Educational s s

Lab S $ $

Pharmacy s s $

Medical s s $

Office s t $

6. Travel $ i $

7. OccuparKV S  2.297.30 s $  2,297.30
8. Current Expenses S  1.837.84 s $  1,837.64

Telephone S s $

Postage $ $ $

Subscriptions s s $

Audit and Legal $ s $

Insurance s s $
Board Expenses $ $ s

9. Software $ $ $

10. MarKetinq/Communlcations $ $

11. Staff Education and Training S  459.46 i $  459.46

12. Subcontracts/Agreements s s

13. Other (spetiTic detafts mandatory); S s s

Prevention Supples S  40.000.00 $  40.000.00
CapacitY buikHng. marketing, and events $  17.500.00 $  17.500.00

s $

$
/nformstion Systams $1,263.51 $  1.263.51

HR $689.19 $  689.19

Gen Admin s $689.19 $  689.19
Hayrof end Accounting s $1,263.51 $  1,263.51

TOTJU. 1 S  96,094.60 $  3.905.40 $  - -100,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 4.1%

The federaly approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. Includes
fringe benefits (38% of satary) and other general operating costs to support project actMUes including occupancy, equipment,
general office supples, telecommunications ar>d other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payrol, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for applcation of the NICRA is
on salaryAMages only including hoUay. sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc. ti/bla Community Heath Institute

RFP-2018-DPHS433.PUBLIC/

HIV • CDC

Page 1 of 1
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Date



HtV - Rebates

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training IrtsUtute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professlorul Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Line item

Total Program Cost

■  Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SalarvfWaaes S  78.270.27 8 8  78.270.27

2. Employee Bertefits S  29,742.70 8 8  29,742.70

3. Consulants s 8 $

4. Equipment: S  2.348.11 8 8  2.348.11

Rental $ 8 8

Repair and Maintenance $ 8 8

Purchase/Depreciation s 8 8

5. Supples: i  5.478.92 8 8  5.478.92

Educational 8 8

Lab S 8 8

Pharmacv 8 8 8

Medical $ 8 8

Cmice $ 8 8

6. Travel S  1.200.00 8 8  1.200.00
7. Occupancy *  7.827.03 8 8  7.827.03
8. Current Expenses 8  6.261.62 8 8  6.261.62

Telephone 8 8 8

Postage 8 8 $

Subscriptions 8 8 8

Audit and Legal 8 8 8

Insurance 8 8 8

Board Expenses $ 8 8

9. Software 8 8 8

10. Marketlno/Communications 8 8

11. Staff Education and Tralninq 8  1.565.41 8  1,565.41
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements 8  4.000.00 8 8  4,000.00
13. Other (spectfic details mandatory): 8 8 8

HIV Assessment Participant IrKentives 8  10.000.00 8  10,000.00
Tax Prep Services 8  10.000.00 8  lo.ooo.m

Capacity building, marketing, and events 8  30.000.00 8  30,000.00
8

Information Systems 84.304.86 8  4.304.86

HR 82.348.11 8  2.348.11

Gen Admin 8 82.348.11 8  2.348.11
Hayrol and Accounting 8 84.304.86 8  4.304.86

TOTAL 8  .186,694.06 8  13,305.94 8  200,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 7.1%

The federal/ approved Negotiated indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NiCRA) for JSi Research and Trainirtg institute, Inc. irtdudes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities ir>duding occupancy, equipment,
gerterai office supples, telecommunications and other current expertses. information systems, accounting and payrol human

resources and staff development, artd gerterai administrative support costs. The approved basis for appication of the NICRA is

on salary/Meges only indudng hoUay. sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training institute, inc. d/b/a Community HeaRh institute

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLiC/

HIV • Rebates

Page 1 of 1
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Home Visiting Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training btstltute. Inc.

Budget Request for PubOc Health Professloruil Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Line Item

Totaf Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total Salarv/Wages S  91.891.89 s S  91.891.89

2. Emplovee Benefits $  34.918.92 s S  34.918.92

3. Consultants S s s

4. Equipment: $  2.756.76 s S  2.756.76

Rental s s s

Repair and Makitenance $ s s

Purchase/Depredation s $ s

5. Supplies: S  6.432.43 s S  6,432.43

Educational s s s

Lab $ s s

Pharmacy s s s

Medical s s s

Offica s $ s

6. Travel S  2.500.00 % S  2.500.00

7. Occupancy $  9,169.19 $ S  9,169.19

8. Current Expenses $  7,351.35 $ S  7.351.35

TeleDhone s s s

Postage s s s

Subscriptions s s s

Audit and Legal s $ s

Insurance s s s

Board Expenses $ $ s

9. Software $ s $

to. Marlteting/Communicalions s $ s

11. Staff Education and Trainino S  1.837.84 s S  1.837.84

12. Sut>contrads/Aoreements s s

13. Other (specific detaSs mandatory): $ 8 s

Learning Exchanges S  6.000.00 $  6.000.00

Core TralnirK] S  20.000.00 S  20.000.00

COl S  2.500.00 S  2,500.00

HFA Training & Supports i  20,000.00 S  20.000.00

InfomeHon Systems SS.054.05 S  5.054.05

HR S2.756.76 S  2.756.76

Gen Admin i $2,756.76 S  2,756.76
Payml and AccounOng $ S5.O54.0S S  5,054.05

TOTAL $  205,37«J8 S  15,621.62 S  221,000.00

Irtdirect As A Percent of Direct 7.6*

TTte (ederaly approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) (or JSI Research and Trainhg Institute. Inc. indudes
fringe twnefits (38* of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general oflice supples, telecommunicalions and other current expenses, kiformalion systems, accounting and payroi. human
resources and staff development, end general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community HeaBh Institute

RFP.2016^PHS-03J>UBLIC/

Home Visitiig Program

Page 1 of t
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Home ̂siting • MCH Bbck Grant

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research S Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: Pr21

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct ' Indirect Total

1. Total Satary/Waqes $ $

2. Emplovee Benefits s s

3. Consulants S s s

4. Eguipment: s s

Rental i $ s

Repair artd Maintenance s $ s

Purchase/Deoreciation s $ s

5. SuDoies: s $

Educational s $

Lab s $ s

Pharmacv $ $ $

Medical $ $ s

Office s % s

6. Travel $ s s

7. Occupancy $ s

8. Current Expenses s $

Telephone $ s $

Postage s s s

Subscriptions $ s s

Audit ar>d Leoai s s s

Insurance $ $

Board Expenses s s $

9. Software s $ $

to. Marketlnq/Communications $ $

11. Staff Education and Training $ $

12. Subcontracts/Agreements S  21.425.00 s S  21.425.00

13. Other (specifK detaib mandatory): s s s

Participant incentives S  2.575.00 S  2,575.00

s

S $

s

Infymation Systems $

HR $

Gen Admin $ $

Hayrol and Accounting $ $

-  TOTAL $  24,000.00 $ $  24,000.00

0Indirect As A Percent of Direct .0%

The federaly approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, tetecommunicatlons and other cunent expenses, infonnation systems, accounting and payrol, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salaryAvages only irxdudlng holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute. IrK. d/b/a Community Heath InstMute

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC/

Home Visrtir>g - MCH Block Grant

Page 1 of 1
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Date



Immunization Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Line Item'

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Totel Salarv/Waqes S  29.548.21 S $  29,548.21

2. Emplovee Ber>eflts $  11.228.32 s $  11.228.32

3. 0>irsultants $ s $

4. Equipment: $  886.45 s $  886.45

Rental S $ $

Repair and Maintertance % $ $

Purchase/Depredation i s $

5. Supplies: S  2.068.37 s $  2.068.37

Educational $ $ $

Lab s $ $

Pfiarmacv s $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office s $ $

6, Travel $  335.81 $ $  335.81

7. OccuoarKV $  2.954.82 $ $  2,954.62

8. Current Expenses S  2.363.86 s $  2.363.86

Telephone s $ $

Postage 5 $ $

Subscriolions s $ s

Audit and Legal $ $ s

Insurance $ $ $

Board Expertses $ s $

9. Software s s $

10. Marketing/Commurucations S  5.000.00 $ $  5.000.00

11. Staff Education and Trainino $  590.96 $ $  590.96

12. Subcontracts/Agreements S  30.000.00 s $  30.000.00

13. Other (spedfic details mandatory): $ $ $

ConfererKe $  5.000.00 $  5,000.00

$

$

$

/rHbrmabon Systems $1,625.15 $  1.625.15

HR $886.45 $  886.45

GenAdnin $ $886.45 $  886.45

PayroK and Acaninting $ $1,625.15 $  1,625.15

TOTAL $  89,978.80 I  ■ 6,023.20 : $ 95,000.00

Indlroct As A Psrceint of Olrsct 5.6%

The federally approved Negotiated IrKlirect Cost Rate Agreement (NtCRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. ir>dudes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other ger>eral operating costs to support project activities including occupartcy. equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications artd other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and ger>erai admitvstrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only indudirtg holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Trainiitg Institute. Irtc. dA>/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBLia

Immunization Program

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials
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Medical Reserve Corps Coordir\atk>n (MRC)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Pubiie Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SaiaryfWaaes $  10.848.64 S 8  10.648.64

2. Employee Benefits $  4.048.49 S 8  4.046.49

3. Consultartts $ s 8

4. Eauioment: $  319.46 % 8  319.46

Rental $ $ 8

Repair and Maintenance S $ $

Purchase/Depreciation S $ 8

5. Supplies: S  745.41 s 8  745.41

Educational $ s s

Lab $ s $

Pharmacy $ s 8

- Medical s s 8

Office s $ 8

6. Travel S  100.00 s 8  100.00

7. Occupancy S  1.084.86 $ 8  1.064.86

8. Current Expenses S  851.89 $ 8  851.89

Telephone S s 8

Postaae $ $ 8

Subscriptions $ s 8

Audit and Legal $ s 8

InsurarKe $ $ s

Board Expenses s s 8

9. Software $ s 8

10. Marketing/Communications s $ $

11. Staff Education and Training $  212.97 s 8  212.97

12. Sut)contracts/Aareements s $ 8

13. Other (spedflc details mandatory): % % 8

Meeting and Training Supplies i  200.00 8  200.00

Infonnation Svsiems 8585.68 8  565.68

HR 8319.46 8  319.46

Gen Adnin $ 8319.46 8  319.46

PavmB and Accountino s 8585.68 8  585.68

$ 8 8

TOTAL $  18,189.72 8  1,810.28 8  20.000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Trainirtg institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) arxl other general operatirtg costs to su^wrt project activities ir>dudir>g occupar>cy. equipment,
gerterai ofTice supplies, telecommunications at>d other current expenses, information systems, accounting artd payroll, human
resources artd staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/wages only induding holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training institute. IrK. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC/

Medical Reserve Corps Coordirtation (MRC)

Page l of 1
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Pubtc HaatSi Emefgency Preparadrwu (PHEP)

Nsw Hafnpshire Department of HeaKh and Htiman Service*

Contractor Name: JS) Research * Training Instttute, Inc.

Budget Request for; PubHe lleslth Prelessiottal Support Service*

Budget Period; FY21

Lin* Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total Salarvrwaoes S  51.989.17 $ S  51.989.17

2. Employe* Pertefits S  19.755.69 $ S  19,755.69

3. Coruiitant* S s

4. Eouiocnera; S  1.559.66 S S  t.559.68

Rental S s

Repdr and Maintenanca s %

Purchas^eoredsticn s %

5. Supples; $  3.639.24 % $  3.639.24

Educational 5

Lab s 5

Ptiannacv s s

Msdieal s s

Ofltoa s s

6. Travel S  200,00 s S  200,00

7. Occuoanev 6  5196.92 i S  5,198.92

6. Current Exoertses %  4.159.14 s S  4.159.14

.Teleohone s 5

Postatte s %

Subscriptions 5 %

Auctt end Laoal 5 S

InsurarKa $

Board Erqrertses s

9. Software s

10. MarfcelinofCommunicetions $ s

11. Staff Education and Tcaintna 5  1.039,78 s S  1.039.78

12. Subconbacts/Aoreemenu s $

13, Otfter (spectfie details martdatory): t s s

Web-itased Colaboration System %  6,120.00 I  8.120.00

Preparedness Conferertce Suppon S  10.000.00 S  10.000,00

Meebno & Trainina Supclas S  500.00 $  500,00

Infofm&tktn Systems S  2.859.41 S  2,659.41

HR S  1.559.66 S  1.559.66

GenAAnin S  1.559.68 S  1.559.66

Aavrol andAceountino S  2.659.41 S  2.659.41

t $

TOTAL %  106,1<1.62 S  6,836.16 S  115,000.00

Indiraet As A Pfcanl of Oinet

Th« (Moraly spproved Negoiisad Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NCRA) tor JSI Researcti and Training Institute. Inc. todude*
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operatwg costs to support pro^ activiiies indudirtg occupartcy. equipment,
gerwral office supples, letocorranurfcatiofts artd otfter currerv expcrtses, Infcirmalien systems, aceountirtg and payrol. human
resources atxl staff devetopmem. and general acfeninistrative support costs. The approved basis tor applcabon of the NCRA is
on satoryAneges only indudirtg hdday. side and vacation.

JSI Researdt Training Institute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBLC/

Pubic Heafih Emergency Preparedrtess (PHEP)

Page t of t Date ^/ts



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, toss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law.^in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been Waluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, antl-
hacker, anti-spam, antl-spyware, and antl-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirementsniy Requireineius

=4
©i«M

Page 5 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all , other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and passyvord) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Williain M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17,

2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0004519471

y
Qa.

^3^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be alTlxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 23rd day of May A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY HEALTH

INSTITUTE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12. 2016. I further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's oftlce have been received and is in good standing as far as

this oFRcc is concerned.

Business ID: 742096

Certificate Number: 0004519464

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 23rd day of May A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

1, Joel H. Lamstein, of the JSl Research & Training Itistitute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, do hereby

certify that:

1. I am the duly elected President of the JSl Research & Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community

Health Institute:

2. By Unanimous Consent in Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2008 Annual Meeting, the

following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSl Research &

Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dated October 24, 2008;

\

RESOLVED: Appointment of Jonathan Stewart as Director of the Community Health Institute

with the authority to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation.

)r^oing resolutions have

H>l ̂
3. I further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full

force and effect as of

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSl Research & Training Institute.

Inc., d^/a Community Health Institute this 2/»'**^dav of

Jo^ H. yamstein, PresidenI

STATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Merrimack

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this by Joel H. Lamstein.

Notary Public/Justi^d of the Peace
My Commission Expires: noURTNSY A. OAOTWO, Notoiy Public

My CommJtoton November 8,2022
V  • 1'-.- .

.i
J-

V
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^COKD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MIWDOnYYV)

9/9/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsements).

PRODUCER

Mason & Mason Technology Insurance Services, Inc.
458 South Ave.
Whitman, MA 02382

c^ajACT Judy Yeary

wJc No. Exn. (781) 447-5531 | fwc. Not:(7B1) 447-7230
ivearv^masonlnsure.com

INSIIRPRtSt APFORntNCi COVFRARF NAICF

INSURER A Great Northern Insurance Co. 20303

INSURED , «
John Snow Inc.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
World Education, Inc.
44 Farnsworth Street

Boston, MA 02210-1206

INSURER a Federal Insurance Comoanv 20281

INSURER C Executive Risk Indemnity 35181

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F <

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
iNi^n

SUBR
WVD POUCY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
/MM/nniVYYYI

POUCY EXP
IMM/nn/YYYY\ UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

«  OCCUR 35873320 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

EACH OCCURRFNCF
,  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED j  1,000,000

MFD FXP fAnv one oersoni
j  10,000

PFRRDNAI SADV INJURY
j  1,000,000

GFNFRAl AGGRFOATF
j  2,000,000

X

POLICY 1_J LAJ LOC
OTHER Combined Agg $10M

PROrx ICTR . COMP/OP AGG
.  Included

5

B AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

73546634 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT ,  1,000,000

X

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per oeraon) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

AU^ONLY

X
scHEDULED

ITOS

mm

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

X
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acadenlT s

$

B X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE 79861066 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

FACH OCCURRENCE
s  20,000,000

AGGREGATE
j  20,000,000

DEO RETENTIONS s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY ^ / n
ANY PROPRieTORff>ARTNER/EXECUTIVe 1 i^FICER/M^Mg^ EXCLUDED? | )
II yaa. deacrlbe undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPF RATIONS bMw

N/A

71733182 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

y PER OTH-
^ STATlfTF FR

Fi FACHACriDFNT
J  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
s  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
,  1,000,000

C

B

ERRORS & OMISSIONS

DIRECTORS & OFFICERS

82120859
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JSl Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human service fields.



Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Community Health Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire's
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social ser\nces
for all New Hampshire residents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and
Training Institute. Inc. and Affiliate (both non-profit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2018, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows lor the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and niaintcnance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatemeni, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and- the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

"An audit involves performing procedures lo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk



assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated rinancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, hut not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of ,ISI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
as of September 30, 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of
America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly slated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Jnformalion

We have previously audited the JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. and Affiliate
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated April 23. 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
consolidated comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended September
30, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, wc have also issued a report dated May I,
2019. on our consideration of JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. and AITiIiate's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of their compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
May 1,2019



JSI Research and Training Institute^ Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30. 2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

2018 2017

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work
Field advances - program
Employee advances

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment:

Furniture and equipment

Leasehold improvements

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net Propert)' and Equipment

Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

$  76.856.647

20.895,129

631.877

190.734

3.807

98.578.194

679.098

30.355

709,453

(671,248)

38.205

146.741

S  98,763,140

$  74.642.976

19.782.268

1.697.407

190,500

67.950

96.381.101

679,098

30.355

709,453

(651.423)

58.030

1 19.888

S  96459,019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings
Accrued vacation

Advances for program work
Loans payable - related party

Notes payable

Contingencies

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets:

Unrestricted

Temporarib' restricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  16.128.795

1.810.950

27.130.737

369.577

45,440.059

53.065.872

257.209

53.323.081

1 1.678.687

1,920.964

35,095.465

196.828

48,891.944

47.467,027

200.048

47.667.075

$  98,763,140 $ 96,559,019

Sec notes to consolidated financial statements.



.ISI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AiTdiate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

2018 2017

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Public Support and Revenue

Public Support:

Govemment grants and contracts:
U.S. Government $ 253,443,526 $ 271,426.627
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 6,104,553 5,258,877

Other grants and contracts 67,653.412 57,926 89!
Program income 148,646 99.859
Contributions 3,802,515 332.613
In-kind project contributions 2,600,580 14.444,515
Interest income 359.495 121.168

Total Unrestricted Support and Revenue 334.1 12,727 349,610.551

Expenses

Program Ser\'ices:

international programs 274,067.835 293.709.946
Domestic programs 20.894,935 19.653.591

Total Program Services 294.962.770 313.363.537

Supporting Services:

Management and General ^ 33.264,070 33.327.219
Fundraising 229,881 149,914

Total Supporting Services 33,493,951 33,477,133

Total Expenses 328.456,721 346,840,670

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets 5,656,006 2,769.881

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Program restricted net assets . 32.840

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets - 32,840

Increase (decrease) in net assets 5,656.006 2,802,721

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 47,667.075 44.864,354

Net Assets at End of Year S 53^23,081 $ 47,667,075

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended September 30,2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORTiNG SERVICES

TOTAL

EXPENSES

International

Prograins

Domestic

Programs Total

Management

And General Fundralsing Total 2018 2017

Salaries

Consullants

OKiperating Nalional

Salaries

T ravel

Alk^wancc «<: Trdiiung

Sulvcontracis

Equipment. Material and

Supplies

Other Costs

In-kind project c\pcn.ses

Depreciation

25.490.819

15.089.802

48.291.700

1 1.852.184

I0.944.82h

109.851.141

9.786.037

40.160.746

2.600.580

8.391.315

5.292.500

340

874.172

63.463

4.499.510

164.421

1.609.214

3.3.882.134

20.382.302

48.292.040

12.726.356

1 1.008.289

114.350.651

9.950.458

41.769.960

2.600.580

S  6.151.025 $

1.688.340

567.964

467.576

143.043

18.35)

220.300

23.987.646

19.825

140.554

5.250

141

22.438

61.498

6.291.579

1.693.590

567.964

467.717

143.043

40.789

220.300

24.049.144

19.825

40.17.3.713

22.075.892

48.860.004

1.3.194.073

M.151.332

1 14.391.440

10.170.758

65.8l9.1fM

2.600.580

19.825

40.871.378

22.364.241

.36.610.983

14.094.230

10.422,764

127.851.455

14.425.484

65.738.817

14.444.516

16.802

TOTAL EXPENSE $  274.067.835 20.894,935 $ 294.962.770 33,264.070 229,881 33.493,951 $ 328,456,721 S 346,840,670

See notes to con.solidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended September 30. 2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

2018 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Increase (Decrease) in net assets $ 5.656.006 $ 2.802.72
Adjustinenls to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 19,825 16,802
(increase) Decrease in receivables for program work (IJ 12.861) (1.284.050)
(Increase) Decrease in field advances - program 1.065.530 (26,655)
(Increase) Decrease in employee advances (234) 85.513

(increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses 64.143 (67.950)
(Increase) Decrease in other assets (26.853) (10,830)
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and

payroll withholdings 4.450,108 804,812
Increase (Decrease) in accrued vacation (1 10.014) 96,527
Increase (Decrease) in advances for program work (7.964.728) 4.453,041

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Operating Activities 2.040.922 6.869,931

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Loans made (196.828) (1.001.492)
Loans repaid 369.577 196,828
Acquisition of property and equipment

- (42,606)

Net Cash Provided (Used) By

Investing Activities 172,749 (847.270)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.213.671 6,022.661

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 74,642,976 68,620,315

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $  76356,647 S  74,642,976

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
on April 11, 1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and human ser\Mce agencies both in the United States and abroad.
Current funding is principally from the United States Agency for International Development and
the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education. Inc. (Affiliotc)
with such powers as arc typically accorded to a .sole member including the power of appointment
and removal of the World Education, Inc. board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to
the bylaws and certificate of incorporation of World Education, Inc., and the right to approve any
merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of World Education. Inc.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the stale of New Jersey.
Working in partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia. Africa, and
the United States, it provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-
formal adult education programs. These programs integrate functional education with relevant
problem-solving aspects of individual growth and national development such as health, nutrition,
family planning, childcare, refugee education, agricultural practices, literacy, and income
generation.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliate are tax exempt organizations under 501
(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. and World Education, Inc.. its' affiliate, (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual
basis of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. and its
affiliate in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States' of
America.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may
differ from those estimates.

Fair Value

The Organization values its qualifying assets and liabilities under a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The hierarchy consists of three
broad levels; Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities and have the highest priority, I.evei 2 inputs consist of observable inputs other
than quoted prices for identical assets, and Level 3 inputs have the lowest priority. The
Organization uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the
fair value of its assets and liabilities. When available, the Organization measures fair value using
Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily delerminable fair values and all inve.siments in
debt securities (marketable investments) arc measured at fair values based on quoted market prices
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
statement of activities. . .

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated depreciation.
Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective
assets over their estimated useful lives (5 - 7 years) of the related assets.

Revenue Recognition
The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements,
and grants with U.S. government agencies, primarily the United States Agency for International
Development and the United States Department of Health and Human Services. Revenues arc
recognized when the Organization incurs qualifying expenditures that are reimbursable under the
terms of the contracts, agreements or grants, or in accordance with the grantor's restrictions.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Revenue Recognition - continued
Unrestricted and restricted contributions are recognized as revenue at the date the pledge is made
or the gift is received, whichever is earlier.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.
Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted support and are then reclassified to unrestricted
net assets upon expiration of the time restriction. Temporarily restricted support, whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period, is shown as unrestricted support.

Donated Materials and $er\'ices

Donated materials and sendees are recorded as in kind project contributions at their estimated fair
market value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated
statement of activities. Donated services arc recognized if the services received create or enhance
non-financial assets or require specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those
skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is not a private foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material
changes to the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable
taxing authorities, federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required returns
in a timely manner including as permitted allowed extensions. Following administrative practice
of the taxing authorities, the tax years 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, remain open years subject to
examination and review.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) file separate
unconsolidated tax returns, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. files tax returns based on a
September 30"" year end and its affiliate files tax returns based on a June 30"* year end.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

10



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affdiate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Statement Presentation

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets based upon the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. For the
year ended September 30, 2018 there was no activity in permanently restricted net assets.

Prior Year Comparative Totals
fhe financial statements include prior-year summarized comparative information in total. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements for the year
ended September 30, 2017, from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassification

Certain amounts for 2017 have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At
times, certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States
Government. The uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the
assets of the financial institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a
financial loss to the Organization. However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these
accounts in the past and management believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

Fair Value

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Organization values its qualifying assets and liabilities under a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
are as follows:

11



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS - continued

Fair Value • continued

•  Level J - Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

•  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset
either directly or indirectly, including inputs from markets that are not considered to be
active.

•  Level- 2 - Unobservable inputs which reflect the Organi^tion's assessment of the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including
assumptions about risk.

A qualifying asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The following is a summary of fair values of investments which are measured on a recurring basis
using Level 1 inputs as recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at September
30,2018;

Current assets:

^  Cash and cash equivalents (invested) $ 63.194.532

$, 63,194,532

No assets or liabilities were measured at Level 2 or Level 3.

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities for the year ended September 30, 2018:

Unrestricted

Interest income $ 359,495

Total investment return % 359,495

12



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 5- RECEIVABLES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Receivables for program work are slated at Ihe amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a
provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment
of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off^through a charge to the valuation allowance
and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30. 2018
was $0.

Receivables for program work consist of the following at Septerhber 30, 2018:

U.S. Agency for Intemational Development $ 12.911.645
U.S. Department oftHcalth and Human Services 716.214

U.S. Department of State 2,219.003
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 847.669

Other - non-governmental 4,200.598

$ 20,895,129

NOTE 6 - LOANS RECEIVABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans receivable - related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans, due on demand,
from John Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on the loans. The
loans receivable balance at September 30. 2018 is $0.

13



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances are as follows:

Accumulated

Cost Depreciation Net
Furniture and equipment $ 679,098 $ (640,893) $ 38,205
Leasehold improvements 30,355 (30,355) -

S  709.453 S (67U48) $ 38,205

Depreciation expense was $19,825 for the year ended September 30, 2018.

NOTE 8 - OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following at September 30,2018:

Deposits $ 109,796

Artwork - donated 36.945

$  146,741

Donated artwork is recorded at a discounted appraised value at the date of gift.
\

NOTE 9 - ACCRUED VACATION

In accordance with formal policies, vacation was accrued at September 30, 2018 as follows:

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. $ 1,546.016

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) 264,934

$  1,810,950

14



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2018

NOTE 10 - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2018:

Other - non-govcmmcntal
Partnership for Supply Chain Management, inc. (related parly) $ 91.723
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation 20.858,284
Other 6.180.730

5  27,130,737

NOTE 11 - LOANS P AYABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans payable - related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans, payable on demand,
from John Snow, Inc.. a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on the loans. The
loans payable balance at September 30, 2018 is $369,577.

NOTE 12 - NOTES PAYABLE

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has a revolving line of credit established February 3, 2004 with
Citizens Bank of Massachusetts with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The revolving line of
credit was renewed on September 10, 2018. 'ITie loan is payable on demand. Interest is charged
by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 2019 and annually thereafter contingent upon performance. The
loan iscollateralizedby a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds
were borrowed during the year and as a result, as of September 30, 2018, the outstanding balance
is SO and no interest was incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30, 2018.

John Snow. Inc.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has an unsecured revolving line of credit established September
1, 2007 with John Snow. Inc. (a related party) with a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The
loan was renewed on July 1, 2016. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the
current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan is payable on demand and, in any event, on or prior to
June 30, 2018. The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year and as a
result, as of September 30, 2018, the outstanding balance is $0. No interest was incurred on this
loan during the year ended September 30. 2018. (See NOTE 17)
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 13-CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the
Organization are subject to audit. The Organization is. therefore, contingently liable for any
disallowed costs. Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an
audit, would be immaterial.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan
with no balance due at September 30. 2018. Management believes that the co-borrower is current
on the loan and that its collateral exceeds the balance due. (See NOTE 17)

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the United Stales Agency for International
Development (AID) on an annual basis. Asof September 30, 2018, actual indirect cost rates have
been approved by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through December 31. 2012
and World Education, Inc. through June 30, 2015. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to
the financial statements.

NOTE 14-TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted by donors as follows at September 30, 2018:

Program Services $ 257,209

During the year ended September 30, 2018. $5,000 of temporarily restricted net assets were
released from donor restriction by occurrence of events specified by the donor.

NOTE 15-SURPLUS REVENUE RETENTION

In accordance with the Massachusetts Division of Bureau Services. Regulation 808 CMR 1.03(7),
"if, through cost savings initiatives implemented consistent with programmatic and contractual
obligations, a non-profit Contractor accrues an annual net surplus from the revenues and expenses
associated with ser\'iccs provided to Departments which are subject to 808 CMR 1.00, the
Contractor may retain, for future use, a portion of that annual surplus not to exceed 20% of said
revenues. Surpluses may be used by the Contractor for any of its established charitable purposes,
provided that no portion of the surplus may be used for any non-reimbursable cost set forth in 808
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 15 - SURPLUS REVENUE RETENTION - continued

OMR 1.05, the free care prohibition excepted. Operational Services Division shall be responsible
for determining the amount of surplus that may be retained by each Contractor in any given year
and may determine whether any excess surplus shall be used to reduce future prices or be
recouped."

\

For the year ended September 30, 2018. the organization did not have an annual net surplus that
exceeded 20% of relevant Massachusetts revenues.

NOTE 16 - COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

The following is a schedule of expenditures with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts:

Receivables from program work at October 1, 2017 $ 584.391
Receipts (5,841,275)

Disbursements/expenditures 6,104.553

Receivables from program work at September 30, 2018 $ 847,669

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (an exempt organization) and John Snow, Inc. (a non-
exempt corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. Mr. Joel Lamstein is President
and Director of both organizations, and is the sole stockholder of John Snow. Inc. The two
companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill the federal and state governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2018. John Snow. Inc. billed JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. $30,676,239 for consulting ser\'ices (technical support). This amount is reflected
under the program services - consulting line item ($ 16.769,197) and program ser\'ices - other costs
line item ($13,907,042) on the statement of functional expenses. In addition, JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc. performed consulting ser\'ices (technical support) for John Snow, Inc.
totaling $7,179,908.

The two companies also share facilities and poo! various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2018. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. incurred $26,038,286 of overhead
expenses (supporting services), of which $10,220,583 was its share of John Snow, Inc. incurred
costs.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

John Snow, Inc. - continued
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower with John Snow, Inc. on a commercial
demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration date of May 31. 2019, which allows for
borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a'security agreement with a first
position lien on all corporate assets of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and John Snow,
Inc. including assignment of promissory notes and security documents between the two
companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus
two percent (2.00%) payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30. 2018 was 4.176%. At
September 30,2018, a balance of $0 was outstanding on the loan. Management believes the loan
payable will be extended, when due. under similar terms and conditions.

During the year, the Company had various loans receivable due from, and various loans payable
due to John Snow, Inc. At September 30. 2018, the loan receivable balance is $0 and the loan
payable balance is $369,577.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow. Inc.
will provide administrative and technical support as deemed necessaiy by World Education. Inc.'s
Board of Trustees. Transactions with John Snow. Inc. for the year ended September 30, 2018 are
summarized as follows:

Administrative and technical support $ 1,549.343
Other direct charges (including rent of $892,543) 1,276.616

$  2,825,959

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either part>' upon ninety days
written notice to the other.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured line of credit with John Snow, Inc. with a borrowing limit
ofup to $1,000,000. (See NOTE 12)

Partnership for Supply Chain Manageraentv Inc.
Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (PSCM) (an exempt organization) was
incorporated on February 14, 2005 by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management
Sciences for Health, Inc. Each.organization has 50% control.

PSCM has been awarded a U.S. government contract to procure and deliver life-saving medicines
and medical supplies to treat HIV/AIDS patients worldwide. The contract for the Supply Chain
Management System project was awarded through the U.S. Agency for the International
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2018

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. - continued
Development as part of the U.S. government's $15 billion President's Emergency Plan for AIDS
Relief.

Mr. Joel Lamsteim President and Director of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.. is President
and Director of PSCM.

During the year ended September 30, 2018, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. billed PSCM
$6,504,555 for ser\'ices performed.

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a certain related company to purchase sendees.
Transactions with this company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows:

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation;
40% owned by John Snow, Inc.) $ 539,027

$  539,027

NOTE 18 - RETIREMENT PLANS

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. has a defined contribution profit sharing/401 (K) plan
covering substantially all its employees. Employee contributions are voluntary. As of June 30.
2018, employer contributions were based on a percentage (10% - 15% depending on length of
service) of salary. As of July 1, 2018. the Company contributes an amount equal to 7% of the
employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll. In addition, employees will
receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to their retirement account. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account will automatically be
enrolled at 2% cither at the time of hire, or annually in July. The Plan was effective April 11, 1979.
Pension expense was $4,363,861 for the year ended September 30, 2018.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) provides retirement benefits to substantially all employees under
a plan. World Education. Inc.'s contributions of 7 percent of employee salaries are used to
purchase individual annuities. Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees.
Participants of the plan are fully and immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension
costs incurred by World Education, Inc. were $357,246 for the year ended September 30, 2018.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINIJED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 19-COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases
The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from 2019 through 2026. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to 5 years.

During the year ended September 30, 2018, rentals under long-term lease obligations were
$539,464. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30, 2018 are:

Year Ended

September 30,

, 2019 $ 2,594.650
2020 2,777,736
2021 2,888,057

Thereafter 1.481.270

S  9,741,713

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent
expense for the year ended September 30. 2018 was $892,543.

NOTE 20 - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various
departments and agencies of the Federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources
for the year ended September 30. 2018:

Income % of

Received Total Income

U.S. Agency for International Development $ 199,317,085 59.66%
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 21 - IN KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization receives donated materials and sei^ices consisting of commodities, facilities and
equipment, and services tor use in its programs from overseas collaborative private voluntar>'
organizations and irom foundations providing grants directly to a project. Donated materials and
services totaled $2,600,580 for the year ended September 30, 2018, and are reflected as In Kind
Project Contributions on the Consolidated Statement of Activities and In Kind Project Expenses
on the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Fhese contributions satisfy part of the matching requirements needed to obtain full funding on
certain U.S. Agency for International Development grants. During the year ended September 30,
2018, the following donated materials and services received by the Organization have been used
to fulfill matching requirements on active grants:

36697 SPRING $  180,342
36800 Advancing Partners 524,822
36895 Mozambique M-SIP 14,403
37024 Tanzania CHSS 267.610

37095 Myanmar UNCF-MM-QOC 45,638
37134 Timor Leste RBHS 25.241

37162 Ghana HIV/AIDS 139,034
37186 Madagascar CCH 169.507

37260 Ethiopia CBNC3 18.354

37265 Ethiopia TRANSFORM 262,587
63114 Uganda 57,043
64057 Zimbabwe 242.586

64062 Uganda 41,226
64071 OUTCOMES 308.063

64074 Mozambique 304,124

2,600,580

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through May I. 2019, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, there were no
subsequent events that require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor

Program Title

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to

Number Subreciplents

Direct Grants:

36521 - Uganda HIV/AIDSrTB

36697-SPRING

36702 - Nepal CHX Cord Care

36800 - Advancing Partners

36845 - Pakistan HSSP

36895 - Mozambique M-SIP

36991 - AIDSFREF,

37024 -Tanzania CHSS

37129 - Zambia Discover Health

37134 - Timor Lesle RBHS

37162 -Ghana HIV/AIDS

37,186 - Madagascar CCH

37356 - Building Healthy Cities

37360 -Pakistan IHSS-SD

37437 -CFDA CB

37462 • USAID Advancing Nutrition

Total Direct Grants - CFDA #98.001

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Partnership for Supply Chain

Management, Inc. (PSCM):

36519/36524/37034/37053/37150 - Supply

Chain Management System

Passed through Johns Hopkins University:

37099 - Ethiopia SBCC

Passed through Pathfinder International:

37265 - Ethiopia TRANSFORM

Passed through Program for Appropriate Technology

in Health:

37301 - Open LMIS-Phase 1

37434 -GOFR Connect

Passed through The National Cooperative Business

Association:

37375 - Senegal FTF Cult Nt

6l7-A-00-tJ9.U0007-00

An>OAA-A-l l-OOn3l

AID-OAA-A-1 1-00073

AID-OAA-A-12-00047

AID-39I-A.I3-00002

AID-656.A-I3-00006

AID-f)AA-A-l4-tM)()4fi

AID-621-A-I4-00004

AIO-61 1.A-16-00004

AID-472-A-I6-00001

AID-64I.A-I6-00007

AID-687.A-I6-00001

AID-OAA.A-17-(H)02«

AID.3yi-A-17-00002

720l-DAI8(iR00039

7200AA18C00070

Ci['0.|-00-05-00032-00

AID.663-A-I5-0000I

AID663AI700002

AID.2I34.0I555716-Ck

A1DOAA-A-I6-00()84

720685I8CA00001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.00!

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.00!

98.00!

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

22.766.072

(437)

36.748,664

650.551

1.569.350

1.234,077

348.946

181,987

1.007.706

64,506,916

Federal

Expenditures

151

10.076,548

235.961

46.458.820

1.973,985

1.584,313

62.188.777

5.755,790

22.602.341

1.432.785

3.756.222

6,506.222

651,121

3.094,096

44.792

156,413

166,518,337

4.424.1 12

(6.382)

7.423.425

698

17.020

281:712

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 22



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor

Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to Federal

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

Pass-through Grants (continued):
Passed through Baylor College of Medicine:

37408 -Baylor S2MIS AID-674-A-I I6-(M)U3 98.001 134.703
Passed through United Nations Foundation:

37464 -DIAL Open CMIS AID-OAA-A-14-00067 98.001
- 204

Total Pass-through Grants - CFDA #98.001
. 12,275,492

Total - CFDA #98.001 - USAID Foreign
Assistance for Programs Overseas

64,506,916 178,793,829

TOTAL - U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT S 64,506,916 S  178.793.829

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:

Direct Grant:

37087 - Adolescent HIV/AIDS Prevention MAIAIIOOOOOI 93.057 S $  283,156
Total CFDA #93.057 - National Resource Center

for HIV Prevention Among Adolescents
- 283,156

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Connecticut Dept. of Public Health:

37160 - CT Q t Asthma Program Log# 2016-0099 93.070 . 25,837
Passed through State of Vermont:

37212 -VTHPDP Evaluation Conimcl #31786 93.070 27.836
Passed througli Rhode Island Dept. of Health:

37344 - Tick Free Rl Branding N/A 93.070 _

10.826
Passed through New Hampshire Dept. of HHS:

37429 - NH Consulting Agreement @6/13/18 93.070 2.497

Total CFDA #93.070 - Environmental Public

Health and Emergency Response
- 66.986

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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5.059

136.940

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or Federal Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Through to Federal

T'Oe Number Number Subreclpicnts Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of New Hanipsliire:
37407 • NOW • HERO Agreement @2//20/18 93.074

Total CFDA #93.074 - Hospital Preparedness
''™S'-ani . ^

Direet Grant:

36967 - Healthy Start UrSMC26845-()5-00 93.110
Total CFDA #93.110 - Maternal and Child

Health Federal Consolidated Programs - 136,940

Direct Grants:

37103 -HITEO U.10CS29366 93.129

37363 -CHCACTUDS20I7 N/A 93.129
Total CFDA #93.i29-Technical and

Non-Financial Assistance to Health Centers .

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of Maine:

37376-ME DHHS HPSA Cl)0-)8-22l5 93.130
Total CFDA #93.130 - Cooperative Agreements

to States/Territories for the Coordination

and Devel. Of Primarj' Care Offices _

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Boston Medical Center:

37397 - Project.RECOVER Evaluation N/A 93.137 . 31047
Total CFDA #93.137 - Community Programs

to Improve Minority Health Grant Program . 31,047

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Dartmouth To.xic Metals:

37297 - Dartmouth Arsenic Site APVV/iyrMSKIV4.I7.I7 93.143

Total CFDA #93.143-NIEHSSuperfund

Hazardous Substances-Basic Research and Education . 10 083

949.607

3.158

47.755

10,083

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of Vermont.:

37212 -VTHPDP Evaluation Coniraci 93.184 . 3.803
Total CFDA #93.184 - Disabilities Prevention . 3 803

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Agency or

Pass-through

Federal

CFDA

Passed

Through to Federal

—  i^umoer iNumber

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

bubrccipients Expenditures

Pass-through Grants: /

37163 - FamPlan Data Systems FYI6 Agreement @ 3/1/16 93.217 7.166
37255 - UMASS Data Extract N/A 93.217 489
37281 - FamPIan Data Systems N/A 93.217 .

83.374

37313 -ABCD FP System FYI8 Ainv/A»CD/5.3I.I7 93.217 _

47.904

37387 -NYS FP Training DOII01-C.3332966..34500 93.217 102,544
37390 - NH FP Data Systems FY18 05-95-90-902010-55.30 93.217 7.485

37420 - FamPIan Data Systems Agrcemcnl @3/1/18 93.217 . 68.704
37450 - Rl FP Data Systems FYI9 Agreement® 5.1.18 93.217 12.778

Total CFDA #93.217 - Family Planning Services
• 330.444

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Community Health Institute and

Harbor Homes. Inc.:

37042 - Harbor Homes Inc. 93.243 . 3,085
Passed through State of Rhode Island:

37107 -PFS II 3426881 93.243 74.803
Passed through State of New Hampshire:

37133 - HCDC Evaluation Agreement® 10/01/15 93.243 '  32,898
37151 -NH DMH Client Survey Agreement @ 01 /1.3/16 93.243 .

74.712
Passed through State of Vermont:

37212 -VTHPDP Evaluation Contract #31786 93.243 .

22.224
Passed through Savannah State Universit>': '

37286 - HS Atlanta Consulting llmail 7/28/17 93.243 1.057
Passed through Substance Abuse Center:

37300 -Rl Healthy Trans 93.243 . 34
37463 - NHIS - @MCHC Launch Agreement @ 9/5/18 93.243 . 965

Total CFDA #93.243 - Substance Abuse and

Mental Health Services Projects of Regional ✓

and National Signiricance
- 209,778

Direct Grant:

37223 - Family Planning National Training Center
for Service Delivery Improvement FPTPA006028 93.260 1.085,862 4.350.177

Total CFDA #93.260 - Family Planning -
Personnel Training 1,085,862 4,350,177

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subreclpients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Direct Grant:

37321 - HRSA RRHO UII5MA30789

Total CFDA #93.266 - Health Systems

Strengthening and HIV/AIDS Prevention,

Care and Treatment under the President's

Emergency Plan Tor AIDS Relief

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Narragansett Prevention Partnership:

37148 - NPP Evaluation

Passcd'through City of Franklin, NH:

37290-FMDTF DFC Eval

37419 -FMDTF Eval 17-18

37429 - NH Consulting

Passed through Mar>' Hitchcock Memorial Hospital:
37324 - Upper Valley DFC Eval

Total CFDA #93.276 - Drug-free Communities

Support Program Grants

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Vermont:

37212 - VT HPDP Evaluation Conimci #31786
37229 - VTOHC Support 32307

Total - CFDA #93.283 - Centers for Disease

Control and Prevention - Investigations
and Technical Assistance

Direct Grant:

36891 - PPHF 2013 - OSTLTS Partnerships UJ38OT000I88

Total - CFDA #93.292 - National Public Health

Improvement Initiative

Agrccmcm @ t-01-16

A1'W/C()I7I.5.17

Agrocmcnl frT; I/3I/IX

Agrccmcni ftTj 8.21.18

Agreement @ 3-29-17

93.266

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.283

93.283

93.292

Federal

Expenditures

673.717

673,717

1 1.919

2,500

5.399

1.089

9.460

30,367

4,821

12,236

17,057

77.068

77,068

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Coniract #31786

RFI'-2018-DPI IS-18-TOBAC

RI-P-2018-DPHS.26-WPRKK

Agreement @3/18/18

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED;

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Vermont Department of Health:

37212 - Vermont Health Evaluation

Passed through New Hampshire Dept. of Health and
Human Services:

37435 -ENDS SPY 18

37436 - Workforce Development

Passed through National Jewish Health:

37438 - Tobacco 19 QuitNow - NH

Total - CFDA #93305 - Nat. State Based

Tobacco Control Program

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Hampton University:

37442 - Hampton University N/A

Total - CFDA #93307 - Minority Health and

Health Disparities Research

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Council of State and Territorial

Epidemiologists

37453 - CSTE Assessments

Total - CFDA #93.424 - Building Capacity of

the Public Health System to Improve

Population Health through National

Nonprofit Organizations

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through New Hampshire Dept. of Health and

Human Services:

37295 - MCH & Tobacco Bundle

Total - CFDA #93.505 - Affordable Care Act

(ACA) Maternal, Infant, and.Early Childhood
Home Visiting Program

Agreement @ 7/23/18

Federal Passed

. CFDA Through to
Number Subrecipients

Federal

Expenditures

93.305

93.305

93.305'

93.305

93.307

93.424

93.505

70381

61.873

30.252

8,301

170.807

7.894

7,894

28.846

28,846

182.720

182,720

Sec notes to Schedule of E.\penditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or Federal Passed

Federal Grantor/Pflss-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Through to Federal
^ Title ^ Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED;

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Department of Health

and Human Services:

37326-PHPSFYI8 Agreement @6.21.17 93.539 . 47.536
37452 - PHPS FY19 Agrcemciii @ 6.21.17 93.539 ^ 12.605

Total - CFDA #93.539 - PPHFCapaclt>'
Building Assistance to Strengthen Public

Health Immunization Infrastructure - 60,141

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Maine:

37288 - MECDC CHW/DBTS CDC-I7-3073 93.624
Passed through Rhode Island Department of Health:
37411 - Rl BH Workforce Dev FYI8 N/A 93.624 - ">26 481

Total - CFDA #93.624 - ACA - State Innovation

Models: Funding for Model Design and
Model Testing Assistance . 239 988

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through the University of Colorado:

37270 - TOPI PSC-U()584 93.638
37399-TOPI Practices P.SC-00584 93.638

Total - CFDA #93.638 - ACA Transforming
Clinical Practice Initiative: Practice

Transformation Networks (PTNs) - 111,90s

Direct Grant:

37015 • Tobacco Use Prevention NU58DP005338 93.735 ■ 60 457

Total - CFDA #93.735 - State Public Health

Approaches for Ensuring Quitline Capacity . 457

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services:

37326-PHPS FY18 . Agreement @ 6.21.17 93.753 - 23,544
37452 - PHPS FY 19 Agreement @6.21.17 93.753 - 16,257

Total - CFDA #93.753 - Child Lead Poisoning

Prevention Sur>'eillance Financed in part by

Prevention and Public Health Program (PPHF) - 39,801

23.712

88.193

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Award.s. ->g



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subreciplents

93.757

93.757

93.757

93.757

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED;

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of New Hampshire:

37048 - National Diabetes Prevention Program 1042855

37068 - NH RHC TA Network N/A

37200 - Public Health Program Services Support PC# 1031592

Passed through State of Colorado

37413 - CO 0-D Analysis N/A

Total - CFDA #93.757 - State Public Health

Actions to Prevent Diabetes, Heart Disease,

Obesity and Assoc. Risk Factors

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Missouri Department of Health "and

Senior Services:.

37130 - MO HEAL C3I5I9900I

Passed through Rhode Island Department of Health:

37140- Rl Epidcmiological Support 7549784

Passed through State of Vermont:

37212 - VT HPDP Evaluation Contract #31786

Total - CFDA #93.758 - Preventive Health and

Health Services Block Grant Funded Solely

with Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Department of Health

and Human Services;

37326 - PHPS FY 18 Agreement @6.21.17 93.800
37452 -PHPSFY 19 Agreement @6.2I.I7 93.800
Passed through State of Colorado:

37413 - CO - O-D Analysis N/A 93.800

Total - CFDA #93.800 - Organized Approaches

to increase Coldrectal Cancer Screening

Passrthrough Grant:
Passed through Speare Memorial Hospital:

37429 - NH Consulting l'RF6l 93.817

Total - CFDA #93.817 - Hospital Preparedness

Program (HPP) Ebola Preparedness and

Response Activities

93.758

93.758

93.759

Federal

Expenditures

130,702

52.226

7.936

3.922

194,786

41.693

147.007

513

189,213

63.089

22.989

5,882

91,960

4.271

4,271

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subrecipients

Federal

Expenditures

93.870

93.870

Agreement @ 6.21.17

Agreement @ 6.21.17

93.889'

93.889

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Department

of Health and Human Services:

37326 - PHPS FYI8 Agreement @6.21.17
37452 - PHPS 19 Agreement @6.21.17

Total - CFDA #93.870 - Maternal, Infant and

Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services:

37326-PHPS FYI8

37452 - PHPSI9

Total - CFDA #93.889 - National Bioterrorism

Hospital Preparedness Program

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Vermont Department of Health;

37212 -VTHPDP Evaluation

Passed through New Hampshire Department

of Health and Human Services:

37440-NHCCC Stal Ping

Passed through Massachusetts Dept. of Public Health:

37460 - DPH Pall Care

Total - CFDA #93.898 - Cancer Prevention and

Control Programs for State, Territorial and
Tribal Organization

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Stale of New Hampshire:

37068 - Technical Assistance Network for Rural

Health Clinics N/A 93.913

Total - CFDA #93.913 - Grants to States for

Operation of Offices of Ru ral Health

Contract #31786

Agreement @ 4.20.18

93.898

93.898

CAPACITYLYDLD.S00824M04 93.898

224.636

65.883

290,519

58,771

4,589

63,360

32.154

577

4,83

37,562

24.106

24,106

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or Federal Passed

Federal Grantor/Pass-lhrough Grantor Pass-through CFDA Through to Federal
Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

Direct Grants:

37191 - HIV Inlc^ted Planning U691IA30I44 93.914 546,598
37194 - RWHAP ACE Health Training U691IA30I43 93.914 385,489
37327 - CHATT Planning TA Uf39IIA30795 93.914 144.592 524,848

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Boston Public Health Commission:

37170 - Quality Assurance

Passed through Fenway Communit)' Health:
Agreement @ 3-01-16 93.914 399 112,762

37444 - Fenway E2I Toolkits Agreement 0 6.14.18 93.914 - 26.945

Total - CFDA #93.914 r HIV Emergency Relief
Project Grants

144,991 1,596,642

Direct Grant:

36967 • Healthy Start Performance Project UI-5MC26845 93.926 140.435 2.315.907
Total - CFDA #93.926 - Healthy Start Initiative 140,435 2 J 15,907

Direct Grant:

36945 - CDC CBA FY15 - FY19 U65P.S004406 93.939 - 930.854

Total - CFDA #93.939 - HIV Prevention

Activities - NGO Based . 930,854

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of Massachusetts:

37153 -CoRECT Study PRr6I 93.943 - 53,585

Total - CFDA #93.943 - Epidemlologic

Research Studies ot Acquired

Immunodeficiency System (AIDS) and

Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Infection in Selected Groups - 53^35

Pass-through Grant:
Passed through South County Hospital Healthcare System:

37091 -South County Health Equity Zone Agreement @ 5-1-15 93.945 ^ 19.809
Total - CFDA #93.945 - Assistance Programs

for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control - 19,809

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 31



JSI Riesearch and Training Institute^ Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or Federal Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Through to Federal

Title Number Number Subreclpients Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

Pass-through Grants;

Passed through State of Rhode Island:

36801 - Prevention Resource Center 33I684J 93.959
37349-RIPRCll 3534294 93 959

Passed through New Hamp. Prevention Certification
Board of New Hampshire:

37168 • NHPCB Workforce Development N/A 93.959

Total - CFDA #93.959 - Block Grants for

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse - 205,708

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Arizona Family Health Partnership:
37328 -AFHPCT Screening 17-JSll 93.977 - 1342

Total - CFDA #93.977 - Sexually Transmitted

Diseases (STD) Prevention and Control Grants - U342

Pass-through Grants:

Passed throughVermont Department of Health:

37279-VT 3-4-50 32435 93.991 5.925

18

193.961

1 1,729

3,925

54.985

Total - CFDA #93.991 - Prevcntatlve Health

and Health Services Block Grant 3,925 3,925

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Vermont;

37294 - VT Safe Sleep 33460 93.994

Passed through New Hampshire Department of Health

and Human Services:

37326 -PHPS19 Agreement i^) 6.21.17 93.994 - 24,000
Total - CFDA #93.994 - Maternal & Child

Health Serxiccs Block Grant to the States . yg 935

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SERVICES $ 1,375.213 $ I4.23U9S

See notes to Schedule of E.\penditiires of Federal Awards. 32



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-througii Grantor
Agency or

Pas5-thr0ugh

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to Federal

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Direct Grants:

United States Coast Guard -

37302 -Nat'l. Estimate of Life Jacket Wear Rate 33l7rANl702IO 97.012 $ 3.714 $  57.965
37427 - Nat'l. Estimate of Life Jackcr Wear Rate 33l7rANI702IO 97.012 . 1 1 1.826

Total CFDA #97.012 - Boating Safety Financial

Assistance 3,714 169.791

TOTAL- U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND

SECURITY S 3,714 S  169,791

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Slate ofNew Hampshire:

37250 - Juvenile Diversion Evaluation

Total - CFDA ̂16.540 - Juvenile Justice and

Delinquency Prevention • Allocation to States

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

16.540 $ 25,121

25,121

25,121

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Harripshire Department of Health

and Human Services:

37326- PHPS FYI8 Agrcemeni @ 6.2I.I7
37452 -PHPSI9 Agrcemcni @6.2I.I7-

Total - CFDA #66.707 - TSCA Title IV State

Lead Grants Certiflcation of Lead Based

Paint Professionals

66.707 $ 75,530 $ 31.255

66.707 . 13,598

75,530 44,853

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

AGENCY S  75,530 S 44,853

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal" Awards.
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor

Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Food Insecurity Nutrition Incentive (FINI):

37257 - FlNl Evaluation PRI-61

Total CFDA #10331 - Food Insecurity

Nutrition Incentive Grants Program

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Slate of Vermont:

37212 - VT H PPP Evaluation 30754

Total CFDA #10.561 - State Administrative

Matching Grants for the Supplemental

Nutrition Assistance Program

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to Federal

Number Subrecipients Expenditures

10.33! $

io:56i 4,787

4,787

$  1 12.759

112,759

4.273

4,273

S  4.787 S 117,032

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Dreams Innovation Challenge:

37188 -DREAMS

Total CFDA #19.029 - The U.S. President's

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief Programs

Direct Grant:

37244 - Russia P2P

S.LMAQM.I6-CA-II03 19.029 $ 23.380.845 S 28.999.322

S-RS5()0-I6-CA-I79 19.900

Total CFDA #19.900 - AEECA/ESF PD Programs

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

23380,845 28,999322

20

20

$ 23380,845 S 28,999342

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE:

Pass-through Grant:

.  Passed through Regents of the University of Michigan:
37303 - Cape Cod Coastal

Total CFDA «ll.419- Coastal Zone

Management Administration Awards

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Agency or

Pass-through
Nuinber

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subrecipients

.419 $

Federal

Expenditures

2.853

2,853

2,853

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS $ 89,347,005 $ 222,384,116

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and TrainingInstitute, Inc.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30, 2018

NOTE I - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal
government for the year ended September 30. 2018. The information in this Schedule is
presented .in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Unifortn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research and Training Institute.
Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule arc reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained
in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers and pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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A c c o u 11 t a n I

A'

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON^COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARbs

To the Board 6f Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited, in accordance with The auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in ddvernmeni
Auditing Standards-issued by the Comptroller General of the United States." the consolidated
financial statements of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,and Affiliate ("Organization'*),
which comprise the consolidated'statement of financial position as of September 30, 2018, and
the rejated consolidated statements .of activities, and cash flows for the year theii ended, and the
related notes to 'the consolidated financial statements..and-have issued-bur report thereon dated
May 1,2019. . • '

Internal Control Gver'Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the cbhsoljdaled financial statements, we eonsidered JSI
Research and .Trajnihg Institute, Inc..arid ils.aiffiliate's iriterrial control over financial reporting
(internal control) to detemiine the audit.procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
' the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose,of expressing an opinion oh the effectiveness of JSI Research and Training Ihstitute. Inc.
and Affiliates's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on'the effectiveness
of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exisls when the design or operation of a control does not allow
maiiagement or employees, in the normal course of performing, their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and,correct; misstatements on a'timely basis. A material, weakness is a
deficiency,.or a-cp'mbination of deficiencies', in- internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that'a .rnaterial misstatement of the Organization's financial .statements wjll not be
prevented, or detected-and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is'less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough'to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. and Affiliate's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, wc do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Governmen! Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
May 1.2019
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INDEPENDENT AUp'lT0R*S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors t

JSl Research-^d Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Rcport on-Cpmpliahcc for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited JSl Research arid Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliarice requirements described in the 0MB Compliance'Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s major federal programs
for the year ended September 30, 2018. JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Mandgemeht*5 Responsibility

Management is responsible fdrxbmpliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the-term's and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibiiity

'Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of JSl Research and Training
Institute; Inc.'s-major federaj .programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in'accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained \n Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General'of the United Stales; and .the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Pah 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require, that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether npncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examiningj on a test basis, evidence about JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance
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with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit docs not provide a legal determination of JSl
Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. complied, in, all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal pro^ams for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered JSI Research and Training institute, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
to deterrnine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intei-nal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofJSI Research and Training
Institute. Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected.and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a. federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) maintains a different fiscal year (June 30) and has its own stand
alone audit performed in accordance with the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulafions Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). However, the consolidated financial statements contain the
combined activity of JSI Research and Training, Institute and World Education. Inc.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
May 1,2019
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2018

SECTION I - Summary of Auditors' Results:

Financial Statements

The type of report issued on the financial statements:
Internal control over financial reporting:
• Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal A wards

Internal control over major programs:
• Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered' to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under
2 CFR section 200.516(a):

•  Identification of major programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee under 2 CFR
Section 200.520

Unmodified opinion

No

None reported

No

No

No

Unmodified opinion

No

USAID Foreign Assistance for
for Programs Overseas
CFDA #98.001

The U.S. President's Emergency
Plan for AIDS Relief Programs
CFDA #19.029

Family Planning - Personnel
Training
CFDA #93.260

$3,000,000

Yes
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JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Board of Trustees

Alexander K. Baker, MBA

Chief Operating Officer

John Snow, Inc.

Oavid E. Bloom, M.A., Ph.D.

Clarence James Gamble Professor of Economics and Demography

Harvard School of Public Health

Patricia Fairchild, M.A.

Vice President

John Snow, Inc.

Sandro Galea, MD, MPH, DrPH

Dean and Robert A. Knox Professor

Boston University School of Public Health

Leiand B. Goldberg

Resolution Capital

Carolyn Hart, MSPH

Director, JSI/Washington

John Snow, Inc.

\

Louis Kapiow, J.D., Ph.D.

Finn M.W. Caspersen & Household Professor of Law and Economics

Harvard Law School

Joel H. Lamstein, MS

President and CEO

John Snow, Inc. and World Education, Inc.

Ken Ollvola, M.C.P., M-Arch

Director, JSI/Boston International Group

John Snow, Inc.

Paul Osterman, Ph.D.

Nanyang Technological University (NTU) Professor of Human Resources and Management
Sloan School of Management at M.l.T.

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.

William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of Management

Wharton School at University of Pennsylvania



JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d/b/a Community Health Institute (CHI)

Key Personnel

Public Health Professional Support Services

'

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Jonathan Stewart Regional Director / Project
Director

$150,000 15% $22,500

Katie Robert Fiscal Manager/Task Lead $78,000 30% $23,400
Alyson Cobb Task Lead $81,000 70% $56,700
Melissa Schoemmell Task Lead $70,000 20% $14,000
Lori Walter Task Lead $65,000 80% $52,000
Christin D'Ovidio Task Lead $87,000 10% $8,700
Martha Bradley Task Lead $100,000 10% $10,000



Alyson M. Cobb
JSl. 501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3319 acobh@/si.com

Education

Boston University Sci-iool of Public Health, Boston, MASSACHusErrs

Masters ofPublic Health in Epidemiology, 2015
Delta Omega Honorary Society in Public Health

BucKNELL University, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania
Bachelor of Arts in Chemistry, Minor in American Literature, 2009

Trainings

FEMA Emergency Management Institute, Emmitsburg, Maryland
Master Exercise Practitioner Program, 2018-2020

NH Division of Fire Standards and Training and EMS, Concord, New Hampshire
lS-300 Intermediate ICSfor-Expanding Incidents, 2017

FEMA Emergency Management Institute, Independen t Study Courses (Online)
IS-100. a Introduction to the Incident Command System, 2009
IS-l20.a: An Introduction to Exercises, 2015

IS-l03.a How to be an Exercise Evaluator, 2018

IS-200.a ICS for Single Resources and Initial Action Incidents, 2009
IS-700.a National Incident Management System- An Introduction, 2009
IS-800.C National Response Framework, An Introduction. 2018

homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program, agawam, Massachuseits

Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program Training Course. 2010

Experience

JSl, Bow, New Hampshire
Project Director, August 2015 to present
Project Associate, August 2010 to August 2015
AmeriCorps*VISTA Member, August 2009 to August 2010

Selected projects:
IMA Region 4AB Medical Countermeasures Dispensing In Response to Emerging Infectious Disease Workshop
Technical Advisor on project to develop, facilitate, and evaluate a workshop for Region 4AB BOH representatives to
strengthen capabilities to protect the health and safety of critical staff in public health emergencies. Developed template
plan language based on workshop findings.

\

New Hampshire Public Health Emergency Planning Technical Assistance and Training
Lead project to provide technical assistance and support to the 13 Regional Public Health Networks in NH around public
health emergency preparedness, planning, and response, as well as Public Health Advisory Council development. Assess
statewide needs to provide technical assistance to all 13 Networks and provide one-on-one technical assistance to
Networks upon request. Develop and deliver trainings, plan templates, and tools on a variety of public health and
emergency response topics, including medical surge, standard precautions, points of dispensing, and public information.
Develop, facilitate, and evaluate e.^ercises and real events. Conducted After Action Report development processes in
New Hampshire for 2009 H IN 1, 2012 Hepatitis C Outbreak, and 2014-15 Ebola responses. Serve on the planning
committee and conference staff for the annual NH Emergency Preparedness Conference.

North Central Wisconsin Healthcare Emergency Readiness Coalition Exercises

A. Cobb 1



Planned two labietop exercises for coalition partners to exercise regional plans to manage high threat infectious disease
outbreaks and mass casualty incidents resulting in medical surge and mass fatalities. Responsibilities included designing,
facilitating, and evaluating the tabletop exercises (TTXs), including the development of an After Action Report and
Improvement Plan.

Granite State Health Care Coalition

Co-lead coalition efforts to increase healthcare preparedness and meet US Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and
Response requirements including development of coalition plans; planrting, cbndtibi, and evaluation of ihe
statewide Coalition Surge Test; and conduct of the annual Hazard Vulnerability Assessment.

New Hampshire Medical Reserve Corps Development
Work to strengthen the statewide volunteer system, including convening regular meetings of unit coordinators, providing
individual technical assistance, organizing statewide recruitment efforts, developing and implementing volunteer
surveys, and developing and providing trainings for volunteers. Facilitate planning process of the NH Integrated
Emergency Volunteer Training Conference, which draws 200 attendees annually. In 2016, expanded NH Integrated
Emergency Volunteer Training Conference to include a Point of Dispensing (POD) exercise, in which all 200 attendees
had the opportunity to act as both a responder and a client.

Massachusetts Jurisdictional Risk Assessments

'' J

OPEM) to design and implement a participatory, multi-sectoral risk assessment process for the six Health and Medical
Coordinating Coalitions (HMCCs). Project included development of an online survey for coalition members to prioritize
risks from a set of nine hazards and assess regional preparedness using a JSI-developed instrument derived from the
CDC's 201 1 Public Health Emergency Preparedness Capabilities and the 2016 Health Care Capabilities. Analyzed data
and facilitated in-person meetings with coalition members in each region to review results and plan appropriate
mitigation strategies to reduce risk. Developed toolkit to assist HMCCs with mitigation strategy development and
implementation. ^

Speare Memorial Hospital High Threat Infectious Disease Plan Development
Work with Speare Memorial Hospital to revise existing plans to incorporate most recent guidance on the identification,
isolation, and management of suspect and confirmed high threat infectious disease cases, including protocols for PPE
donning and doffing, readying isolation rooms, laboratory sample management, internal patient transport, and radiology
procedures.

New Hampshire Ebola and Emerging Infectious Disease Readiness
Implemented project to improve preparedness of the health care system to identify, isolate, and manage high threat
infectious disease cases. Conducted an assessment of current infectious disease readiness capacity of hospitals, based on
the CDC Infection Control Assessment and Response Program's methodology. Planned and facilitated two MSEEP-
compliant tabletops focused on isolation of an infectious disease patient and transporting an Ebola patient to the
Regional Ebola Treatment Center in MA. Drafted NH's first ever High Threat Infectious Disease Plan and updated state
Ebola Response Plan to address new guidance and findings from tabletop exercises.

Massachusetts Department of Public Health Emergency Operations <& Recovery Plans Development
Working with MA DPH OPEM to update a department-wide Emergency Operations Plan and develop a Recovery
Annex. Facilitated collaborative process with MA DPH staff to develop an Emergency Operations Plan that met the
needs and concerns of all bureaus and offices involved in a response. Currently developing Recovery Annex to formalize
process through which recovery activities occur across the department.

Active Ebola Monitoring Program for Low Risk Travelers in Massachusetts
As a consultant epidemiologist for MA Department of Public Health, actively monitored incoming travelers from Ebola-
aftected West Africa with a low risk of exposure for 21 day incubation period. Role included daily communication with
travelers, entering traveler information into web-based secure surveillance system (MAVEN), and coordinating with
local health departments to ensure continuous monitoring.

/

A. Cobb 2



Melissa Schoemmell
JSI, 501 South Street, 2"^ Fl, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603)573-3324 melissa_schoemmell@jsi.com

Education

University oi- New Hampshire

Master's in Public Health, 2013

University of New Hampshire

Bachelors ofScience, Health Management and Policy, 2008

Experience

JSI d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Program Coordinator, October 2015 to present

New Hampshire Center for Excellence
Project team member for the NH Center for Excellence, a state-wide technical assistance and resource center for the
implementation of evidence-based interventions in alcohol and other drug prevention, intervention, treatment and
recover services. Primary role responsibilities include supporting the operational functions of the center, development of
communities of practice across the state, preparing presentations and other materials, and providing other technical
assistance needs.

New Hampshire Public Health Professional Support Services (PHPSS)
Project Team member for the NH Public Health Professional Support Services to increase the capacity of local, regional,
and state-level public health practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to NH citizens.

Environmental Public Health Tracking (EPHT)
Project team member for the NH EPHT program, working to link environmental factors and human health
through research, tracking of data and development, implementation and evaluation of regulatory and public
health actions to prevent or control environment-related disease. Under this program, provides logistical and
program support in the development of a CDC informed evaluation plan and strategic plan for the next five
years.

Food Protection Section

Project lead for the NH Food Protection Section, working to ensure safety and security of the New Hampshire
food supply and prevents foodbome illness and injuries through inspection, enforcement, and education by
qualified staff in collaboration with the food industry. Role on this project includes guidance and support in the
development of a robust, sustainable and actionable employee training and development plan.
Immunization Program
Assist the team in marketing strategy, materials development and reporting.
Support the team through maintenance of social media. Develop original and share appropriate content to
targeted audiences.

^  Massachusetts Jurls^lctional Risk Assessment
Project team member for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Public Health, Office of Preparedness and
Emergency Management (MA DPH OPEM) conducting a Jurisdictional Risk Assessment (JRA) in each of the six
Health and Medical Coordinating Coalition (HMCC) regions, culminating in one statewide and six regional reports to
guide the establishment of fiiture planning priorities. As a project team member, provided logistical and technical
support.

New Hampshire Public Health Advisory Council Learning Collaborative
Project lead for this Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, County Health Rankings & Roadmaps to Health funded project.
Provided logistical support for the learning collaborative meetings, assisted in content development and provided
technical assistance as needed. The overall goal of this project was to assist the Regional Public Health Networks in
development of logic models based on their work plans, corresponding evaluation plans and rapid cycle improvement.
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City of Nashua, Division of Public Health and Community Services, Nashua, New Hampshire
Health Program Specialist. 2013-2015
Promotion of health programs, community forums, presentations and initiatives within the health department and among
community partners, coordination of relevant and timely health information to target audiences, development of ail marketing and
health promotion materials, maintenance of web and social media presence, and in the event of a public health emergency, served
as the Public Information Officer in the local emergency operations center.

-Program-Msistant, 20J3-20J5 ;
Planning, coordination and facilitation of Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEEP) compliant Public Health
Emergency Preparedness workshops, drills trainings and exercises, facilitation and participation in emergency responses, and
assisted with the development and maintenance of standard operating procedures.

City of Manchester Health Department, Manchester, New Hampshire
Consultant, 2013

Conducted a neighborhood health assessment using Healthy Eating Active Living (HEAL) methodology in Manchester, NH.
Assessments included a walkability audit, CIS analysis and a survey of resident perceptions. Provided recommendations to assist
in the development of a "Community Schools Model" at a local elementary school.

New Hampshire Asthma Control Program, New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Concord, New
Hampshire

intern, 2013

Conducted a cross-sectional survey of smoke-free publicly assisted housing in New Hampshire and presented findings at the New
Hampshire Public Health Association Annual Meeting.

Boston Children's Hospital, Boston, Massachusetts
Program Coordinator, 2008-2013
Coordination of the Intermediate Care Program and Medicine ICU Resident Rotations, developed and maintained the website,
planning of events (conferences, holiday events, meetings, retreats, travel arrangements), oversaw compliance of required federal
and state licensure for physicians, and assisted in grant writing and application process for both NIH and privately funded grants.

Skills | Certifications

Computer: Microsoft (Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Access, Publisher), Adobe Professional Suite, SPSS
Volunteer Activities: Board of Director, New Hampshire Public Health Association, 2013 to present and Chair of the New
Hampshire Public Health Association Communications Committee, 2013 to present
Certifications: FEMA Certifications (ICS-100, 200, 300, 400, 700, 800), Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program
(HSEEP) and Medical terminology

Awards

New Hampshire Public Health Association Young Professional Award, 2015
First place for the UNH Master's in Public Health capstone project, "Community Schools: A Unifying Thread, Assessment and
Recommendations for the Implementation of the Community School Model at Bakersville Elementary School", 2013
Third place at the New Hampshire Public Health Association annual meeting for poster presentation, "Cross-Sectional Survey of
Smoke-Free Publicly Assisted Housing in NH - Findings and Recommendations, 2013
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LORI WALTER, CMP
JSl. 501 South Street, Bow. New Hampshire 03501 (603) 573-3306 lwalter@Jsi.com

Education

ashworth University, Norcross, Georgia

A.S.. Business Management

Convention Industry Council, Washington, D.C.
Certified Meeting Professional (CMP) designation 2005

Professional Career Development Institute, ashwortm University, norcross, Georgia
Certified in Bridal Consulting. 2003
Certified in Travel & Tourism. 1998

New Hampshire technical Institute, Concord, New Hampshire

Coursework in hospitality sales & management, hotel management, and convention planning, / 999-2001

Experience

JSl, Bow, NH
Training & Event Manager, July 2007 to present

Continuing Nursing Education CoovAin^ior January 2012 to present
Provides ongoing support and administration of JSl's continuing nursing education (CNE) accreditation through the
Northeast Multi-State Division of Continuing Education. Works with JSl staff to develop programs that adhere to the
strict NEMSD and American Nursing Association guidelines for CNE approval. In addition, works with JSl staff on
researching and developing programs that adhere to other accreditation guidelines such as continuing medical education,
social worker education, licensed drug and alcohol counselors, prevention specialists, etc.

I

NH HIV Planning Group (HPO^w/y 2017 - Present
Project director for the NH HPG through a contract with the NH Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of
Infectious Disease. Project management, budgeting, client relations, and overseeing the project and the project team.
Provides logistical support for committee meetings, trainings, and special events including a biennial conference. World
Aids Day activities, training to health and community professionals on issues such as HIV, and transgender health.

Vermont Immunization & Infectious Disease Conference and Diversion Workshop Logistics
Project director overseeing and managing event logistics for the Vermont Department of Health's biennial Immunization
& Infectious Disease Conference, and the 2018 Vermont Drug Diversion Workshop.

Public Health Emergency Preparedness Training and Technical Assistance July 2007 to present
Provides administrative support and conference and training logistics management for the Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Technical Assistance and Training projects funded by the NH DHHS and NH Homeland Security and
Emergency Managements (HSEM) to provide training and technical assistance to public health emergency planning
partners in New Hampshire's Public Health Regions. As part of the Technical Assistance and Training project, provides
training logistics for contracted training, workshops and events as well as conference management for the one-day NH
Emergency Preparedness Conference held annually for over 900 attendees, speakers and vendors. In addition, manages
logistics for the NH Integrated Emergency Volunteer Training Conference held annually for 200 emergency volunteers.
Also provided conference logistics for the 2010 Functional Needs Conference for 150 participants.

Marketing the Immunization Message in NH July 2010 to present
Provides project support and conference logistics for the NH DHHS Immunization Prograrh's annual NH Immunization
Conference. The conference team provides promotion, registration, fiscal management, exhibitor solicitation, planning
committee management, speaker coordination, CEU/CME management, set-up and day-of onsite management. The goal
of the conference is to educate healthcare providers on immunization specific topics.

NH Center for Excellence January 2009 to present
Provides logistical and administrative support for a statewide technical assistance resource center for evidence-based
practice in substance abuse services. The Center establishes a base of evidence-based practices in prevention, developing
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a learning collaborative of networks and practitioners to engage in systems change to support evidence-based practice,
and establishes data dissemination systemsjo ensure that data is both an input to and output of evidence-based practice.
An expert panel endorses evidence-based practice selections, outcome measurement designs, and the process by which
promising practices may develop a base of evidence of effectiveness in New Hampshire.

Healthy Home and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program July 2014 - present
Primary responsibilities include working with the New England Lead Coordinating Committee to coordinate the biennial
New bngland Lead Conterence, as well working with the HHLFPP 16 C60fdihat6 regional dinners and Other events lu
promote the program initiatives. In 2018, work also included event management for the NH Healthy Homes Conference.

NH Governor's Summit on Substance Misuse November 2015 - July 2016
Provided conference management for the one-day NH Governor's Summit on Substance Misuse held in May 2016 for
800+ attendees, speakers and vendors. Services included promotion, registration, fiscal management, exhibitor
solicitation, planning committee management, speaker coordination, CEU management, set-up and day-of onsite
management.

Weight of the Nation Community Screenings & Events December 2012 to Jamiaty 2014
Provided project management and logistical coordination. The project, funded by HNH Foundation, was to provide
logistical support and coordination to community partners for 12 community screenings of the Weight of the Nation film

obesity and to begin to build local and regional action to create access to healthy food and enhance recreational
opportunities.

Uniform Data System for the Bureau of Primary Care September 2008 to 2014
Serves as a training logistics coordinator for a major initiative to collect 'Uniform Data System' (UDS) information from
all BPHC funded sites across the country. Responsibilities include coordinating training logistics with the training
coordinator, host primary care associations (PCAs) and trainers, compilation and distribution of training materials to the
host PCAs, and compiling and summarizing training evaluations.

Uniform Data System for the Indian Health Services Urban Indian Health Program September 2008 to 2014
Serves as a training coordinator for a major initiative to collect 'Uniform Data System' (UDS) information. The UDS is a
standardized reporting system that provides consistent information about the administrative, financial and clinical performance
of34 UIHP funded grantees nationwide. Responsibilities includes coordinating several annual one or two day trainings
around the United States, informing grantees of training in their area, registering grantees, trainer travel arrangements,
facility site selection and logistical management, compilation and distribution of training materials, and compiling and
summarizing training evaluations.

New England Meat Conference September 2012 to July 2013
Provided project management and event logistics and management for the first ever New England Meat Conference and
New England Meal Ball in March 2013 which over the course of two-days, attracted over 350 participants. The goal of
the conference was to enhance the production, processing, and marketing of sustainable, nutritious, humanely-raised, and
delicious meat from New England farms by providing education and networking opportunities for meat producers,
processors, government officials, and consumers.

Prescription Drug Strategy Summit -/Vovew6er 20// '
Provided project management and event logistics management for the October 2011 Prescription Drug Abuse Strategy
Summit which brought together 165 stakeholders to address NH's prescription drug abuse epidemic. The goal of the
summit was to gather stakeholder input for the Prescription Drug Abuse Plan which goes before the Governor in
December 201 1.

Child & Family Services Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment Program October 2007 to August 2011
Provided administrative support and data management services for Child and Family Services (CFS) for the CSAT
funded Assertive Adolescent and Family Treatment (AAFT-2 and AAFT-3) projects. Data management activities
include: Acts as the liaison between Chestnut Health Systems, CSAT and CFS data systems, provides ongoing technical
assistance and support in setting up and maintaining the ABS/GAIN data collection systems, compile and report on
client satisfaction survey upon discharge from ASAT program, ongoing data monitoring and technical assistance,
conduct process and outcome evaluation activities, evaluation tool development, data collection training and support for
CFS staff as needed to maintain quality data, SPSS and Access database development, creating client tracking systems,
web based GPRA data entry, data cleaning and analysis, and report writing.
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Social Distancing Law Project March-July 2010
Provided logistics for the NH DHHS and NH AG's office Social Distancing legal assessment meeting which followed a
tabletop format and was conducted with state and local public health leaders and other key stakeholders to determine the
sufficiency and identify potential gaps in current state law regarding implementation of social distancing measures.

NH Teen Foster Conference July 2007 to September 2009
Provided administration support coordination and conference management for the third, fourth and fifth annual NH Teen
Foster Conferences. The CHI team worked closely with the DCYF staff and Youth Advisory Board, to develop
workshops and materials that are most interesting and helpful to the youth and meet their mission and goals. CHI
provided conference management services including developing and managing a confidential registration system and
day-of, onsite logistical support.

Healthy Eating Active Living (HEAL) August-November 2007
Provided administrative support and conference management for the state wide HEAL conference in 2007. The HEAL
objectives where to develop a statewide plan for promoting health eating and active living. The ultimate goal of the
project is to promote personal wellness through active living and healthy eating. CHI facilitated a process lead by a
statewide Steering Committee composed of representatives from schools, business, communities, and government. Five
work groups where established to identify priority policy, educational and programmatic interventions to promote
individual wellness including; schools, health care industry, worksites, food and recreational industry, community, and
built and natural environrhent. The project includes a statewide conference to present the plan to stakeholders and
technical assistance to community-based collaborative to develop active plans for implementing the statewide plan.

Youth Vision December 2007 to March 2008 '

Provided administrative support and focus group coordination for assessment project for NH Employment Services and
the NH Departments of Education and Health and Human Services to gather quantitative and qualitative data on the well
being of youth exiting the foster care and residential care system in Manchester.

NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building yt/fy 2007 to June 2008
Provide administrative support for the NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building Project funded by the NHDHHS and the
Division of Public Health Services STD/HIV Prevention Section. This project provides logistical and capacity building
support for the NH HIV community planning process and for funded HIV Prevention Services agencies.

NH Center for Nonprofits, Concord, New Hampshire
Member Services Coordinator, November 2006 to February 2007
Processing event registrations and payments; processing membership applications and payments; ongoing correspondence with
members both current and prospective; event planning including coordination of speakers, materials, site details, and onsite
registrations management; administrative assistance for executive director and assistant director,

NH Local Government Center, Concord, New Hampshire
Event Planner. September 1999 to December 2005
Event and trade show management; requests for proposals; site inspections; contract negotiation; marketing; exhibitor, sponsor
and advertiser solicitation and relations; speaker coordination and support; registration; preparation of handouts; food and
beverage management; on-site logistics; staff and volunteer management; event evaluation. Supervised event associate and
functional supervision of support staff; in-house catering coordination and ordering; in-house audiovisual assistance; member
services; coordinated Local Government Center awards and scholarship programs. Received 2003 Employee of the Year Award.

Holiday Inn, Concord, New Hampshire
Front Office Manager/Guest Service Agent, June 1996 to September 1999 ^
Guest relations; rate setting; coordinating work with sales department on group arrivals, billing and special requests;
housekeeping inspections; site inspections with prospective groups and clients; revenue forecasting; night audit; manager on duty;
direct Supervision of a stalT of 8 including hiring, training, scheduling, and personnel issues.
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KATHERINE ROBERT, MPA
JS! Research & Training Institute, Inc. krobert@jsi. com
501 South Street 2'^floor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 \ (603) 573-3331

Education ^

University oi- New Hampshire, Durham, New Hampshire

Master of Public Administration, 2009
Bachelor of Arts in Political Science, 2006

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., Bow, New Hampshire
Consultant, December 2007 to present
JSI provides consultation to health care organizations in the areas of health services delivery, public health, practice
management, information for decision-making, and program evaluation. Clients include government agencies, public and
private health care providers (hospitals, group practices, community health centers, family planning organizations, health
maintenance organizations, community-based coalitions and social service agencies). JSI is a health care consulting firm
working with clients in the public and private sectors. Since 1978, JSI has provided consulting, research and training services
for agencies and organizations seeking to improve the health of individuals, communities and nations.

Highlights of Relevant Projects

NH Home Visiting Program Supports and Services July 2015 to present Oversee and coordinate seven scopes of
work building capacity for the NH Home Visiting Program and its sub-recipient agencies implementing the Healthy
Families America model, funded by the federal Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program
(MIECHV). Act as statewide training coordinator for the Healthy Families America home visitors. Conduct annual
needs assessment, identify subject-matter expert trainers, and engage in continuous dialogue with agencies to most
effectively provide training and technical assistance resources. Develop and implement a statewide needs assessment,
and provide consultation to the NH Home Visiting Task Force. Oversight of additional scopes of work include
implementation ofcontinuous quality improvement plan for local implementing agencies, marketing and multi-media
campaign development, and post-partum visit utilization pilot research project.

Behavioral Health for Childhood Trauma Recovery Needs Assessment y»/v 2018 to present Provide project
direction and oversight to a needs assessment aimed at prioritizing areas of need to bolster New Hampshire's capacity to
provide behavioral health services to support trauma recovery for children who have experienced abuse. Facilitate
Advisory Panel meetings to solicit expert feedback from leaders from relevant statewide and local agencies.

Northern New England Healthy Equity Workgroup February 2018 to present Participate in an internal workgroup
whose purpose is to create a welcoming, inclusive work environment to maximize work and life potential for JSI staff
and the clients we serve. The committee aims to empower staff and supervisors to practice equity as a core value,
promote equitable recruitment and hiring practices, and strengthens JSI's position as a leader in increasing health equity.
Participate in selection committee for new Equity Manager position. Develop and deliver staff trainings relevant to
equity issues, including cultural competency.

Environmental Health integration Team Strategic Facilitation March 2019 to present Provide expert facilitation
and strategic planning support to the newly created Environmental Health Integration Team, an initiative of the Division
of Public Health Services. Develop agenda and activities to elicit team input on development of purpose statement, and
goals, and facilitation of workgroups in developing strategies aligning with identified goals.

j

Healthy Start EPIC Center December 2014 to May 2019 Provide technical assistance and training to Healthy Start
grantees to ensure program effectiveness in achieving the goals to reduce infant mortality and health disparities, and
improve perinatal health outcomes. This project focuses on providing comprehensive and innovative capacity building
assistance to community-based grantees, measuring project success by the degree to which grantees achieve core
competencies essential for effective implementation of the Healthy Start model and institutionalize a culture of Ql and
evaluation based on a foundation of documented program effectiveness. Primary responsibilities include coordination of
technical assistance.
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Trauma Informed Care for Early Childhood Services (TIECS) Training Coordination July 2014 to June 2017
Engaged subject matter experts and early childhood service professionals from around the state to complete a Train the
Trainer exercise and subsequent 50+ community trainings to train over 600+ professionals serving young children and
their families. Worked with technical staff to translate the in-pcrson training curriculum to an e-leaming format, and with
subject matter experts to develop and facilitate a learning collaborative to train interested professionals in becoming early
childhood trauma consultants.

Nutrition and Physical Activity Self-Assessment for Child Care (NAP SACC) Services May 2012 to June 2013
Reeruited-and hired qualified-consaltants to implement NAR.SACC in targeted NH CQmiTlunUlgSi Prqvided technical
assistance to consultants during the project period through program recruitment support, logistical support, and
implementation support. Conducted an evaluation of past NAP SACC interventions from the perspective of trained sites
and trainers.

Tobacco and Obesity Policy Proiect June 2010 to January 2012 Provided project management support, and worked
with NH DHHS Obesity Prevention Program and Tobacco Prevention and Control Program staff and partners to assist in
the development of strategies and creation of trainings and materials for licensed childcare settings, schools, and
workplaces to develop and adopt evidence-based guidelines around nutrition, physical activity, screen time, and tobacco
exposure. Conduct qualitative research to inform process.

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, New Hampshire
Member, Public Health Advisory Counal. 2018-present
Advise SNHU to support its Council of Education for Public Health Accreditation application process.

NH Health & Equity Partnership, Concord, New Hampshire
Diversify and Cultural Competence trainer, April 2018-present
Participated in a train the trainer session to qualify in offering diversity and cultural competence trainings for wide range of
organizations.

Rivicr University, Nashua, New Hampshire
Adjunct Facidty, September 2016-January 2018
Developed the curriculum for and instructs the online capstone for the undergraduate Public Health program.

Professional Associations

NH Public Health Association, Immediate Past President
•  Board of Directors / Executive Committee - 2012 - Present

•  Human Resources Committee, 2015 - Present

•  Communications Committee, 2012 - Present

NH Home Visiting Task Force
•  Member, 2015 - Present

American Public Health Association

•  Member, 2013-Present

NH Public Health Services Improvement Council
•  Member, 2016-2017

Computer Skills
Proficient in Adobe InDesign CSS.5, Adobe Illustrator CS5.5, Microsoft Word, Excel, and Publisher.
Working knowledge of Microsoft Access, QuickBooks, Adobe Photoshop, and SPSS.
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Jonathan A. Stewart
Community Health Inslilitle/JSl, 501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3300 jstewart@/si.com

Education

DUKi: UNiVIHRSITY SCHOOL 01" Ml:DICINL, DURHAM, NORTH CAROLINA
Department of Health Administration, Master of Health Administration, 1986
Department of Biochemistry), Master ofArts, Biochemistry, 1984

University of Delaware, Newark, Delaware

School ofArts & Sciences, Bachelor ofArts, Biology, 1981

Experience

JSI Research and Training institute/Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Regional Director, September 2000 to present '
Provide technical assistance, training and evaluation to health and human service organizations to support the development of
effective public health and health care systems.

Selected Technical Assistance & Training Projects

NH Community and Public Health Development Program: Project Director providing technical assistance and training
support to communities involved in development of improved local public health infrastructure; worked with multiple
partners to develop the statewide New Hampshire Public Health Network.

Community Health Services Network and Partnership for Public Health: Community assessment, workgroup facilitation and
plan development for regional integrated behavioral health system as part of a NH Delivery System Reform Incentive
Payment initiative (1 1 15 Medicaid Waiver).

Boston Metropolitan Area Hazard Vulnerability Assessment: Technical Assistance including planning, facilitation and
analytic support to Massachusetts and New Hampshire state health departments and regional partners for assessment of
hazards, risks and preparedness for health care, behavioral health and public health infrastructure.

Metrowest Community Health Care Foundation (Massachusetts): Capacity and readiness assessment of seven municipalities,
in Metro-Boston for developing collaborative models for local public health service delivery.

NH Division of Public Health Services: Project team member providing assistance on development of a Comprehensive HIV
Needs Assessment; role is focused on client and community stakeholder engagement and qualitative needs assessment.

Robert Wood Johnson Foundation: New Hampshire Turning Point Initiative: Project Director for multi-year initiative to
develop sustainable strategies for improved local public health capacity.

HRSA, Bureau of Primary Health Care, Uniform Data System: Trainer and editor for annual Uniform Data System reporting
for the federal Community and Migrant Health Center program.

Selected Program Evaluation Projects

Central New Hampshire Health Partnership: Evaluator for two federal Rural Health Outreach Grant Initiatives; the first for
improving care coordination of socially and medically vulnerable populations; the second for improving care transitions from
hospital to home and community.

Communities for Alcohol and Drugfree Youth (Plymouth, NH): Program Evaluator for community-based coalition involved
in multiple initiatives to promote positive and healthy school and community environments for youth.

NH Division of Alcohol & Drug Prevention & Recovery: Project Director for evaluation of state-wide ATOD prevention
initiative involving multiple community-based coalitions implementing a range of programs including family strengthening,
school-based education, mentoring and community action for environmental change.

Family Planning Private Sector Project (Nairobi, Kenya): Operations research on cost effectiveness and sustainability of
FP/MCH service delivery sites throughout Kenya to assist USAID in resource allocation decisions and to improve cost
recovery capability of clinics.

New York Slate. Department of Health (Albany, New York): Qualitative Evaluation of New York State Healthy Heart
Program; an initiative intended to influence CVD risk factors through community intervention and social marketing.
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Selected Research Projects

National Net\vork of Public Health Institutes and Robert Wood Johnson Foundation: Qualitative Assessment of Local and
State Health Officials awareness of interest in, and capacity to employ computer modeling for emergency preparedness.

Endowment for Health: Study ofthe effect of New Hampshire's Community Benefits Law for Health Care Charitable frusts.
Cooperative effort with NHDHHS Office of Health Planning and the NH Office of the Attorney General.
Rur^ni, nfN^n/th (RnrkvUiP MD)' Study of the effect of AIDS Education and Training Centers on physician
attitudes and practices; Comparative analysis of parallel CDC-funded study of the general primary care physician population.

Bureau of Primary Health Care Delivery and Assistance (Rockville. MD): Study to assess preparedness of C/MHC's to
respond to HlV-related service needs

Bureau of Primary Health Care, Rockville, Maryland: Survey project designed to gather information on provider practices in
Community and Migrant Health Services relative to recommendations of the 1988 US Preventive Services Task Force.

North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, New Hampshire
Executive Director. 12/97 to 8/00 Founding Director of rural health network formed by four hospitals, two community health
centers, two home health agencies, a mental health and developmental services organization, and a community action program.

Ammonoosuc Community Health Services, Littleton, New Hampshire
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John Snow, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts
Consultant. 10/86 to 7/94 providing assistance in health services evaluation, financial analysis and program management.

Selected Publications | Reports

Rosenfeld, LA, Fo.\ CE, Kerr D, Marziale E, Cullum A, Lola K, Stewart J, and Thompson MZ. "Use Of Computer Modeling
For Emergency Preparedness Functions By Local And State Health Officials: A Needs Assessment J Public Health Management
Practice, 15(2), 96-104, 2009.

Stewart J, Kassler W, McLeod M. "Public Health Partnerships: A New Hampshire Dance ". Transformations in Public Health,
Volume 3, issue 3, Winter 2002.

Stewart, JA, Wroblewski S, Colapietro J, Davis H. "Su/wey of US Physicians Trained by Regional AIDS Education and Training
Centers". Abstract No. P0-D21-4047; IXth International Conference on AIDS. Berlin, Germany, June-I. 1993.

KibuaT, Stewart JA, NJiru S, Gitari A. "Sustainabiliry and Cost Effectiveness of Family Planning Private Sector Subprofects".
United States Agency for International Development; Nairobi, Kenya, March 1990.

Selected WORKSHOPS | Presentations

Dartmouth College, The Dartmouth Institute, MPFl Program, (formerly CECS) guest lecturer - project management, evaluation,
coalition development, Public Health 101; community health needs assessment; academic review of capstone theses; 2004-2016.

Public Health Performance Improvement - The New Hampshire Experience (with Joan Ascheim, NHDHHS); 6th Annual
National Public Health Performance Standards Training Workshop; Nashville, TN; April 1-6. 2008.

Building the Public Health Infrastructure: State Lessons Learned and Keys to Success', Nebraska Health and Human Services,
E.xpanding Our Vision - Transforming Vital Public Flealth Systems. October 2006.

Building Infrastructure in Public Health - RWJF National Turning Point Showcase Conference, Denver, CO; May 2004

Community Benefits Exemplary Practices - New Hampshire statewide conference; November 2002

Selected Boards | Affiliations

National Network of Public Health Institutes, Board ofDirectors, 2008 topresent. Chair. 2014-2016
New Hampshire Public Health Services Improvement Council, 2008 to present
NH Prescription Monitoring Program, Advisory Council. 2012 topresent
New Hampshire Healthy People 2010 Leadership Council; Co-chair. 2000-2002
New Hampshire Public Health Association; Treasurer, 1999-2003
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Martha Bradley, MS
JSJ, 501 South Street, Bovf. New Hampshire 05304 (603) 573-3318 mhradley(^si.com

Education

SPRINCFII-LD COLLEGil, MANCHESTER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

M.S.. Human Service Administration, May, 2001

University of New Hampsmire, Durham, New Hampshire

B.A., Psychology, May. 1987

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire
Project Manager, December 2002 to present
Areas of technical expertise include: Project management and implementation, health education and material development,
training, and qualitative research.

Wisconsin Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention Campaign, April 2017 to present
Worked on team to create a campaign to inform the public that (1) sex trafficking of youth is an issue in urban, rural,
suburban and tribal communities throughout W1 (2) educate about the indicators that a youth is being or may be at risk of
being sex trafficked (3) disseminate information about the risk factors that make youth vulnerable to trafficking; and, (4)
implement a statewide media/social marketing.campaign that reduces demand and prevents sex trafficking of youth.

NH Center for Excellence (CFEX): Best Practices in Reducing Alcohol and Drug Problems
Worked on three projects for CFEX which provides consultation, training, and technical assistance for substance misuse
prevention, substance use disorder treatment, continuum of care development, and integration of behavioral health into
primary care including needs assessment, system capacity assessment, strategic planning, and policy recommendation.

NH Young Adult Prevention Messaging 2016 to present
Responsible for developing the approach and methods for the exploratory and qualitative research resulting in a public
health campaign targeting young adults ages 21 - 25 who drink frequently and excessively.

New Hampshire SBIRT initiative, December 2015 to present
Under funding for NH Charitable Foundation in partnership with the Conrad N. Hilton Foundation and NH Bureau of
Drug and Alcohol Services provided training to healthcare providers and systems implementing SBIRT (Screening, Brief
Intervention, and Referral to Treatment) as a strategy to integrate behavioral health and primary care to identify patients
at risk of substance misuse. Developed and implemented a variety of learning opportunities such as webinars, meetings,
onsite trainings and shared learning to help providers address all facets of their workflow. The training builds knowledge
and skills utilizing motivational interviewing techniques with patients identified at greater risk.

NH Opioid Awareness Media Campaign: Anyone.Anytime.Ntr^^ August 2015 - September 2015
Responsible for conducting eight focus groups to understand current attitudes and beliefs about the use of naxolone,
understanding of the passage of a new law and knowledge of services available to assist an individual dealing with an
opioid addiction that informed the creation of the awareness campaign Anyone.Anytime.NH'^^.

Partnerships for Quitline Sustainability, August 2014 to present
A multi-year contract with the CDC to work with the state health department to develop strategy and material to engage
insurance professionals to consider cost sharing arrangements for Helpline services. Strategy based on model developed
by North American Quitline Consortium and key informant interviews with insurance stakeholders.

Prediabetes Media Development and Placement Services, March 2015 to present
Responsible for developing a statewide media campaign that encourages those at risk to enroll in a National Diabetes
Prevention Program which includes quantitative research of the target audience, audience testing, and message and
material development.
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Child Abuse Needs Assessment, April-Ociober 2015
Conducted a comprehensive needs assessment to increase knowledge on the factors that impact the competencies and
capacities of healthcare providers to provide special medical exams to child victims of suspected physical abuse.

Arsenic in Private Well Water, March-August 2013
Worked with the Dartmouth Toxic Metals Superfund Research Program to create intervention material to increase home
owners' readiness to voluntarily test their well water for arsenic. Developed message themes and conducted end user
testing to identity factors inMuencing hdmfe owners' Interesi In testing.

NH Immunization Marketing, ./Kwe 20/0

NH Department of Health and Human Services, NH Immunization Program: Worked with community stakeholders
to research, develop, and implement a statewide marketing and awareness campaign aimed at increasing immunization
rates for the priority population.

NH Environmental Public Health Tracking Program Data Utilization and Outreach Project,/l/?r/7 2012 to present
NH Department of Health and Human Services, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program: works to increase the
utilization of the EPHT's data portal and other communication tools by developing a communication plan consisting of
contemporary marketing and outreach strategies. Conducted formative research and wrote current communication plan.
Conducted end user testing on a web-based tool to assess the probability of arsenic in well water.

Nashua Community Health Assessment, September 2013 to May 20N
Worked with client to develop appropriate protocols for focus groups with targeted segments of population, varying from
topic-specific issues, to general health issues. Facilitated 10 focus groups and wrote summary report of findings.

SHARE Needs Assessment, September 2013 to May 2014
Developed methodology for local non-profit needs assessment, covering five towns in Southern NH. Developed protocols
for focus groups and key informant interviews and developed.needs assessment report.

Presentations

•  Presentation at IHA Health Literacy Conference: SBIRT: Talking with Your Patients about Substance Misuse, 2017
•  Moffitt Cancer Center: Cancer. Culture and Literacy Conference in 2008 & 2010
•  Presentation at the NH Conlerence for Adult Educators on Tobacco d Literacy in NH: A Pilot Program for Young

Adults, Februaty 2007 and abstract accepted at the ACCESS 08 Conference
•  Presentation at the Break Free Alliance Conference, Promising Practice to Eliminate Tobacco Related Disparities: the

Power ofCommunities, April 2012

•  Presented poster Break Free Alliance Conference on Supporting Healthy Practices in Child Care: Nutrition, Physical
Activity & Tobacco Exposure, April 2012

•  Presentation at National Conference on Tobacco or Health. Engaging Low-Income Smokers in Tobacco Cessation via
Credit Counseling Programs. 2012

Publications

•  LaFave LR, Bradley M, Murray AR, Pepin AL, Sprangers KS, Thies, KM (2018) Lessons learned from implementing
Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT) for youth and young adults in primary care settings.
Integrative Pediatrics and Child Care I (l):8-13

•  Bradley M,'D'Ovidio C, Kipligat S, New Hampshire Women's Perceptions of Marijuana and Alcohol Use Before,
During and After Pregnancy, January 2018.

Other Education

•  National Institutes of Health, Office of Extramural Research, Protecting Human Research Participants, September 2009
•  New Hampshire Department of Safety, Division of Fire Standards and Training:

lS-700: NIMS an Introduction, January 2009
IS-lOO: Introduction to'lCS. January 2009
Public Information Office. April 2009

•  Homeland Security Exercise & Evaluation Program (HSEEP) Training Course, December 2008
•  Attended National Conference on Tobacco or Health, Minneapolis, MN, 2007
•  Attended World Tobacco Conference, Washington, D.C., 2006
•  Completed Motivational Interviewing workshop at Health Education and Training Institute, Portland, ME, 2005
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Christin H. D'Ovidio
JSI, 501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3353 cdovidio@jsi.com

Education & Certifications

National Public Hbalth Ini-ormation Coalition, MARiirrrA, Georgia
Certified Communicator in Public Health, 2015

University of South Florida, Tampa, Florida
Graduate Certificate Degree, Social Marketing for Public Health, 2013

NEW School for Social Research, New York, New York
Master of Fine Arts, Acting & Fine Arts Production. 2002

MILLS College, Oakland, California
Bachelor of Arts. Dramatic Arts & Communications. 1998

HOOTSUITE ACADEMY

Social Marketing Certification. 2018

Experience

JSI Research and Training Institute, inc., New Hampshire
Marketing and Communications Project Director. 2016-present

Young Adult Alcohol Harm Reduction Campaign (2018 - present)
Project Director and Creative Director: Oversee a team of four, conducting formative research around current knowledge,
attitudes and beliefs on the use of binge drinking via peer crowd/group segmentation in NH college or professional career
focused, young adults. Formative research includes literature review, online survey testing, focus groups and digital a/b
testing. Pending research results, creative development could include: video production, a statewide digital campaign, market
research, and influencer marketing.

NH Maternal Marijuana and Alcohol Campaign (2017 - present)
Project Director and Creative Director: Oversee a team of six, conducting formative research around current knowledge,
attitudes and beliefs on the use of marijuana and alcohol during pregnancy by of women of child-bearing age. Formative
research includes online survey testing (MaxDiff, conjoint), focus groups and digital a/b testing. Creative development
includes video production and a statewide digital campaign. The campaign. Today Is For Me., includes a provider toolkit to
support campaign messages and video on SBIRT for providers. Work includes collaboration with the NH Governor's
Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, Perinatal Substance Exposure Task Force.

NH Electronic Nicotine Delivery Systems (ENDS) Preliminary Prevention Among High School Youth (20i8-present)
Project Director; Oversee a team of six conducting formative research for the State of NH to determine high school-aged peer
crowd representation in the state as well as ENDS/vaping risk behavior prevalence among peer populations. Ultimately the
research will be used to e.xecute a marketing and communications campaign targeted at reducing ENDS use among high
school aged youth found most at-risk. The project includes: strong community and parmer collaboration, IRB consideration
and approval, and independent evaluation.

NH Center for Excellence; NH Youth Binge Drinking Prevention Campaign (2016 • present)
Project Director and Research Lead; Leading research and creative direction to create and implement a young-adult focused
binge-drinking prevention campaign. The campaign involves the theories of social marketing and behavior change, social
media, traditional media, and youth leadership. Research for the binge drinking campaign has involved peer group or peer
network identification and validation in NH and video production. Binge-Free 603: What's Your Reason launched on
social/digital in 2018 and received the 2018 Berreth Cold Award -for Excellence in Health Marketing from the National
Public Health Information Coalition. The campaign has been relaunched in 2019.

State of Wisconsin, Youth Sex Trafficking Awareness Campaign (2017 - present)
Project Manager and Evaluator to develop a high-impact awareness campaign for the Wl Department of Children and
Families to inform the public that sex trafficking of Wl youth under the age of 18 is an issue in urban, suburban, and rural
communities throughout the slate. The campaign has a positive focus and includes using trauma-informed, developmentally
appropriate, and youth-centered solutions. JSI has implemented an effective statewide media/social marketing campaign in
2018 and 2019 to raise awareness of the sex trafficking of youth in Wl.

New Hampshire Opioid Awareness Campaign: Anyone.Anytime.NIE*' (2016 - present)
Project Manager/Marketing and Communications Director; The statewide awareness campaign, Anyone.Anytime.NH''''''S was
created to reduce stigma around opioid addiction, increase awareness around the passage of two laws developed to save lives
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in an overdose situation, and encourage treatment and recovery in NM. This statewide traditional and media campaign
includes video and digital production, website and digital marketing. The Anyone.Anytime.NH'T" campaign was recently
cited in the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Surgeon General, Facing Addiction in America:
The Surgeon Genera! 's Report on Alcohol, Drugs, and Health. Washington, DC; HHS, November 2016, and won the Berreth
Award- Honorable Mention. Corporate Health Marketing - National Public Health Information Coalition, 2017.
Subsequently, JSI was contracted to update and reignite the campaign for the Governor's Commission. Ms. D'Ovidio acted
as Creative Director to film a documentary-style campaign, The Doorway-NH, re-branding the former campaign. JSI has
be^n ^'y « mimhpr nf -ttates and municipalities, as well as SAMHSA, around campaign adaptation.-
New Hampshire Lyme Disease Prevention Marketing Campaign (2016-present)
Project Director to develop a grass-roots and social marketing campaign for a private funder in order to reduce tick
encounters and cases of Lyme disease in NH. This project identifies priority audiences affected by tick bites, best-practice
outreach strategies, partner communication channels for grass-roots interventions, and effective educational outreach
materials. Iterative work with the funder, the Tick Free NH Council, and partners, has supported this four-year
communications plan. Tick Free NH (TickFreeNH.org> includes the development and creation of a Public Service
Announcement, mass-media marketing campaign, social media campaign, and website. Tick Free NH won the 2017 Berreth
Bronze Award- in Corporate Health Marketing from the National Public Health Information Coalition and JSI was
contracted by the State of Rhode Island to create Tick Free Rl. In 2019 the project will work with theNH Medical Society to
do provider outreach and engagement.

Rivier University, Division of Nursing and Health Professions, Nashua, New Hampshire
Adjunct Professor, 2016-present
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Concord, New Hampshire
Marketing and Media Specialist (Tobacco Prevention & Cessation, Asthma Control. Oral Health. Coordinated Chrome Disease).

.2008-2016

Publications

•  Bradley M, D'Ovidio C, Kipligat S, New Hampshire Women's Perceptions ofMarijuana and Alcohol Use Before. During
and After Pregnancy. (January 2018).

Oral Presentations

• Setting Them up for Failure: Why Parents Struggle to Adhere to Infant Safe Sleep Guidelines. (2018). National Conference
on Health Communication Marketing and Media. Atlanta, GA. [Bourgoin, A., D'Ovidio, C.].

• Binge-Free 603: What's Your Reason? Preventing Binge Drinking in Young Adults by Accessing Values. (2018). 25"' USF
Social Marketing Conference. Clearwater Beach, FL.

.  Formative Research for Public Health. (October 2017). Presentation to Public Health 101, Rivier University, Nashua, NH.
• Reducing Binge Drinking in New Hampshire Young Adults: Applications ofSocio-Psychological Theories to Health

Behavior Change. (August 2017). National Conference on Health Communication Marketing and Media. Atlanta, GA.
•  Tick Free NH: A Grass-Roots Lyme Disease Prevention Campaign in New Hampshire. (August 2017). National Conference

on Health Communication Marketing and Media. Atlanta, GA.
• Social Media Training. (May 2017). State of New Hampshire Health Promotion Users Group, Concord, NH.
• Anyone Anytime. NH: New Hampshire Heroin Awareness Campaign. (June 2016). 24'*' Social Marketing Conference,

Building on the Legacy: Forging New Paths. Clearwater Beach, FL.

Honors and Awards

• Binge-Free 603: What's Your Reason? (2018) Berreth Cold Awardfor Excellence in Public Health Marketing. National
Public Health Information Coalition.

• Tick Free NH - Grass-Roots Lyme Disease Prevention in New Hampshire (2017) Berreth Award - Bronze Medal. Corporate
Health Marketing. National Public Health Information Coalition.

• Anyone.Anytime.NH'^^ Campaign (2017) Berreth Award-Honorable Mention. Corporate Health Marketing. National
Public Health Information Coalition.

• Anyone.Anytime.NH'^^ Campaign (2016). U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Office of the Surgeon General.
Facing Addiction in America: The Surgeon General 's Report on Alcohol. Drugs, and Health. Washington, DC. HHS,
November 2016.

• Dear Me New Hampshire 2013-2014 Campaign Summary Report (2015) Crady Award-Bronze Medal. National Public
Health Information Coalition.

Professional Organizations/Volunteer Activities
International Social Marketing Association, Member 2016-current; Society for Health Communication, Founding Member 2016-
current; Social Marketing Association of North America, Member 2016-current, National Public Health Information Coalition,
Member & Certifier 2014-current; New Hampshire Public Health Association Member, Member 2008-2010, 2016-current.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
j

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

Jeffrey A. Meyeri 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Comrnissioncr 603-27MS0I I-S00-8S2-334S Cxt 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TOD Access: 1-800-735.2964
Liu M.Morris / www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

March 12. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a sole source amendment to an existing agreement with JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, Vendor #161611-B001, 501 South
Street, 2"** Floor, Bow, NH 03304 to provide a broad range of support services across a number
of public health programs by increasing the price limitation by $342,125 from $1,578,580 to
$1,920,705, effective upon date of Governor and Council approvial, with no change to the
completion date of June 30, 2019. 81.61% Federal Funds, 12.54% General Funds, and 5.85%
Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21,
2017 (Item #51), as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #8). ^

Furids are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2018 arid 2019,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without approval from Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.

FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED.

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the amount of additional funding exceeds- ten
percent (10%) of the original contract value and because the Department is adding to the current
scope of work for the contract period. These additional services are required to effectively
implement activities included in the Division's federal funding agreements for the current state
fiscal year.

The funding contained in this Contract will pay for implementing a statewide opioid related
vulnerability assessment as part of the Department's response to the opioid crisis; facilitate
meetings ohhe Home Visiting Task Force and its workgroups; conduct 10 (ten)jurisdictional risk
assessments addressing public health emergencies; procure and distribute additional HjV
testing supplies based on an increase in need; distribute funding to support 13 (thirteen) regional
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Medical Reserve Corps units and 2 (two) Regional Public Health Networks to regional priorities
addressing environmental public health issues; and develop outreach materials to support the
Regional Public Health Networks.

The Contractor currently provides a broad range of public health professional support
services including, but not limited to developing and implementing risk and needs assessments;
training programs; developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences
as well as smaller meetings and' conferences; serving as a fiscal agent for the Department,
including entering into subcontracts; providing technical assistance to local partners; and
providing subject matter expertise.

The funding provided through this amendment will be used to fund and expand the
following support sen/ices;

• Opioid Assessment services; The contractor will conduct a statewide HIV and viral
hepatitis community vulnerability assessment in order to identify areas of the state
that can be targeted for services to prevent the transmission of these infections in
people with substance use disorder. This activity is a requirement of federal opioid
crisis funding.

•  Public Health Erriergency Preparedness services: The contractor will conduct
Jurisdictional Risk Assessments in collaboration with at least 10 (ten) public health
preparedness coordinators from the 13 (thirteen) organizations funded to provide
Public Health Network services. These assessments will be used to identify the
public health threats of greatest concern in each region and to develop strategies
to mitigate them. This activity is a requirement of federal preparedness funding.
The contractor will also increase the amount of funding in current subcontracts that
support 13 (thirteen) regional Medical Reserve Corps units.

•  HIV Prevention services: The contractor will purchase and distribute additional HIV
testing supplies to community partners to meet an increase in need due to the
opioid epidemic. Early diagnosis and treatment of people infected with HIV helps to
prevent further transmission of this virus in the community and improves health
outcomes for people living with HIV. In addition, funds will be utilized to bring
together community stakeholders to address the goals of the NH HIV Integrated
Plan to end HIV in NH and to support targeted media and marketing efforts to
promote the prevention of HIV among those at highest risk of acquiring the
infection.

Environmental Public Health Tracking services: The contractor will increase the
amount of funding in current subcontracts swith 2 (two) Regional Public Health
Networks to develop and distribute training materials related to reducing health
risks from the environment and utilize these materials during in-person trainings
and workshops with regional partners.

Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program sen/ices: The
contractor will facilitate and provide logistical support to Home Visiting Task Force
Meetings and participation in workgroup meetings, such as Data System, Strategic
Planning, and Communications workgroups; conduct a strategic planning session
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of the Parent Advisory Council; and increase the current technical assistance and
accreditation support for Home Visiting Programs funded by the Department.

•  Preventative Health and Services Block Grant programs: The contractor will
develop outreach materials to increase the level of awareness of the Regional
Public Health Networks.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the
Department may amend the current agreement, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will lack the ability to collect and analyze data necessary to conduct jurisdictional risk
assessments in accordance with CDC requirements, procure and distribute necessary additional
HIV testing supplies, conduct a statewide opioid related vulnerability assessments in accordance
with CDC requirements; support an increased level of activity in the 13 (thirteen) Medical
Reserve Corps units and 3 (three) Regional Public Health Networks addressing environrnental
health problenhs; and support the Home Visiting Task Force and Parent Advisory Council.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Funds being added are 81.61% Federal (the Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Program, the Hospital Preparedness Program, the Environmental Public Health
Tracking Program, the Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program, the
Preventative Health and Services Block Grant Program, the HIV Integrated Prevention and
Surveillance Program, and the Opioid Assessment Program), 12.54% General (the Public Health
Emergency Preparedness Program), and 5.85% Other (Pharmaceutical Rebates).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

jffrey At Meyers
Commissioner

The DeporlmenL of Health and Human Scruloea' Mittsion is to join commuiiUics and families
in providing opporUinilies for cilizens to achieve health and independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services'

Fiscal Details

OS-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS. 67% Federal, 33% General

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 0 $115,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proc Svc 90077410 $115,000 $130,000 $245,000

Sub Total $230,000 $130,000 $360,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS, 100% Federal <

SPY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified''
/Vnount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700, $70,000 0 $70,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 0 $70,000

Sub Total $140,000 0 $140,000

05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION
PROGRAM. 100% Federal

SPY
Class /

Account'
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 0 $65,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 0 $65,000

Sub Total $130,000 0 $130,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES, 100% Other

SPY
Class 1

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $183,800 0 $183,800

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 $113,800 $20,000 $133,800
Sub Total $297,600 $20,000 $317,600
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0&.95.90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General, 63% Other

SFY
Class /

Account'
Class Title Job Number

Current/

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for ProQ Svc 90000022 $18,000 0 $18,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $18,000 0 $18,000

Sub Total $36,000 0 $36,000

0S-95-90-900510-5i73 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS. ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALtH
TRACKING, 100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90041000 $50,000 0 $50,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $50,000 $20,000 $70,000

Sub Total $100,000 $20,000 $120,000

0$-9S-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD PROTECTION, 100%
Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount •

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90003600 $36,000 0 $36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $50,000 0 $50,000
Sub Total

SFY 2018 -
$86,000 0 $86,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90003600 $9,000 0 $9,000
102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $40,000 0 $40,000

Sub Total

SFY 2019
$49,000 0 $49,000

Sub Total $135,000 0 $135,000

05-95-90-902010-5696 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. ACA HOME
VISITING X02 FORMULA GRANT, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083200 $221.990 0 $221,990
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083200 $221,990 $25,579 $247,569

Sub Total $443,980 $25,579 $469,559
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05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. MATERNAL -
CHILD HEALTH. 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $24,000 0 $24,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $24,000 0 $24,000

Sub Total $48,000 0 $43,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, RADIOLOGICAL
EMERGENCY RESPONSE, 100% Other

SFY,
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9,000 0 $9,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9.000 0 $9,000

Sub Total $16,000 $0 $16,000

05-95-90-902510-7536 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, STD/HIV PREVENTION,
100% Federal

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 9002400 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 9002400 0 $75,000 $75,000

Sub Total 0 $75,000 $75,000

05-95-90-901010-5362 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS. POLICY, AND PERFORMANCE,
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 9001022 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 9001022' 0 $15,000 $15,000

) Sub Total 0 $15,000 $15,000

05-95-90-902510-7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS
RESPONSE, 100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 0 $56,546 $56,546

Sub Total 0 $56,546 $56,546

TOTAL $1,578,580 $342,125 $1,920,705
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen DrJ Concord. NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh!gov/doit

Denis Gouict

Commissioner

March 18,2019

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State ofNew Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend an existlrig contract with JSI Research and Training Institute,
lnc.,d^/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH, as described below and referenced as DolT No 2018-
0298.

The purpose of this contract amendment is for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., to
continue to provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of
public health programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing a
statewide opioid related vulnerability assessment to inform the implementation of
prevention and intervention services as part of the Department of Health and Human
Services response to the opioid crisis.

The funding amount for this amendment is $342,125, increasing the current contract from
$1,578,580, to an amount not to exceed $1,920,705 and is effective upon the date of
Governor and Council approval, with no change to the completion date of June 30, 2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department ofHealth and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive. Council for approval.

Sincerely,

DG/kaf

DolT #2018-0298

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

Denis Goulet

"innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow

I



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the
Public Health Professional Support Services

This 2nd Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #2") dated this 12th day of October, 2018, is by and between the Stale of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Stale" or
"Department") and JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit agency with a place of business at 501 South
Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017 (Item #51), and as amended (Amendment #1) approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #8). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the State may modify the scope of work
and the payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.6 Account Number, to read 05-95-90-902510-7545, 05-95-90-
902510-2239, 05-95-90-902510-5178. 05-95-90-902510-2229, 05-95-90-902510-5390, 05-95-
90-900510-5173, 05-95-90-902510-7964, 05-95-90-902010-5896. 05-95-90-902010-5190 05-
95-90-901510-5299, 05-095-090-902510-7536.05-95-90-901010-5362, & 05-95-90-902510-
7039.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,920,705.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, "to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9831.,

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety, and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment #2.
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety, and replace with
Exhibit B. Amendment #2. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7.. Dpiete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Emergency ,
Preparedness. SFY 2019 in its entirety, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional
Support Services - Public Health Emergency Preparedness. SFY 2019 Amendment #2.

Community Heatin Inttilule Amendment #2
RFP.2016-DPHS^3-PUBLIC Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Sorvicos

8. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV Prevention, SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

9. Delete Budget for Public Heafth Professional Support Services - Pharmaceutical Rebates - SPY
2019 in its entirety, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services -
Pharmaceutical Rebates - SPY 2019 Amendment #2.

10. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPHT, SPY 2019 in its entirety,
and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional Support Sen/ices - EPHT. SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

11. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting, SPY 2019 in its
entirety, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home
Visiting, SPY 2019 Amendment #2.

12. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - PHHS Block Grant, SPY 2019
•Amendment #2. /

13. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Opioid Assessment, SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

Community Hestlh institute Amendment 92
RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBLIC .Pege 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Profeaslonal Support Sofylces

This amendment shall be effective'upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1)^
Date NarrieTDoTrTytS^^iS"

Title.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community
Health Instituti

january 24. 2019

Date Name: Joiiatffaf^iey^ari
Title: Regional Dirocior

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Slate of New Hampshire county of Merrimack lanuary 24, 2019 ,|,g
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature o^Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Tille.^pf.'Nbtary or Justice of the Peace

DEBRA L. U3VE, Notary PubOc
MyCuiiiiiiMlunExptreaSiptarrfeer$,2023

My Commisston Expires: ^

Community Health Institute Amendment §2
RFP•201^0PHS<03•PUBLiC Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

W iw I ̂ ai I IE. I ^ I * « y M V f ^ -fc

r/^

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

c5:.Na

Date Name:

Title:

Community Health inaUtute Amendment 92
RFP.20t8-OPHS-O3-PUBLiC Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professlorial Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1 The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they

will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their

•  programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire

General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure

requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for

. services provided after June 30,2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services

has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019

biennia.

2. Scope of Services
The Contractor shall;

2.1. Provide a broad range of public health professional support services including, but not

limited to; developing and implementing training programs; conducting needs assessments;
developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences; and making
subject matter experts available to Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),

Division of Public Health Sen/Ices (DPHS) contractors.

2.2. Increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to provide
high-quality public health services to NH citizens and ensure successful outcomes across

this range of sen/ices and program areas that include: transparent and informed community
planning processes; high-quality educational materials, conferences and training programs;
knowledge and skills-building among DPHS contracted agencies; timely and efficient
administrative processes: and effective evaluation of programs.

2.3. ' Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

2.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for ongoing
committees/planning groups as defined in Attachment F.

2.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.4.1. Provide logistical support to the New England Lead Coordinating Committee (NELCC).

This includes up to 12 regular meetings of the full NELCC and up to 2 of committee/

workgroup meetings per year. Information about the NELCC is available at:

http://www.newenglandlead.org/.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit A. Amandment #2 Conlractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health institute '
RFP-2018-OPHS.03-PUBUC Page 1 of 12 Data 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking

2.5.1. Provide logistical support to host up to 10 meetings with Regional Public Health
Networks to gather feedback on the EPHT Data Portal. ■

2.5.2. Provide logistical support for up to 5 focus groups to conduct user research of EPHT
data and projects.

2.6. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

2.6.1. Provide logistical support to the NH HIV Planning Group (HPG). This includes up to 6
regular meetings of the full HPG and up to 30 of committee/workgroup meetings per
year. More information about the HIV HPG is available at: nhhiv.org.

2.7. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and Child
Health Section (MCH);

2.7.1. Provide logistical support to quarterly conference calls for three, peer-based caucuses.
The caucuses will be role based (e.g. supervisors, home visitors, and quality
improvement staff).

2.7.2. Provide logistical support for the Home Visiting Task Force, formerly known as the Home
Visiting Coordinating Council at least quarterly. This group serves as the MIECHV
Advisory Group and is made up of collaborating partners and others in the state with an
interest and background in home visiting.

2.7.3. Participate in Data Systems; Strategic Planning; and Communications workgroup
meetings.

2.8. Develop and Implement Training Programs

2.8.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or implement training
programs based on adult learning theories that use various training modalities (i.e.
classroom, web-based, training of trainers, etc.) to maximize the reach of these,
programs.

2.6.1.1. Food Protection Section (FPS):

2.8.1.1.1. In consultation with Food Protection Staff develop training curricula for three
discrete audiences:

2.8.1.1.1.1. DPHS FPS staff and Food Service Establishment (FSE) Inspectors in
municipalities that regulate FSE. A list of these municipalities is
available at: .

http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/fp/documents/setfinspect.pdf

2.8.1.1.1.2. Staff from state agencies that conduct food safety inspections as one
component of a more comprehensive operational inspection. This
includes Department of Environmental Services Youth Camp inspection
staff, DHHS Health Facilities Licensing staff (which inspects child care
centers, nursing homes and assisted living facilities).

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #2 Contractor iniiiata'^V
d/b/a Community Health Institute ~ Y
RFP.2018-DPHS-03-PU8LIC Pegd2on2 patq 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment U2

2.8.1.1.1.3. Food Service Worlters including, but not limited to workers in
restaurants, retail food stores, schools, and caterers.

2.8.1.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness:

2.8.1.2.1. Develop and implement training programs for two discrete audiences:

2.8.1.2.1.1. RPHN emergency preparedness coordinators

2.8.1.2.1.2. Local municipal officials, healthcare preparedness personnel,
volunteers and others engaged in regional PHEP planning and
response.

2.8.1.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.8.1.3.1. Plan and implement the 1-day Renovation. Repair and Painting Training
_ programs in New Hampshire's highest risk communities using the US
^ Environmental Protection Agency curriculum.

2.8.1.4. Matemal, Infant and Earty Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)fMaternal
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.8.1.4.1. In consultation with MIECHV/MCH staff, facilitate a training needs
assessment for the 11 MIECHV contracted horne visiting sites.

2.8.1.4.2. Develop and implement an annual training plan (which will include site
specific training plans), including evaluation, from the information garnered
from the training needs assessment. At a minimum, ten (10) training
accessible opportunities should be offered per MIECHV furided home visiting
site per year. An opportunity is defined as a pre-existing training, which the
contractor pays home visiting staff to attend (can be out of state) and
trainings which are provided by the contractor. These can be offered
electronically (webinars. etc.) or in-person.

2.9. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

2.9.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for
conferences as defined by the DPHS in the original Request for Proposal.

2.9.1.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.9.1.1.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the NELCC's annual conference
for up to 300 attendees. Provide logistical and planning support for four
regional dinner meetings for up to 120 attendees each.

2.9.1.2. Immunization Program

2.9.1.2.1. Provide logistical support for the annual Immunization Conference for
>  approximately 400 attendees.

2.9.1.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.9.1.3.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the annual NH Statewide
Preparedness conference for up to 800 attendees.

2.9.1.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

JSI Research & Training Institute, inc. Exhibit A. Amendment «2 Contractor initials
d/b/a Community Health institute
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.9.1.4.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the bi-annual NH STD, HIV,
Hepatitis. TB conference for up to 250 attendees. Planning support includes
provision of continuing education credits.

2.9.1.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section

2.9.1.5.1. Provide logistical and planning support, including evaluation, to semi-annual
conferences-learning exchanges (fall and spring) for up to 55 staff at
MIECHV contracted sites. The spring 2018 IrainingHvill focus on Healthy

.  Families America required content training for continued certification. The fall
training 2018 will be based on findings from the needs assessment.

2.9.1.5.2. Provide logistical and planning support for at least two half or full day in-
person statewide and/or regional trainings.

2.10. Provide Technical Assistance

2.10.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.1.1. in consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide technical assistance to
three discrete groups directed toward their meeting the national standards
described in the U.S. Centers foV Disease Control and Prevention's (CDC) Public
Health Preparedness Capabilities (March 2011) and subsequent editions:

2.10.1.1.1. DPHS/Emergency Services Unit (ESU) preparedness staff

2.10.1.1.i2. Public health preparedness coordinators at the 13 organizations funded by
DPHS to provide Regional Public Health Network services. TA will be
available to both individuals and as a group.

2.10.1.1.3. Medical Reserve Corps units recognized by the registered with the U.S.
Surgeon General. Office of the Civilian Volunteer Medical Reserve Corps, to
support recruitment, training and deployment of the MRC volunteers.

2.10.1.2. Conduct Jurisdictional Risk Assessments in accordance with CDC requirements
in collaboration with at least ten (10) public health preparedness coordinators from
the thirteen (13) organizations funded to provide Public Health Network services.

2.10.1.3. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, identify and coordinate the
availability of technical assistance providers to DPHS contractors and service
provider agencies.

2.10.1.4. . Develop and produce educational materials

2.10.1.4.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or produce
educational materials on topics determined by DPHS staff. All materials shall
be developed In accordance with CDC recommendations contained in Simply
Put: Guide to Developing Easy-To-Understand Materials, CDC July 2010,
available at: https:/Avww.cdc.gov/healthliteracy/pdf/Simply_Put.pdf

2.10.1.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking. Program (EPHT)

. 2.10.1.5.1. Develop educational materials targeted to public health professionals.
emergency preparedness officials, and local partners to increase knowledge
and understanding of the EPHT program at the state and local levels.

JSI Research & Tralnlne institule. Inc. exhibit a. Amendment «2 Contractor Iniilali
d/b/a Community Health ln|^litute '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.10.1.6. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP)

, 2.10.1.6.1. Develop educational materials in collaboration with the HHLPPP to target to
clinicians, contractors, and families to increase knowledge and understanding
of best practices relative to Screening and Management Guidelines, lead-
safe work practices, and keeping children safe from lead hazards.

2.10.1.7. Immunization Program

2.10.1.7.1. Develop educational materials targeted towards increasing awareness
related to the Immunization Information System (IIS).

2.10.1.7.2. Develop educational materials targeted towards increasing awareness
related to the benefits of immunizations across the lifespan.

2.10.1.8. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.8.1. In consultation with DPHS, maintain and update the NH HIV Planning Group
(HPG) website.

2.10.1.9. Community Health Development Section

2.10.1.9.1. Develop educational materials to increase awareness of regional Public
Health Advisory Councils.

2.10.1.10. Matemal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section

2.10.1.10.1. Provide Continuous Quality Improvement technical assistance through
site visits and phone consultations to support local implementing agencies
funded by DPHS that seek accreditation from the Health Families America
accreditation board.

2.10.2. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

2.10.2.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop evaluation plans that
clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance
measures.

2.10.2.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.2.2.1. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate ongoing EPHT projects that meets
criteria outlined by CDC and fulfills federal requirements. This document will
facilitate programming planning, implementation, and evaluation.

2.10.2-.2.2. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate previously funded HHLPPP
projects that addressed dissemination techniques and understanding of the
2015 Lead Surveillance Report and the Childhood Lead Screening and
Management Guidelines.

2.10.2.3. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.10.2.3.1. Implement current MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan

2.10.2.3.2. Participate in updating the MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan.
2.10.3. Lfpdale Strategic Plans

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit A. Amendmertl #2 Contractor iniliata
d/b/a Community Health Institute v""
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New Hampshire Department or Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment U2

2.10.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, update pre-existing strategic
plans that clearfy outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
performance measures.

2.10.3.2. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.10.3.2.1. Update the 2010 MIECHV Strategic State Plan.
2.11. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

2.11.1. As directed by DPHS staff, serve as fiscal agent to maximize the efficient use of
resources as follows;

2.11.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program'

2.11.2.1. Enter into up to 3 mini-grants with vendors funded by DPHS to provide Regional
Public Health Networks services. A list of currently funded vendors is available at:
http://www.dhhs.nh.QOv/dDhs/rDhn/index.htm.

2.11.2.2. Subcontract with mini-grant recipients funded by DPHS to provide Regional
Public Health Networks services in order to increase the amount of funds and amend
work plans.

2.11.3. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

2.11.3.1. Reimburse costs incurred by approximately 5 public members of the HPG to
attend out-of-state conferences identified by the DPHS and mileage costs to attend
in-state meetings, the purpose is to increase the knowledge and skills of the public
members of the HPG.

2.11.3.2. Procure prevention supplies as determined by the IDPICSS to an additional six
(6) clinics funded by the IDPICSS to provide testing and treatment for sexually
transmitted infections and human Immunodeficiency virus,

2.11.3.3. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to provide
consultation and technical assistance on the production of a digital storytelling

. project, including coordination, development and implementation of a digital
storytelling workshop; production of a digital storytelling electronic file for up to eight
stories and training of participants in conducting an engagement session with
stakeholders.

2.11.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness i

2.11.4.1. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to procure E-Studio,
a web-based collaboration system currently in use at DPHS.

2.11.4.2. Subcontract with 13 Medical Reserve Corps units to build capacity to staff
emergency response facilities during public health emergencies.

2.11.4.3. Enter into subcontracts with up to 4 individuals identified by the DPHS to
participate in radiological emergency planning, training and exercises to build staffing
capacity to respond to radiological emergencies.

2.11.5. Maternal. Infant and Early'Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.11.5.1. Support at least two MIECHV funded home visiting agency staff selected by the
DHHS to attend the annual MIECHV grantee conference.

2.11.5.2. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to research and
identify methods to increase utilization of postpartum visits by home visiting families.

2.12. HIV and Hepatitis Community Vulnerability Assessments-

2.12.1. The Contractor shall design methodology, including but not limited to;

2.12.1.1. Wo'rKIng with the Department's Bureau of infectious Disease Control
(BICD) to organize and engage a stakeholder group (Stakeholder Group) to

provide input on the vulnerability assessment design, methods, expected

output and outcomes;

2.12.1.2. Review current literature describing similar Vulnerability Assessments to
inform the study design;

2.12.1.3. \A/ork with the BICD to coordinate technical assistance potentially
available from the Center for Disease Control and Prevention for study design
and interpretation of results;

2.12.2. The Contractor shall assemble data, including but not limited to:

2.12.2.1. Working with the BICD to develop data use agreements, as applicable, to

obtain data for the assessment to include data on:

2.12.2.1.1. Overdose mortality and morbidity;

2.12.2.1.2. Emergency medical service arid emergency department
utilization;

2.12.2.1.3. Incidence of bloodborne infections associated with non-sterile

drug injection;

2.12.2.2. Obtaining other relevant data for the Vulnerability Assessment to include:

2.12.2.2.1. Demographic data. Medication Assisted Treatment capacity;

2.12.2.2.2. Other substance-use related treatment capacity;
/

2.12.2.2.3. Controlled drug prescription rates; and

2.12.2.2.4. Public safety data;

2.12.2.3. With geographical context, to the extent such data is available, sufficient

to conduct analyses to facilitate resource targeting;

2.12.2.4. Any work performed by the Contractor as part of these initiatives shall

comply with ail state rules, and state and federal laws as required to

safeguard the confidentiality of the information, and to comply with 42 CFR

part 2 as applicable.

2.12.3. The Contractor shall conduct analyses for the Vulnerability Assessment,

including but not limited to;

JSI Research 4 Training Institute. Inc. ExhiWi a. Amendmsni #2 Comractor inliiais''^^^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment P2

2.12.3.1. Completing statistical analyses following design and modeling
procedures as defined in co!lat>oration with the Stakeholder Group

2.12.3.2. Work with the BICD and the Stakeholder Group to review interim findings;

2.12.3.3. Refine the analysis as necessary and possible with additional data,
methodological variations or innovations;

2.12.3.4. Complete the analysis for different sub-geographies of the state as
determined in conjunction with BICD and the Stakeholder Group. ^

2.12.4. The Contractor shall disseminate and apply findings of the Vulnerability
Assessment by use of the following methods:

2.12.4.1. Produce jurisdictional maps identifying high-risk areas identified through
the assessment process;

2.12.4.2. Distribute findings to key stakeholders in formats that support action;

2.12.4.3. Presenting at public health and healthcare provider"meetings;

2.12.4.4. Creating fact sheets or report cards for geographic sub-regions of New
Hampshire;

2.12.4.5. Publishing findings in professional journals;

2.12.4.6. Use the findings from the assessment to assist the Department in the
development of plans that strategically allocate prevention and intervention
services.

3. Staffing

The Contractor shall:

3.1. Provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified in this Contract and shall maintain a
level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out ail of the functions, requirements, roles,
and duties In a timely fashion to meet the scope of work

3.2. Ensure staffing structure includes a contract administrator to administer all scopes of work
relative to this Contract, as well as progress and finance reporting.

3.3. Ensure that across all funded positions, in addition to subject matter expertise, there is a
combined level of expertise, skills and ability to understand data; use data for planning and
evaluation; community engagement and collaboration; group facilitation skills; and IT skills in
order to function as a team, ideally with complementary skill and abilities across these
foundational areas of expertise and abilities.

3.4. Ensure that policies and procedures consistent with state and federal laws are in place to
adequately and appropriately train staff to safeguard any individual confidential information
or protected health information that they may have access to while performing their duties
for the Contractor.

JSI Research & Training InstHule. Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment #2 Conlractor Initials "O C
d/b/8 Community Health Institute
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 02

3.5. Ensure that personnel are available during normal business hours, at a minimum Monday
through Friday. 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M.

4. Outcomes I Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following perfoirnance outcomes and measures are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to rneasure the effectiveness of the agreement:

4.2. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

4.2.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking

4.2.1.1. At least 85% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.2.2.1. At least 85% of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.3. Maternal. Infant and Earty Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Malernal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

4.2.3.1. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly Home Visiting Task Force, formerly
known as the Home Visiting Coordinating Council, meetings as either "excellent"
or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs

4.3.1. Food Protection Section

4.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the DHHS as either "excellent"
or "very good*

4.3.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.3.2.1. The training modules are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.

4.3.2.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.3.3.1. The training module is rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.

4.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.4. Maternal. Infant and Earty Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.3.4.1. Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.

JSI Research & Training Inalitute, Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #2 Cootrector initiate
d/b/a Community Health Institute
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Exhibit A, Amendment #2

4.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey. At least 85% of participants in the Parent Advisory
Council trainings rate the training programs as either "excellent" or "very good" In an
evaluation survey.

4.4. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences s.

4.4.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.4.1.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.1.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2. Immunization Program

4.4.2.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee memljers rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation sun/ey.

4.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.4.3.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to.
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4.2. At least 85% of conference participants rale the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

4.4.5.1. At least 85% of learning exchange participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.5. Provide Technical Assistance •

4.5.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.

4.5.1.2., Publish 10 Jurisdictional Risk Assessment reports.
4.5.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.5.3.

4.5.3.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.
4.6. Develop and produce educational materials

4.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

JSI Research & Training Instilule, Inc. Exhibit A, Amondmeni #2 Connector Inlilait
d/b/a Community Heatth Institute «
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Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.6.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.3. Immunization Program

4.6.3.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

4.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

4.7.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.7.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.7.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.7.3.1. Implementation of at least 90% of the current MIECHV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

4.7.3.2. Participate in at least 80% of the Continuous Quality Improvement planning
meetings.

4.8. Update Strategic Plans

4.8.1. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.8.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic
Stale Plan.

4.8.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the Home Visiting Task Force strategic planning
session as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.9. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

4.9.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.9.1.1. Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.
4.9.2. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

4.9.2.1. Target: 95% of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supplies distributed to sites
are logged on the appropriate distribution log within one week of distribution.

4.9.2.2. Numerator- The number of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supply
distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the
distribution date.

JSl Research & Training institute, Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #2 Contractor lnmala'*<Y/^
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4.9.3. Maternal. Infant and Earty Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

4.9.3.1. Subcontract for increase in postparlum visit project executed as directed by
DPHS.

4.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.9.4.1. Subcontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by DPHS/ESU.

4.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collaboration system executed as directed by DPHS.

4.9.4.3. Subcontracts with up to four individuals executed as directed by DPHS.
4.10. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS. a corrective action plan for

any performance measure that was not achieved.

5. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor shall:

5.1. Be responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention Is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

5.2. Publications funded under this contract shall be responsible to adhere to the requirements in
Exhibit C Special Provisions, Paragraph 14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership.

I

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure equal access to quality health services and provide culturally
and linguistically appropriate services and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special
Provisions. Paragraph 16. Limited English Proficiency (LEP).

5.4. DHHS recognizes that Contractors may choose to use subcontractors with specific expertise
to perform certain services or functions for efficiency or convenience. However, the
Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s) for any
services required by this Contract that are provided, in whole or in part, by a subcontracted
agency or provider, and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special Provisions,
Paragraph 19. Subcontractors of this Contract.

5.5. Adhere to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act requirements to maintain
the confidentiality of protected health information provided by Individuals who contact the
poison control center in Exhibit I Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate and
any applicable state rule or other state or federal law.

5.6. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance indicators are annually achieved and
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement;

JSI Research & Training Instilute. Inc. Exhibit A. Amendmani #2 Contractor inHlala'^S^_
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The State shall pay the conlractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1,8, Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract is funded with Funds from;

1.1.1. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) U 93.069. Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # U90TP000535.

1.1.2. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.889, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # U90TP00D535,

1.1.3. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2013 Cooperative Agreement Application for the
Immunization, Vaccine for Children. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.539,
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 23IP000757,

1.1.4. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program ■
Network Implementation, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93 070 Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN) # NU38EH000947.

1.1.5. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, NH - Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.753, Federal Award Identification Number

.  (FAIN)#NUE1EH001271.

1.1.6. US Environmental Protection Agency, Lead 404(g) Training and Certification, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 66.707, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 99151215.

1.1.7. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.870, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#X10MC29490.

1.1.8. US Department of Health" and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.994, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#BO4MC30627.

1.1.9. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Preventative Health and Health Services Block
Grant. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.758, Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) n NB010T009141.

1.1.10. Health and Social Services. Department of Health and Human Services, HHS; Division of Public
Health, Bureau of Infectious Disease Control, Public Health Crisis Response, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.354, Federal Award Identification Numtjer (FAIN)
#U90TP921693.

1.1.11. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, PS 18-1802 HIV Integrated Prevention and
Sunreillance Programs, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.940, Federal Award
Identification (FAIN) # U62PS9244538.

1.1.12. Other Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates. Food Protection Fees and Radiological Health Fees

1.1.13. General Funds.

1.2. The (Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the
funded contractor's current and/or future funding.

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit B. Amendment M2 Contractor initials
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2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows;

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual .expenditures Incurred in the fulfillment of
this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved budget tine Items.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an Invoice In a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth working day of
each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the prior
month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in order to
initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services.

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds are available. Contractors will
keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the Stale no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37,
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbillinG@dhhs.nh.QQv, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified In Exhibit
A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line Items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibrts within the price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit B. Amendment fZ Contractor Inttisls
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/e

Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Heallh Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Services • Public Health Emergency

Budget Request for: Preparednflfla
(Name ol RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment #2

Llne.lterh.V'
' ^ i

plf:ect;/"'
'•Incremental';.

'Indirect •"/'i Total. ''.'
•' If • • ••

.'•Fixed 'v.-'

Allocation Method for,
indiredt/Flx^d'Cbst -

1 ■ Total SalaryA/Vages $  47.297.30
2. Employee Benefits $  17,972.97
3. Ccnsutiants

4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals,

Repair & Maintenance, Purchase &
Depreciation) 1,418.92

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical.
Office) $  3,310.81
6. Travel

'■ Occupancy $  4,729.73
8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions.
Audit & Legal. Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  3,783.78
9. Software
10. Marketinfl/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training 945.95
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

Medical Reserve Corps Mini-Grants $  30,000.00
Meetir>g & Training Supplies $  12,500.00

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin
Payroll and Accounting

TOTAL $  121.959.46

$  2,601.35
$  1,418.92
$  1,418.92
S  2,601.35

$ 47,297.30
$ 17,972.97
$

$  1,418.92

$  3,310.81
$
$  4,729.73

$  3,783.78

$
$  945.95

$ 30,000.00
$ 12.500.00
$  2,601.35

The iederally approved
Negotiated indirect Cost

Rate Agreement (NICRA)
tor JSI Research and
Trainlr>g Institute. Inc.

includes Irirtge benefits
(38% 61 salary) and other
general operating costs to
support project activities

including occupancy,
equipment, general office

supplies,
telecommunications and
other current expenses,

information systems,
accounting and payroll,

human resources and staff
development, and general

administrative support
costs. The approved

basis tor application of the
NICRA is on

salary/wages only
Including holiday, sick and

vacation.

$  1,418.92
$  1,418.92
$ 2,601.35
$_

$  8.040.54 I $130.000.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 6.6%

Page 1 of l

Contractor Initials;

Date: ^'24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Roauest for: Services • HIV Prevention

(Nairn 0/ RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 20191 Amendment #2

Line Item . r. 'v ' . ' ; ■ .
■ u'- Direct •«. '. Indirect^,-- v;Total.,;;". WlocaHon Method for
!  Incremental ■ .• ••'Fixed'' ' • 'IndirecVRxei.Cdetr*

1. Total Salary/Wages S  9.730.00 S 9,730.00 Tho loderally approved
2. Employee Benelits S  3.697.40 $  3,697.40 Negotiated indirect Cost
3. Consultants \ $  Hate Agreement (NIUHA)

4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals, Repair &

Maintenance. Purchase & Oepreciaiion) $  291.90

lor joi Hoseercn ana

S  291 90 Trainlrtg InetJtule. Inc.
S. Supplies: (Includes supplies lor Education, L^b,
Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $  681.10

uiciudes liittye iMttelils

$  681 10 (3®* o1 sataiy) and other
6. Travel $
7. Occupancy $  973.00
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage.
Subscriptions. Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  778.40

equipment, general olfice

.  supplies.
$  778.40 telecommunications and

9. Software $  other current expenses.

10.. MarKellng/Communications $  . informalion systems.

11. Staff Education and Training $  194.60 $  194.60 accounting and payroll.
12. Subcontracts/^reements ^  numan resources ana siaii

13. 0th6r{specilic details mandatory): ^  deveiopmoni. and general
HPO Member Reimbursements ^  uOniintsliutivosuppuil

Conference Support
Prevention Supplies $  13,000.00 - $ 13,000.00 li™'::;':
Meeting Expenses $  25.440.00

Website Maintenance

Subscription Services $  vemlinn
Other Professional Support Services $

Special Projects $  18,559.50 $ 18.559.50

■Informalion Sysfems $535.15 $  535.15
HR $291.90 $  291.90

Gen Admin $291.90 $  291.90
Payroll and Accountino $535.15 $  535.15

$ S $
TOTAL $  73,345.90 $1,654.10 S 75,000.0^

Conlraclor Iniiialsiab;

Page > o11 Date: 1/24/19



New Hempehire Deparlment of Health end Humon Services

JSi Research A Training institute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health tnalilute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • Pharmaceutical Rebates

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 201S | Amendment #2

! T: • ' ' ■ V'y ' , s ••.♦ i *. • •: Direct indirect Total Allocation.Methodfor

Line Item •' 'rfncrementel :Fixed - ■" .'j. . fhdlrect/Plxed Cost''
1. Total Salary/Wages $  The fodarolly approved
2. Employee Benefits $  Negotiated indirect Cost
3. Consutiants $  HBia Agreement (NtUHA)
4. Equipment; (Includes Rentals. Repair & for JSt Keaearch ervl

Maintenance. Purchase A Oepreclaiion) ^  Training Institute, inc.
5. Supplies; (includes supplies for Education, Lab.
Pharmacy, Medical. Office)

(3B% ot salary) and other

6. Travel
7. Occupancy
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone. Postage, equipment, general office
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board suppUei,
Expenses) $  . telecommunications and
9. Software {  . oihar current expeneei.
10. Marketing/Communications c  Informeilon systems.
11. Staff Education and Tralnirx) j  ucccuniing and payroii.
12. Subcontracla/Aqreements human resourcas and stall

13. Other (specific details mandatory);
HPG Member Reimbursements

Conference Support
Prevention Supplies $  10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 Nir.nAI«nn

Meeting Expenses
Website Maintenance $  irtcluding hoDday. sick and
Subscripilon Services $  vocation.

Other Professional Suooort Services $
Special Projects $  10,000.00 $ 10,000.00

Information Systems $
HR $

Gen Admin $
Payroll and Accountino $

$ S 1
TOTAL $  20,000.00 $  • 1 $ 20.000.00 1

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

Pege i oi i

Contraclor tnillBiS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Prolesslonal Support
Budget Request for: Services - EPHT

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment

LinoItehr • v ■' :■ ''
• Direct / . Indirect t'Totej • c .Al.'ocatipnJyjethbd for

'Incremental. "Fixed ' -' • 'Ihdlrect/Flx'ed Coist"
1. Total Salary/Weaes $  The lederally approved
2. Employee Benefits $  . Negotiated intfreci Cost
3. Consultants $  Hsie Agreement (NiUHA)
4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals, Repa[r.&
Maintenance, Purchase & Depredation)

lor Jbi Hesearch and
^  Training Institute, Inc.

5. Supplies; (includes supplies lor Education. Lab,
Pharmacy, Medical. Office) (38% of salary) and other

6. Travel
7. Occupancy
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone. Postage,
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal. Insurance. Board
Expenses)

egulpment, general oltice
supplies.

$  . tetecommunicalions and
9. Software $  other current expenses.
10. Marketing/Communications ^  . iniormaiion systems.
11. Staff Education and Training 1  eccounllDg and payrol).
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $  20,000.00 S 20 000 00 'Mourcas eitd stall
13. Other (specitic details mandatory):
Materials Production

Information Systems -

HR $  - NirRAIf^n
Gen Admin

Payroll and Accountina $  - including holiday, sick and
$  • vacation.
$

TOTAL IS 20.000.00 1
lr>dlrect As A Percent of Direct »OIV/OI

Contractor Inlilals:

Page i ol i Date: 1/24/19



New Hampshire Departmeni of Health end Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/e Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • Home Visiting

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2019 I Amendment if2

Llneltem i, **• "i..
Direct^-'.'.■•:'l/idlrectr Allocatlpii Method.for."

''increnwn'tol ''Rxed ' '•nintllrect/FI*^ Cosi'i"
1. Toial Salary/Waoes $  13.826.50 $ '13,826.50 The fodorolly approved
2. Emolovee Benefits $  5.254.06 $  5,254.06 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $  Here Agreement (niuha)
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair & Maintenance,
Purchase & Depreciation) $  414.79

lor j$i Hosearch and

$  414 79 ' '"C-
S. Supplies: (includes supplies lor Education, Lab,
Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  967.85

(38% ol salary) and other

6. Travel $  support prnjwrt Briltflllw*
7. Occupancy $  1,382.65 $  1,382.65 including (y.eupflncy.
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage.
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  ̂1,106.12

equipment, general office
supplies.

$  1,106.12 telecommunications and
9. Software {  omer current expenses.
to. Marketirio/Communications j  . information systems.
11. Staff Education and Traininp $  276.53 $  276 53 e"d payroll.
12. Sut^ontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details marxlatory);
Learnirta Exchartpes
Scholarships
HFA Traininp & Supports $  Nir.RA Is on

Information Systems $  760.46 $  760.46 teiary/wegea only
HR $ 414.79 $  414,79 irKludirw hoHdav. sicK and

Gen Admin $ 414.79 $  414.79 vacation.
Payroll and Accountirto $ 760.46 $  760.46

TOTAL $  23^28.50 $2,350.50 $ 25,579.00 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.1%

Page I ol t
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New Hampshire Dep8rtmor>^n?Mlth and Human Servlcds

JSI Research & Training InslKute, Inc.

BIdder/Contrector Name: d/b/a Community Heelth Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for: Services • PHHS Block Grant
(Name ol RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 | Amendment #2

Llnelt'em- "v'i; ; "f
\ Direct'' r. . '. •Indirect: /. uTotal '-' vAJIocatlpn Method for
.•Increrhenilal 'vFlxed - -jlridlroct/Flxei !Cosl •

1. Total Salaiy/Wages $  5.945.95 $ $  5,945.95 The fedsrally &pprov«d
2. Employee Benefits $  2.259.45 $- f  2,259.45 Negotialed indiroci Cost
3, Consuftanis $• Kate Agreamem (NICKA)

4. Equipmeni: (includes Rentals, Repair & Maintenance.
Purchase & Depreciation) S  178.39 $•

lor JSI Haiaarch and

S  17S3fi Tralr>fng InsUlute. Irtc.
5. Supplies: (Includes supplies lor Education, Lab.

Pharmacy. Medical, Office) $  416.22 $
(38% Of salary) and oihar

6. Travel $
7. Occupancy $  594.59 $•
6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone. Postage.
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Et^nses) $  475.67 $-

oguipmeni. general olflce
•upptios.

$  475.67 telecommunications and
9. Software $- other current expenses,

10. Martcetirxi/Gommunications S  4.000.00 5- S  4 000 00 inlormaUon systems.
11. Staff Education and Training S  118.92 $- S  118 92 eccouniing and payroll.
12. Subcontracts/Agraements $•
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $•

$-

$

NIP.RA It An

Information Systems $ 327.03 $  327.03 saiaryrMragas only
HR $  178.38 $  178.36 Inchidino holiday, sick and

Gen Admin $  178.38 $  178.38 vacation.

Payroll end Accountino $  327.03 $  327.03

TOTAL $  13.989.19 $1,010.81 1 15,000.00 1

Contractor Inlllets:

Page t ot1 Date: 1/24/19



New Hampshire Depertment ol Health and Hum8r^ervlce^~

JSI Research & Training inatKute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Commuritty Health Inatltute

Public Health Professional Sup|>ori
Budget Request lor: Services ♦Opiold Assessment

(NarDQ ol RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment #2

Llne'llem" .-. ".•h ■J-i"'.
, 7,Dlrect V ;i Indirect . Total . .'/^location Method for

n' Ihcrenibntal V Fixed'- ••'lndlrbct/Fii(wj''Co8ir.»
t. Total Salary/Wages $  30.400.60 $- S 30,400.80 The ledersDy approved
2. Employee Beneliis $  11.552.27 $• $ 11,552.27 Negotiated indirect Cost
3. Consultants $• Hate Agreement (NtcHA)
4. Equtpmeni; (includes Rentals. Repair & Maintenance,
Purchase & Oepreciation) $  912.01 $■

ior JSi Hetearch ana

S  912 01 Training InstJtuie, Inc.
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education. Lab,
Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $  2.128.06 $- «  9 19a rw

6. Travel S  300.00 $-
7. Occupancy $  3,040.07 $ $  3,040.07 ifKtudIng occupancy.
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage.
Subscriptions, Audit 8 Legal, Insurance. Board
Expenses) $  2,432.02 $-

equipment, general office
supplies,

$ 2,432.02 lelecommunlcetions and
9. Software $. other curroni expenses,

10. Marketing/Communications $ inlormaiion sysiems.
11. Staff Education and Traininq $  608.03 $. $  608 03 accounting artd payroll.
12. Sut>contracts/Aareements $- human rasourcee end stall

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $
$-
$•

Nir.RA i« nn

Inlormaiion Systems $ 1,673.54 1673.54 aalary/wagee only
912.82 Inciudirtg holiday, sick and
912.82 vacation.

1673.54

$ 56.546.00 1

HR $ 912.82
Gen Admin S 912.82

Payroll arid Accountino $ 1,673.54
TOTAL $  51,373.26 $5,172.73

Indirect As A Percent of Direct lO-IVo

Comracior Inltlsis: ^^^7 (,
Page I ol t Date:
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

JefTrcy A. Meyers 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-27M50I 1-800^52-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax:603-271.4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.eov

Director

January 22, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Division of Public
Health Services, to enter into an amendment with JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
d/b/a Community Health Institute, Vendor #161611-6001, 501 South Street, 2"^^ Floor, Bow,
NH 03304 to provide a broad range of programrriatic support services across a number of
public health programs by increasing the price limitation by $13,000 from $1,565,580 to
$1,578,580 effective upon date of Governor and Council approval, with no change to the
completion date of June 30, 2019. The original contract was approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 21, 2017 (Item #51). Funds being added are 100% Other Funds
(Pharmaceutical Rebates).

Funds are available in the following accounts in SFY 2018 and 2019, with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and
Executive Council.

FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to increase the budget for the Human Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV) Program by adjusting several program-area budgets in order to enable the vendor
to purchase additional prevention supplies, specifically Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
test kits. The budget for the Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program is decreased due
to a reduction in our federal awards for the program from the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). The adjustments result in
an overall price limitation increase of $13,000.

The vendor provides a broad range of public health professional support services
Including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs; developing
evaluation plans; conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials; planning
for large statewide conferences; serving as a fiscal agent; providing technical assistance to
local partners; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental contractors.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2

These sei^ices increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health
practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to New Hampshire citizens.

The overarching purpose of this contract is to better coordinate a range of public health
professional support services on a statewide basis to assure that New Hampshire residents
are served by effective initiatives to protect and improve the health of the putJilc. The Vendor
will ensure successful outcomes across this range of services and program areas that include:
transparent and informed evaluation planning processes; high-quality educational rhaterials,
conferences and training programs; knowledge and skills-building among Department
contracted agencies; timely and efficient administrative processes; and effective evaluation of
programs.

The Department procured these services as it does not have the resources available to
manage these specific services in-house. Support services to be provided include:

Environmental Public Health Tracking activities;
Food Protection activities;
Lead Poisoning Prevention activities;
Immunization Promotion;

Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation and Care activities:
Maternal and Child Health activities;

Public Health Emergency Preparedness activities

This contractor was selected through a competitive bid process.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this
Agreement has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and Council. No renewal request is being made at this time.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the vendor may not
have sufficient HIV test kits to provide to contracted testing sites. This may lead to testing not
being available to individuals to inform them of their HIV status.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Funds being added are 100% Other Funds (Pharmaceutical
Rebates). Funding for the total contract are 73% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention, HPP & PHEP Cooperative Agreements, Immunization Cooperative
Agreement, EPHT Program, NH Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children, US EPA Lead 404G
Training and Certification, UH Health Resources & Services Administration, Maternal , Infant &
Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant, Maternal and Child Health Grant, 21% Other Funds from
HIV Pharmaceutical Rebates, Food Protection Agency Licensing Fees, Utility Assessment
from Safety, and 6% General Funds.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

LiSia M. Morris

Director

Approved b

Aey Meyers

Commissioner

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 67% Federal, 33% General

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115.000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115,000

Sub Total $230,000

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 70.000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 70,000

Sub Total $140,000

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
IMMUNIZATION PROGRAM 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023320 65,000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023320 65.000

Sub Total $130,000
05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES 100% Other

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 133,800 50,000 183,800
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 113,800 113,800

Sub Total $247,600 $50,000 $297,600

Page lof 3



05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD
PROTECTION 37% General, 63% Other

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 18.000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 .. 18,000

Sub Total $36,000

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC
HEALTH TRACKING 100% Federal

Piscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 50,000
SPY 2019 102-500731 ' Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 50,000

Sub Total $100,000

05-95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD
PROTECTION 100% Federal

Piscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

SPY

2018
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90003600 36,000

.0 ,  36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 , 50.000 0 50,000

Sub Total

SPY 2018
86,000

0 86,000

SPY

2019
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90003600 36,000

(27,000) 9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 50,000 (10,000) ,40.000

Sub Total

SPY 2019
86.000

(37.000) 49,000

Sub Total $172,000 (37.000) $135,000

05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ACA
HOME VISITING X02 FORMULA GRANT 100% Federal

Piscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc .  90083200 221,990

SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 221,990

Sub Total $443,980

Page 2 of 3



05-95-90-902010.5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES
MATERNAL - CHILD HEALTH 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No ■
change)

SFY2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 24,000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 24.000

Sub Total $48,000

05-95-90-9015010.5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION,
RADIOLOGICAL EMERGENCY RESPONSE 100% Other .

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount
SFY

2018
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9,000 0 9,000

SFY

2019
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9,000 0 9,000

Sub Total $18,000 $0 $18,000
TOTAL $1,565,580 $13,000 $1,578,580

Page 3 of 3



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-27M5J6 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

February 5, 2018

JefFrey A. Meyers, Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
d/b/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH, as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2018-
029A. ■ v..

The purpose of this contract amendment is for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
to continue to provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of
public health programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing
training programs; conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials;
planning for large statewide conferences; and making subject matter experts available to
Departmental contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and
state-level public health practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to NH
citizens.

The funding amount for this amendment is $13,000, increasing the current contract from
$1,565,580, to an amount not to exceed $1,578,580 and is effective upon the date of
Governor and Council approval, with no change to the completion date of June 30, 2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

incerely,

i.V

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf

DolT #2018-029A

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Todoyfor New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the
Public Health Professional Support Services

This Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #1") dated this 22"" day of January, 2018, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute,
(hereinafter referred to as 'Ihe Contractor"), a nonprofit agency with a place of business at 501 South
Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #51), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope of work
and the payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $13,000 from $1,565 580 to read"
$1,578,580. .

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and
Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9330.
4. Delete Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV, SFY 18 and

replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV SFY 18
Amendment#!

5. Delete Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPA Lead, SFY 19
and replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services -EPA Lead
SFY 19 Amendment#!

6. Delete Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead, SFY 19
and replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead
SFY19 Amendment#!

Community HeaRh Institute Amendment
RFP-2018-DPHS-O3-PUBLIC Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

ll'if
Date l^me:

Title: O PhS

23

JSI Resear^i and Trajping Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community
Health Inst/

1/22/18

th art

ire

Date Name: Jin
Title: Rjegiort

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of MfW tiflJupshirt . County of M'f/rlPilftr.kl on 1 [ ill I ? before the
undersigned officerf personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

ioiMn/jJ COibhMh
Signature of Notary public or Justice of the Peace

t
Name and Titljl of Notary or Justice ofi

^  Notary Pubte^My Commission Expires: My Commbaion Expfrwt ^

Community Health Institute Amendment #1
RFP-2O10-DPHS-O3-PUBLIC Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' ' Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Exiecutive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Health Institute
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC

Amendment «1

Page 3 of 3



JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services - HIV

Amendment 01

Budget Period: SPY 2018

1. 1 oiai ̂ aiary/wagea
% 4 37.607.84 The federallv approved

2. employee Benefits S  14.290.98 4 4 14,2^.96 Negotiated tr>directCost
j. uonsuitants S $ 4  . Kate Agreement (NICRA)
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair & Maintenance,
Purchase & Depredation) $  1,165.64 $

for JSI kesearcn eno

$  1 165 64 Training Institute, Inc.
b. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education. Lab,
Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $  1.880.39 $

- includes fringe benefits

t  1 Aflmo

b. 1 ravel
S  ' 500.00 5

f. occupancy %  3.760.78 4
3. Current Expenses (includes lelephone. Hostage.
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  2.820.60 $

equipment, general office
supplies.

4  2 820.60 telecommunications and
u. software i 4 ^  ̂ uUiei cuiieiil expenses.
lb. Mameting/communications i 4
11. Staff Education ana i raining S  752.16 4 4  'lyeA jfe—accounting and payroll,
12. Subcontracts/Agreements i 4
ib. other (speofic details manoaiory): 4

MKO Member Reimbursement %  loM.oO 4
Conference support S  2.000.00 4 4  5.O66.60 for application of the
Prevention Supplies S  66.600.00 4 4 66.800.(X} NICRA is on salary/wages

Digital storytelling $  25,000.00 4 4 25.b(!M.(X) only Inciuding holiday, sick
Meeting Expenses S  6.000.00 4 4  5,666.66 ano vacation.

Website Maintenance $  500.00 $ 4  500.66
Subscription Services 4  766.60

Other Professional Support Services S  10.000.00 4  10,000.00
Special Projects ii.855.73 4  1,853.73

Infomation Systems $ 1.541.92 4  1.541.92
HR 4 1,541.92 4  1,541.92

Gen Admin 4  1.541.92 4  1,541.92
Payroll a/xf Accountinq 4  1,541.92 4  1.54i6i

5 4 4
TOTAL i  ̂yv.wJ.55 rmmn

RFP.20ia-DPHS-03^UBLIC
Contractor Initials:

Page 1 ofi Date: 1/22/18



New Hampshire bepariment of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name; Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support Services
Budget Request for: CDC Lead

Amendment #1

Budget Period: SPY 2019

IS
indlrsot. r

1. 1 otal Salary/Wages $ 2,802.20 5 $ 2,802.20 The federally approved
2. bmployee Benefits < i 1,064.84 $ i 1,064.84 Negotiated Indirect Cost

3. Consultants i - i -

Rate Agreement (NICRA)

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair
& Maintenance, Purchase &

Depreciation) $ 86.87 $ $ 86.87

' for JSI Research and

Training Institute. Inc.
Includes fringe benefits

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical.
Office) $ 140.11 $ s 140.11

general operating costs to
support project activities
Including occupancy.

6. Travel $ • $ $ -  . equipment, general office
7. Occupancy 280.22 $ t 280.22 supplies,

telecommunications and

8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions, Audit
& Legal, Insurance, Board Expenses) $ 210.15 $ s 210.15

other current expenses,

information systems,
accounting and payroll,
human resources and staff

9. Software $ - $ $ - development, and general
1U. MaiKeting/communications $ - $ $ - administrative support
11. Staff bducationand training i 56.04 $ $ 56.04 costs. The approved t>as'is
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ -

for application of the

13. Other (speatic details mandatory): $ - $ -

NICRA Is on ealary/wagee

Educational Outreach 3,900.01 $ 3,900.01 only including holiday, sick

Infomiation Systems $ -

' and vacation.

HR $ $ 114.89 $ 114.89

Gen Admin $ i 114.89 $ 114.89

Payroll and Accounting $  - 114.89 114.89

$ - i 114.89 $ 114.89

TOTAL $ 8,540.44 $ 459.56 99UUv«vv

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 5.4%

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Contractor Initials: jif.
Page 1 of 1 Date; 1/22/18



Jeffrey A. Meyers

('oinmissionrr

Lisa Morris. .MSSW

Director

57 5'
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

29 HAZEiN DRIVE. CONCORD. Ml 03301-6527

603-271-4501 1.800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Kflx; 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1.800-735-2%4

4'VVS/ NH ntVIMOX OK
Public Health SeiA'ices
krp-o.vqneUK.B'ev«-t-.gMej5e teauong sostt ̂  j-

May 25, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
J

REQUESTED ACTION »

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into an agreement with JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, Vendor
#161611-6001, 501 South Street, 2"^ Floor, Bow, NH 03304, in an amount not to exceed $1,565,580. to provide a
broad range of programmatic support services across a number of public health programs, effective July 1, 2017
or upon date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2019. Funds are 76%
Federal. 18% Other, and 6% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in SPY 2018 and SFY 2019, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS 67% Federal, 33% General

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115,000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115,000

Sub Total $230,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS"
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 70.000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 70,000

Sub Total $140,000



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DERI OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS'
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION PROGRAM
100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 65.000
SFY2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 65,000

Sub Total $130,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS"
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES 100% Other

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 133.800
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 113.800

Sub Total $247,600

05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS"
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION. FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General, 63% Other

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 18,000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 18,000

Sub Total $36,000

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH TRACKING
100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 50.000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 50,000

Sub Total $100,000

05-95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION LEAD PROTECTION' 100%
Federal

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90003600 36,000
102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 50,000

Sub Total SFY 2018 86,000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90003600 36.000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 50,000
Sub Total SFY 2019 86,000

Sub Total $172,000
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05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. ACA HOME VISITING
X02 FORMULA GRANT 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 221.990

SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90083200 221.990

Sub Total ' $443,980

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. MATERNAL - CHILD
HEALTH 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 24.000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 24,000

Sub Total $48,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION. RADIOLOGICAL EMERGENCY
RESPONSE 100% Other

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9.000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9.000

Sub Total $18,000
TOTAL $1,565,580

EXPLANATION

Funds in this agreement will be used to provide a broad range of public health professional support
services including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs; developing evaluation plans;
conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials; planning' for large statewide conferences-
providing technical assistance to local partners; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental
contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to
provide high-quality public health services to NH citizens.

The overarching purpose of this contract is to better coordinate a range of public health professional
support services on a statewide basis to assure that all New Hampshire residents are covered by initiatives to
protect and improve the health of the public. The Vendor will ensure successful outcomes across this range of
services and program areas that include: transparent and informed evaluation planning processes; high-quality
educational materials, conferences and training programs; knowledge and skills-building among Department
contracted agencies; timely and efficient administrative processes; and effective evaluation of programs.
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The Department procured these services as it does not have the resources available to manage these
specific services in-house. Support services to be provided include:

1. Environmental Public Health Tracking activities;

2. Food Protection activities;

3. Lead Poisoning Prevention activities;

4. Immunization Promotion;

5. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation and Care activities;

6. Maternal and Child Health activities;

7. Public Health Emergency Preparedness activities

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall be provided after
June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30. 2017,
unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the slate legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennium.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, there will be a reduced capacity to
provide training to a range of public health partners on multiple health topics; host large scale conferences;
develop plans to evaluate the effectiveness of services; develop and produce educational materials; and provide
technical assistance to local and state partners.

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute was selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human
Services' web site from March 10, 2017 through April 5, 2017. In addition, bidder's conference was held on March
20, 2017.

The Department received one proposal. The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals
with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of
the proposals/applications. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the
option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Council.

The performance measures/objectives that will be used to measure the effectiveness of the agreement
are attached:

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 76% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. HPP &
PHEP Cooperative Agreements. Immunization Cooperative Agreement, EPHT Program, NH'Reduced'Lead
Poisoning of Children. US EPA Lead 404G Training and Certification, UH Health Resources & Services
Administration. Maternal , Infant & Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant, Maternal and Child Health Grant, 18%
Other Funds from HIV Pharmaceutical Rebates, Food Protection Agency Licensing Fees. Utility Assessment from
Safety, and 6% General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisa Morris, MSSW
ector

Approved by:
frey A. Meyers

Commissioner

Thv DepunmetiL of HeaUli and Human Services' Mission is to join com in unities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271.1516 TDD Access: 1-800.735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

May 23,2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
d/b/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH, as described below and referenced as DoIT No 2018-
029.

This is a request to enter into a contract with JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., to
provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of public health
programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs;'
conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials; planning for large
statewide conferences; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental
contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public
health practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to NH citizens.

The funding amount is not to exceed $ 1,565,580, and is effective July 1,2017, or upon
the date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/ik

DoIT #2018-029

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Public Health Professional Support
Services •
RFP Name

Bidder Name

JSI dba Community Health Institute

2.

3.

5.

6.

7.

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBUC

RFP Number

Pass/Fail

Maxtmum

Points

Actual

Points

85% 400 340

400 0

400 0

400 0

400 0

400 0

400 .  0

Reviewer Names

1. Neil Twitchell. Tech

o

Karen Blizzard Royce

3.
Katie Bush

Lindsay Pierce

Rhonda Siege!

6.
Beverly Droiin

7.

9.

Jennifer Conroy. Cost

Ellen Chase Lucard

Philip Nadeau



Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1. Performance Measures

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance outcomes and measures are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement;

1.2. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

1.2.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking

1.2.1.1. At least 85% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either "excellent" or
"very good." in an evaluation survey.

1.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.2.2.1. At least 85% of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.2.3. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

1.2.3.1. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.2.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly Home Visiting Coordinating Council
meetings as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

, 1.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs

1.3.1. Food Protection Section

1.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the DHHS as either "excellent"
or "very good"

1.3.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.3.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.3.2.1. The training modules are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.
1.3.2.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or

"very good" in an evaluation survey.
1.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.3.3.1. The training module is rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.
1.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or

"very good" in an evaluation survey.
1.3.4. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH);

1.3.4.1. Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.

1.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

Performance Measures
Page 1 of 3



Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1.4. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

1.4.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.4.1.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.1.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.2. Immunization Program

1.4.2.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.4.3.1. At least 85% of conference planning comrhittee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.4. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

1.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.4.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

1.4.5.1. At least 85% of learning exchange participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.5. Provide Technical Assistance

1.5.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.
1.5.2. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

1.5.2.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.
1.6. Develop and produce educational materials

1.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

1.6.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

1.6.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.6.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

Performance Measures
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Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1.6.3. Immunization Program

1.6.3.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

1.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

1.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

1.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

1.7.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

1.7.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
1.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.7.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
1.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Materna! and

Child Health Section (MCH);

1.7.3.1. Implementation of at least 90% of the current MIECHV Continuous Quality
' Improvement Plan.

1.8. Update Strategic Plans

1.8.1, Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

1.8.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic
State Plan.

1.9. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

1.9.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

1.9.1.1. Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.
1.9.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

1.9.2.1. Target: 95% of HIV and HCV testing and prevention^supplies distributed to sites
are logged on the appropriate distribution log within one week of distribution.

1.9.2.2. Numerator- The number of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supply
distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the
distribution date..

1.9.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

1.9.3.1. Subcontract for increase in postpartum visit project executed as directed bv
DPHS.

1.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.9.4.1. Subcontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by DPHS/ESU.
1.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collaboration system executed as directed by DPHS.
1.9.4.3. Subcontracts with up to four individuals executed as directed by DPHS.

1.10. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for
any performance measure that"was not achieved.

Performance Measures
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Subject: Public Health Professional Support Services RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC
FORM NUMBER P07 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTrFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community
Health Institute

1.4 Contractor Address

501 South Street, 2°^ Floor
Bow, NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-573-3300

1.6 Account Number

05-95.90-2025 \ 0-7545,05-95-90-
902510-2239,05-95-90-902510-5178,
05-95-90-902510-2229, 05-95-90-
902510-5390.05-95-90-902510-5173,
05-95-90-902510-7964. 05-95-90-
902010-5896,05-95-90-902010-5190,
4 05-95-90-201510.5299

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2019

1.8 Price Limitation

51,565,580

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, E^., Interim Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.11 ContracjpeBi^rft^e^

^ <3rr
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jonathan Stewart, Director

1.1J Acknow^OTtnt: State of , , County of , nA,6C.cX-
On 2, 3; 'ifiObeforetlieundersignedofricer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

iseaiir /y / . 1

1.14 Agenctat tur

Commission Expires September 17,2019

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Lisa Morris, MSSW, Director

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

®y' Director, On:

1 ■' 7 ApprovajJjjuthe-Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By \sk W On: ff/'l
1.18 Approval by the Goverfibr abd Executive tsuncil (ifapplicable)

By- On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through "the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block, 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incoiporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date/ all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services perfonned.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall'the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of.such available appropriated
funds, In the event of a reduction or tcrminatiori of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 In the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference,
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services, The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset fium any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted byN.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.^
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
.which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, bearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the terra of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the '
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Slate or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books; records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenanis, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be fmal for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such tinie as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event ofDefauIt; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all smdies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether fmished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law, Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the ̂ tc of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described In the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENt/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and .
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,00()pcr occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licens^ in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fiimish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificaie(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers'Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Conq)ensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Suie to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining

• provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they

will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date,

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for
services provided after June 30,2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services
has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019
biennia.

2. Scope of Services
The Contractor shall:

2.1. Provide a broad range of public health professional support services including, but not
limited to; developing and implementing training programs; conducting needs assessments;
developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences; and making
subject matter experts available to Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),
Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) contractors.

2.2. Increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to provide
high-quality public health services to NH citizens and ensure successful outcomes across
this range of services and program areas that include: transparent and informed community
planning processes; high-quality educational materials, conferences and training programs;
knowledge and skills-building among DPHS contracted agencies; timely and efficient
administrative processes; and effective evaluation of programs.

2.3. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

2.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for ongoing
committees/planning groups as defined in Attachment F.

2.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.4.1. Provide logistical support to the New England Lead Coordinating Committee (NELCC).
This includes up to 12 regular meetings of the full NELCC and up to 2 of committee/
workgroup meetings per year. Information about the NELCC is available at:

http://w\Arw.newenglandIead.org/.
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2.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking

2.5.1. Provide logistical support to host up to 10 meetings with Regional Public Health
Networks to gather feedback on the EPHT Data Portal.

2.5.2. Provide logistical support for up to 5 focus groups to conduct user research of EPHT
data and projects.

2.6. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.6.1. Provide logistical support to the NH HIV Planning Group (HPG). This includes up to 6
regular meetings of the full HPG and up to 30 of committee/workgroup meetings per
year. More infomiatlon about the HIV HPG is available at: nhhiv.org.

2.7. Matemal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and Child
Health Section (MCH);

2.7.1. Provide logistical support to quarterly conference calls for three, peer-based caucuses.
The caucuses will be role based (e.g. supervisors, home visitors, and quality
improvement stafQ.

2.7.2. Provide logistical support for the Home Visiting Coordinating Council at least quarterly.
This group serves as the MIECHV Advisory Group and is made up of collaborating
partners and others in the state with an interest and background in home visiting.

2.8. Develop and Implement Training Programs

2.8.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or implement training
programs based on adult learning theories that use various training modalities (i.e.
classroom, web-based, training of trainers, etc.) to maximize the reach of these
programs.

2.8.1.1. Food Protection Section (FPS):

2.8.1.1.1. In consultation with Food Protection Staff develop training curricula for three
discrete audiences:

.2.8.1.1.1.1. DPHS FPS staff and Food Service Establishment (FSE) inspectors in
municipalities that regulate FSE. A list of these municipalities is
available at:

http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/fp/documents/selfinspect.pdf

2.8.1.1.1.2. Staff from state agencies that conduct food safety inspections as one
component of a more comprehensive operational inspection. This
includes Department of Environmental Services Youth Camp inspection
staff, DHHS Health Facilities Licensing staff (which inspects child care
centers, nursing homes and assisted living facilities).

2.8.1.1.1.3. Food Service Workers including, but not limited to workers in
restaurants, retail food stores,, schools, and caterers.

2.8.1.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness:

2.8.1.2.1. Develop and implement training programs for two discrete audiences:

2.8.1.2.1.1. RPHN emergency preparedness coordinators
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2.8.1.2.1.2. Local municipal officials, healthcare preparedness personnel,
volunteers and others engaged in regional PHEP planning and
response.

2.8.1.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.8.1.3.1. Plan and implement the 1-day Renovation, Repair and Painting Training
programs In New Hampshire's highest risk communities using the US
Environmental Protection Agency curriculum.

2.8.1.4. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.8.1.4.1. In consultation with MIECHV/MCH staff, facilitate a training needs
assessment for the 11 MIECHV contracted home visiting sites.

2.8.1.4.2. Develop and implement an annual training plan (which will include site
specific training plans), including evaluation, from the information gamered
from the training needs assessment. At a minimum, ten (10) training
accessible opportunities should be offered per MIECHV funded home visiting
site per year. An opportunity is defined as a pre-existing training, which the
contractor pays home visiting staff to attend (can be out of state) and
trainings which are provided by the contractor. These can be offered
electronically (webinars, etc.) or in-person.

2.9, Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

2.9.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for
conferences as defined by the DPHS in the original Request for Proposal.

2.9.1.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.9.1.1,1. Provide logistical and planning support for the NELCC's annual conference
for up to 250 attendees. Provide logistical and planning support for four
regional dinner meetings for up to 120 attendees each.

2.9.1.2. Immunization Program

2.9.1.2.1. Provide logistical support for the annual Immunization Conference for
approximately 400 attendees.

2.9.1.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.9.1.3.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the annual NH Statewide
Preparedness conference for up to 800 attendees.

2.9.1.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.9.1.4.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the bi-annual NH STD, HIV,
Hepatitis, TB conference for up to 250 attendees. Planning support includes
provision of continuing education credits.

>

2.9.1.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (M1ECHV)/Matemal
and Child Health Section
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2.9.1.5.1. Provide logistical and planning support, including evaluation, to semi-annual
conferences-learnlng'exchanges (fall and spring) for up to 55 staff at
MIECHV contracted sites. The spring 2018 training will focus on Healthy
Families America required content training for continued cerllficatjon. The fall
training 2018 will be based on findings from the needs assessment.

2.9.1.5.2. Provide logistical and planning support for at least two half or full day in-
person statewide and/or regional trainings.

2.10. Provide Technical Assistance

2.10.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.1.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide technical assistance to
three discrete groups directed toward their meeting the national standards
described in the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's (CDC) Public
Health Preparedness Capabilities (March 2011) and subsequent editions;

2.10.1.1.1. DPHS/Emergency Services Unit (ESU) preparedness staff

2.10.1.1.2. Public health preparedness coordinators,at the 13 organizations funded by
DPHS to provide Regional Public Health Network services. TA will be
available to both individuals and as a group.

2.10.1.1.3. Medical Reserve Corps units recognized by the registered with the U.S.
Surgeon General, Office of the Civilian Volunteer Medical Reserve Corps, to
support recruitment, training and deployment of the MRC volunteers.

2.10.1.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.2.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts,hdentify and coordinate the
availability of technical assistance providers to DPHS contractors and service
provider agencies.

2.10.1.3. Develop and produce educational materials

2.10.1.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or produce
educational materials on topics determined by DPHS staff. All materials shall
be developed in accordance with CDC recommendations contained in Simply
Put: Guide to Developing Easy-To-Understand Materials, CDC July 2010.
available at: https://www.cdc.gov/healthliteracy/pdf/Simply_Put.pdf

2.10.1.4. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHT)

2.10.1.4.1. Develop educational materials targeted to public health professionals,
emergency preparedness officials, and local partners to increase knowledge
and understanding of the EPHT program at the state and local levels.

2.10.1.5. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP)

2.10.1.5.1. Develop educational materials in collaboration with the HHLPPP to target to
clinicians, contractors, and families to increase knowledge and understanding
of best practices relative to Screening and Management Guidelines, lead-
safe work practices, and keeping children safe from lead hazards.

2.10.1.6. Immunization Program

2.10.1.6.1. Develop educational materials targeted towards Increasing awareness
related to the Immunization Information System (IIS).
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2.10.1.6.2. Develop educational materials targeted towards Increasing awareness
related to the benefits of immunizations across the lifespan.

2.10.1.7. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.7.1. In consultation with DPHS, maintain and update the NH HIV Planning Group
.  (HPG) website.

2.10.2. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

2.10.2.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop evaluation plans that
clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance
measures.

2.10.2.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.2.2.1. Develop and Implement a plan to evaluate ongoing EPHT projects that meets
criteria outlined by CDC and fulfills federal requirements. This document will
facilitate programming planning, implementation, and evaluation.

2.10.2.2.2. Develop and Implement a plan to evaluate previously funded HHLPPP
projects that addressed dissemination techniques and understanding of the
2015 Lead Surveillance Report and the Childhood lead Screening and
Management Guidelines. ^

2.10.2.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MlECHVj/Matemal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.2.3.1. Implement current MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan

2.10.3. Update Strategic Plans

2.10.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, update pre-existing strategic
plans that clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
performance measures.

2.10.3.2. Matemal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Matemal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.3.2.1. Update the 2010 MIECHV Strategic State Plan.
2.10.4. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

2.10.4.1. As directed by DPHS staff, serve as fiscal agent to maximize the efficient use of
resources as follows:

2.10.4.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.4.2.1. Enter Into up to 3 mini-grants with vendors funded by DPHS to provide
Regional Public Health Networks services. A list of currently funded vendors
Is available at: http;//www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/rphn/lndex.htm.

2.10.4.3. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.4.3.1. Reimburse costs incurred by approximately 5 public members of the HPG to
attend out-of-state conferences Identified by the DPHS and mileage costs to
attend in-state meetings. The purpose Is to Increase the knowledge and
skills of the public members of the HPG.

2.10.4.3.2. Procure prevention supplies as determined by the IDPICSS.
1
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2.10.4.3.3. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to provide
consuitation and technicai assistance on the production of a digital
storytelling project, Including coordination, development and implementation
of a digital storytelling wor1<shop: production of a digital storytelling electronic
file for up to eight stories and training of participants in conducting an
engagement session with stakeholders.

2.10.4.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.4.4.1. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to procure E-
Studio, a web-based collaboration system currently in use at DPHS.

2.10.4.4.2. Enter Into mini-grants with up to 13 Medical Reserve Corps units to build
capacity to staff emergency response facilities during public health
emergencies.

2.10.4.4.3. Enter Into subcontracts with up to 4 individuals identified by the DPHS to
participate in radiological emergency planning, training and exercises to build
staffing capacity to respond to radiological emergencies.

2.10.4.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.4.5.1. Support at least two MIECHV funded home visiting agency staff selected by
the DHHS to attend the annual MIECHV grantee conference.

2.10.4.5.2. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to research and
identify methods to increase utilization of postpartum visits by home visiting
families.

3. Staffing

The Contractor shall:

3.1. Provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified in this Contract and shall maintain a
level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions, requirements, roles,
and duties In a timely fashion to meet the scope of work

3.2. Ensure staffing structure Includes a contract administrator to administer all scopes of work
relative to this Contract, as weli as progress and finance reporting.

3.3. Ensure that across all funded positions, in addition to subject matter expertise, there is a
combined level of expertise, skills and ability to understand data; use data for planning and
evaluation; community engagement and collaboration; group facilitation skills; and IT skills in
order to function as a team, Ideally with complementary skill and abilities across these
foundationai areas of expertise and abilities.

3.4. Ensure that personnel are available during normal business hours, at a minimum Monday
through Friday. 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M.
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4. Outcomes I Perfomiance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shaij ensure that following performance outcomes and measures are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

4.2. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

4.2.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking

4.2.1.1. At least 85% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.2.2.1. At least 85% of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.2.3.1. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly Home Visiting Coordinating Council
meetings as either "excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs

4.3.1. Food Protection Section n

4.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the DHHS as either "excellent"
or "very good"

4.3.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.3.2.1. The training modujes are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.

4.3.2.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.3.3.1. The training module is rated as either "excellent" or "yery good" by DPHS.
4.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or

"very good" in an evaluation survey.
4.3.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.3.4.1. Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.

4.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellenf or
"very good" In an evaluation survey.
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4.4. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

4.4.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.4.1.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.1.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellenf or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2. Immunization Program

4.4.2.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.4.3.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation sun/ey.

4.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4. infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Senrices Section

4.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation sunrey.

4.4.4.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.4.5.1. At least 85% of leaming exchange participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or Very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.5. Provide Technical Assistance

4.5.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.

4.5.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.5.2.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.

4.6. Develop and produce educational materials

4.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.6.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.6.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.
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4.6.3. Immunization Program

4.6.3.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

4.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

4.7.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.7.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.7.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.7.3.1. Implementation of at least 90% of the current MIECHV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

4.8. Update Strategic Plans

4.8.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

.  4.8.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic
State Plan.

4.9. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

4.9.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.9.1.1. Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.

4.9.2. Infectious Disease Preverition, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.9.2.1. target: 95% of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supplies distributed to sites
are logged on the appropriate distribution log within one week of distribution.

4.9.2.2. Numerator- The number of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supply
distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the

. distribution date.

4.9.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.9.3.1. Subcontract for increase in postpartum visit project executed as directed by
DPHS.

4.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.9.4.1. Subcontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by DPHS/ESU.

4.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collaboration system executed as directed by DPHS.

4.9.4.3. Subcontracts with up to four Individuals executed as directed by DPHS.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A

4.10. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for
any performance measure that was not achieved.

5. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor shall:

5.1. Be responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws'. Special attention is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

5.2. Publications funded under this contract shall be responsible to adhere to the requirements in
Exhibit C Special Provisions, Paragraph 14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure equal access to quality health services and provide culturally
and linguistically appropriate services arid adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special
Provisions, Paragraph 16. Limited English Proficiency (LEP).

5.4. DHHS recognizes that Contractors may choose to use subcontractors with specific expertise
to perform certain services or functions for efficiency or convenience. However, the
Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s) for any
services required by this Contract that are provided. In whole or In part, by a subcontracted
agency or provider, and adhere to the requirements In Exhibit C Special Provisions,
Paragraph 19. Subcontractors of this Contract.

5.5. Adhere to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act requirements to maintain
the confidentiality of protected health Information provided by individuals who contact the
poison control center in Exhibit I Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate

5.6. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance Indicators are annually achieved and
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Btfilbit A. Contractor initial
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP.2018-OPHS^3.PU8LIC Page 10 of 10 Date i^n_J



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The State shall pay the contractor! an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract Is funded with Funds from:

1.1.1. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #} 93.069, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # U90TP000535,

1.1.2. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.889, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # U90TP000535,

1.1 ;3. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2013 Cooperative Agreement Application for the
,  Immunization, Vaccinet for Children, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.539,
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 23IP000757,

1.1.4. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program -
Network Implementation, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.070, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN) # NU38EH000947.

1.1.5. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, NH - Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.753, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#NUE1EH001271.

1.1.6. US Environmental Protection Agency. Lead 404(g) Training and Certification, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA#) 66.7.07, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)# 99151215.

1.1.7. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.870, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#X10MC29490.

1.1.8. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration.
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.994, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN) # BO4MC30627. ^

1.1.9. Other Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates, Food Protection Fees and Radiological Health Fees

1.1.10. General Funds.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with funding
requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follOMrs;

\
2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of

this agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth working day of
t  each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior

month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and retumed to the Department in order to
initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP.201fl-DPHS-03-PUBLIC

Exhibit B
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit B
2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,

subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. Contractors will
keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final Invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37.
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbillinQ@dhhs.nh.Qov. or Invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit
A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSI Research & Tratnlr>g Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Ir^titute
RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBLIC

Exhibit B
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

!  JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Services - Public Health Emergency
Budget RequeM for: Preparedness

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

^ ^^ ■.Dlrect^^^i;v-: ■ inmrodmr ■■ -Tdtal^p^ifUlocatlidnl^^
1. r otal Salary/Wages %  4d.flSg.5i $ $ 49,886.51 The federally aooroved
2. Employee Benefits $  16,956.87 i 18,956.87 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $ $ $  . Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  1,546.48 $

(NICRA)for JSI
$  1 546 48 and Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab. Pharmacy. Medical, Office) $  2.700.88 $

'"Itislilule, Inc. includes

$  2 700 88 benefits (38% of
6. Travel $  1,000.00 $ $  1,000.00 otbor
7. Occupancy $  4,988.65 t i  A ooQ ec Qonoral opcraung costs
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,'
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  3,741.48 $

activities including
occupancy, equipment,

$  3,741.48 General office suDDlies
9. Software t i  • telecommunications and
10. Marketing/Communications $ $ $  - other current expenses.
11. Staff Education and Training $  997.73 $ $  997.73 information systems.
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ $  - accountirig and payroll.
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ ^  . numan resources ana

Web-based Collaboration System $  13,000.00 $ $ 13 000.00 staff development, ana
Preparedness Conference Support $  10,000.00 $ $ 10 000 00 yaneral administrative

Information Systems $ $ 2,045.35 $  2 045 35 cusls. Tie
• HR t $ 2,045.35 |-j—2 045 35

Gen Admin % $ 2,045.35 i  2,045.35
Payroii and Accountinq $ $ 2,045.35 S  2,045.35 '1^, '

$ $
TOTAL $ 106,818.80 1 $ 8,181.40 1 $115,000.00 Lnri vprption

Contractor Initialsitial5:_^7
Page 1 of 1 Datei b 1 In



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JS) Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Budget Request for:

Public Health Professional Support
Services - Public Health Emergency

Preparedness

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

Direct • •

Incremental

Indlrect^f^
• V

AUocadon'Method for,

1. Total Salary/Wages S 49,687.59 S . S 49.867.59 The federally approved
2. Employee benefits $ 18.957.28 $ $ 18,957.28 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants , $ - $ - Rate Agreement
4. Equipmeht: (includes Rentals, Repair
& Maintenance, Purchase & $ 1,546.52 $ $ 1,546.52

■*(NlCRA)forJSI
Research and Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, $ 2,698.97 $ S 2,698.97

'Institute, Inc. Includes
fringe benefits (38% of

6. Travel $ 1,000.00 $ t 1,000.00
• salafy) and other

7. Occupancy $ 4,988.76 $ $ 4,988.76
6. Current Expenses.(includes
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions, Audit
& Legal, Insurance,. Board Expenses) $ 3,741.57 $ $ 3,741.57

activities including
occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies,

9. Software $ - $ $ telecommunications and
10. Marl^eting/Communications i - $ 4 - other current expenses,
11. Staff Education and Training t 997.75 $ 4 997.75 information systems.
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ 4 - accounting and payroll,
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

- $ 4 - human resources and
Web-based Collaboration System $ 13,000.00 $ $ 13,000.00 staff development, and

Preparedness Conference Support $ 10,000.00. $ - $ 10,000.00 'general administrative
informaiion Systems $ - $ 2,045.39 4 2.045.39 -support costs. The

HR $ $ 2,045.39 4 2,045.39 ■approved basis for
•appiicatJon of the
NICRA is on
salary/wages only
,including holiday, sick
land vacfllioa

Gen Admin $ $ 2,045.39 4 2,045.39
Payn)H and Accounting $ $ 2,045.39 4 2,045.39

$ - ? . $ .

TOTAL $ 106,818.44 $ 8,181.56 $115,000.00

Page 1 of 1

Contractor initials:

D=i=:jUz3ajj:



New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human Services

JS) Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for: Services - Hospital Preparedness
(NameofRf=P)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

■ssMllkiniiiii;:
1. Total Salary/Wages

tncremeri(at(

1  4,102.75 $ 4.102.752. Employee Benefits
r Consu tants
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) 334.70
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for <
Education. Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) 639.83
6. Travel
7. Occupancy .
8. Cun'ent Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses)

250.00
1,079.67

809.76
9. Software
10. Mafketing/Communications
11. ^taf( Education and training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

216.93

T
Medical Reserve Corps Mini-Grants

Information Systems
J 50,000.00
1 ^

HR
Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting

$
TOTAL

indirect As A Percent of Direct
1  68,229.34

T
$ 442.67
$ 442.67
$ 442.67
$ 442.67

11,770.66
TW

1

$  334.70

$  639.83
$  250.00
$  1,079.67

$  809.76

The federally approved
Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement
(NICRA)forJSI
Research and Training
Institute, Inc. includes
fringe beneRts (38% of
salary) and other
general operating costs
to support project
activities Including
occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies.

$  telecommunications and
$  - other current expenses,
%  215.93 information systems,
I  Z accounting and payroll,
^  human resources and
i 50 000.00 development, and

general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the
NICRA Is on

^^^^__^»alary/wages only
% 70,000.00 |including holiday, sick

442.67
442.67

1  442.67
1  442.67
$

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 1 Dale:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • Hospital Preparedness

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

iiSiKsaifi: f
1. Total Salary/Wages $  10,796.70 $ $ 10.796.70 The federally
2. Employee Benefits S  4,102.75 $ $ 4.162.7s approved Negotiated
3. Consu tants $ $ $  . indirect Cost Rate

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  334.70 $

Agreement (NICKA)

for JSI Research and

$  334 70 Institute, Inc.

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  639.83 $

" ~ - includes fringe

benefits (38% of

6. Travel $  250.00
7. Occupancy $  1,079.67 $ $  1,079.67 pmjnrf Arttv<liR«

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) S  809.76 $

including occupancy,
equipment, general
office supplies,

$  809.76 telecommunications
9. Software i $ ^  . ana other current
10. Marketing/Communications $ % 1  . expenses. Information
11. btan Education and Training $  215.93 $ 9  215 93 '^y^tuins, uccuuritiiiy
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ ^ — _ and payroll, human
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ resources and staff

Medical Reserve Corps Mini-Grants $  50,000.00 $ $ 50,000.00 ̂ ZmirmlnhtntiVn
Information Systems $ $  442.67

HR $ $  442.67 ^'t A AO CT suppon cosis. 1 no

Gen Admin $ $  442.67
Payroll and Accountinp $ $  442.67 $  442.67 Nir.RAkftn

$ $ ^  aalarv/waaes onlw
TOTAL S  68,229.34 $  1,770.66 1 $ 70,000.06 "jinduding holiday, sick

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

(

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services -Immunization

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

1. I otal Salary/Wages $30,219.78 $ $ 30,219.78 The federally approved
2. Employee Benems $ 11.483.52 $ $ i 1,483.52 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $ $ 6  - Rate Agreement (NICRA
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  936.82 $

tor J!5! Research and

$  936 82 1''^ining Institute, inc.
5. Supplies: (Includes supplies for Education,
Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  1,510.99 $

' ~ includes fringe benefits

$• 1 510 99 (38% of salary) and other
6. Travel $ $

'general operating costs

7. Occupancy $ 3,021.98 $ t  o no-Qfl

6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $ 2,266.47 $

occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies,

$  2,266.47 telecommunications and
d. Software $ $ $  - other current expenses.
10. Marketing/Communications $ 5,000.00 $ $  5,000.00 infonnation systems,
11. Staff Education and Training S  604.40 $ t  604.40 accounting and payroli,
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ $  . . human resources and
13. other (specific details mandatory): 2019
NHIP Conference .$ 5,000.00 $

sian aevetopment, and

$  5 000 00 administrative
Information Systems $ $1,239.01 $  1 239 01 suppoit V/Ubis. Tiio

HR $ $ 1,239.01 'S ~ 1 239 01
Gen Admin $ $ 1,239.01

application of Uie NICRA

Payroll and Accountinp $ $ 1,239.01
-*—-'ooorM salary/wages only

r $ ■$ ■  ■ mciuding no/Jday, sick

TOTAL 8 60,043.96 | $ 4,966.64 $ 65,000.00

Contractor initials;

Page 1 of 1 Date: 5)2^)11



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for: Services - Immunization
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

IrKtemental:

Indlrecd^^ Alloc8tlon;Method ̂

1. Total Saiary/Wagei"
Employee ̂ nefits

3. Consultants

T557TSW i~55]mr
$ 11,483.52

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) $  936.82

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy. Medical, Office)

T

7.

ravel

Occupancy"

$  1.510.99

8. Current ̂ cpenses (includes telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses)

$ 3,021.98

9. Softwai^
10. Marketing/Communications"

$ 2,266.47

if. Staff Education and Training
12

$ 5,000.00

. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (speciHc details mandatory): 2019
NHIP Conference

^  604.40

T

$ 5,000.00
Information Systems

HR

Gen Admin

Payroll and Account

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

T55m55"

$
$ 1,239.01
$ 1,239.01
$1,239.01
$1,239.01

T
I4,d$6.64

T 11,483.52
T

936.62

$  1,510.99

$  3,021.98

2,266.47

T
$  5,000.00

T 604:40

5,000.00
1  1,239.01
1  1,239.01
1  1,239.01
1  1,239.01
T
1—nrnw

Ther-fedarally approved
Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement
•(NICRA)for JSI
Research and Training
Institute, Inc. includes

fringe benefits (38% of
salary) and other general
operating costs to
. support project activities
including occupancy,
equipment, general
office supplies,
telecommunications and

other current expenses,
information systems,
accounting and payroll,
human resources and

staff development, and
general administrative

support costs. The
approved basis for

application of the NICRA
Is on salary/wages only
.including holiday, sick
land vacation.

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 1 Date: 0 2^ 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
✓

JSi Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for Services > Pharmaceutical Rebates

I^Wame of RFP)

Budget Period; SPY 2018

1. Total Salary/Wages $ $  37,607.84 The federally
hmpioyee Henetlts $ 14,290.98 t  - S  14,290.98 approved Negotiated

3. Consultants $ $ $  . Indirect Cost Rate
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  1,165.84 $

Agreement (NICRA)

$  1,165.84 for JSI Research
5. Supplies; (includes supplies for Education,
Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  1,880.39 $

and Training

$  1,880.39
6. travel $  1,500.00 $ $  1,500.00
f. occupancy $  3,760.78 $ * ■ "ttHTTtq" (38% Of
0. current txpenses (includes Telephone,

Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  2.820.60 $

general operating
costs to support

$  2,820.60 oroiect activities
9. Software $ $ $  - including occuoancv.
iu. Marketing/Communications $ $ $  - equipment, general
11. btan hducation and irainino $  752.16 $  752.16 ofTtce supplies,
\2, * i $ $  . telecommunications
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $  . ana otner current

HPG Member Reimbursement $  2,000.00 $ t  2,000.00 expenses.
Conference Support $  5,000.00 $ i  5 000.00 '"formation systems.
Prevention Supplies $  12.000.00 $ $  12 0(30 00 ecuiUMliny and

DigitalStorvteliinQ 5 25.000.00 "t 25 000 00'
Meeting Expenses $  6,000.00 S  - i  .6.000.00

Website Maintenance $  500.00 $ i  500.00
Subscription Services $  1,500.00 $  1,500.00

oiner professional Support Services $ 10.000.00 j  10,000.00 r,':.!::':!'::
Special Proiects 5  IWiVs

Information Systems $ S 1,541.92
HR 5 $ 1,541.92 $  1,541.92. NICRA is on

Gen Admin $ $ 1,541.92
Payroll and Accountincj $ $ 1.541.92 $  1,M1.92 induding holiday.

% $ $  - sick and vacation.
TOTAL

'  ̂ bt/'
5  133,800.00 1

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • Pharmaceutical Rebates

^A/ame ofRFP) '

Budget Period: SPY 2019

■. ■ lndlrert/:;v;;;;^;<^Tptali:.vv;>-1locatlon:liloth<rtrfo

1. Total SalaryAiVages $ 39,647.24 $ $  38,647.24 The federally
2. Employee Beneilts S  14,665.95 5 $  14,685.95 approved Negotiated
3. Consultants $  - $  - Indirect Cost Rate
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  1,198.06 $

Agreement (NICRA)

$  1 198.06 JSI Research and
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab. Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  1,932.36 $

■ ■ Training Institute,
«  1 Q-ao '3fi includes fringe

6. Travel , $  1,500.00 $  - i  1.500.00
7. Occupancy $  3,864.72 t  - salary) and other

a. Current Expenses (Includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  2,898.54 $

costs to support
project activities

$  2,898.54 Indudlng occupancy,
9. Software i i $  - equipment, general
iu. Marketing/Communications t  ■ - i $  - ofTice supplies,
11. Stan Loucation and 1 raining $  772.94 4 $  772.94 telecommunications
12. Subcontracts/Agreements 4 $  . and other current
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $  . expenses.

HPG Member Reimbursements $  2.000.00 4 $  2,000.00 'nformaiion systems,
Conference Support $  5,000.00 4  - 4  5,000.00 aw^unting and
Prevention Supplies $  12,000.00 4  - $  12 000 00 P^y^ll-hurhfld

Meeting Expenses $  6,000.00 4  - 4  ebOOW and Starr
Website Maintenance $  500.00 4 i  ' ■ 500.00 """
Subscription Services $  1,500.00 $ 5  1.500.00

Other Professional Support Services $ 10,000.00 $  10.000.00 !. The
Special Proiects $  5.154.71

Information Systems 5 S 1,536.37
HR $ $ 1,536.37 S  1,536.37 NICRA is on

Gen Admin i S 1,536.37
Payroll and Accountinp $ $ 1,536.37

$  - 1 6 $  ■ sick and vacation.
TOTAL S 107,654.52 \ % 6,145.48 I % H3,6b0.bd |

Contractor InitialsItials

Page 1 of 1

;
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • Food

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

Dlreci-;;;v; :..lndlroct'^;.i; Tpial^fj^r'^AIIocattdn.Method,^^
Incremeritid^f^v-'Fbtedgl?^

1. Total Salary/Wages $ s.srr.oa $ $  9.577.03 The federally approved
2. Employee Benefits $ 3.639.28 $ $  3.639.28 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $ $ $  . Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  296.89 $

(NICRA) for JSI

$  ' 296 89 f^osearch and Training
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) 5  478.85 $

Inslilulu, Inc. includes

S  d7ft fls ^'"9® benefits (38% of
6. Travel $ $
7. Occupancy $  957.71 $
8. Current Expenses (Includes Telephone,
postage, Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  718.29 $

including occupancy,
equipment, general office

$  718.29 suDpiies.
9. Software $ $ $  • telecommunications and
10. MarketlngyCommunications $ $  - other current expenses,
11. Staff Education and Training $  191.54 $ $  191.54 information systems.
^2. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ $  . accounting and payroll.
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ i  - $  . human resources and

Training Development $  569.77 $  569.77 development, and
Information Systems t $  392.66 i  392 66~ administrative

HR $  392.66 $  392
t  Gen Admin $ $  392.66 QQo gfi apptuved basis fot

Payroll and Accountinq $ $  392.66 $  592 66" of the NICRA
$

— ■ - — -is on salaryfwages only

TOTAL

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name; d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for Services - Food

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

bidireptc
Fbced •;

AllocalfoniMetiipd

1. Total Salary/Wages S - $ The federally approved
2. Employee Benefits $ 3,340.48 $ 3,340.48 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants t $ .$ - Rate Agreement (NICRA)

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  272.52 $. $ 272.52

for JSI Research and

Training Institute. Inc.

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  439.55 $ $ 439.55

'includes fringe benefits
(38% of salary) and other

6. Travel $ $ -

-support project activities
.including occupancy,

equipmenL general office
supplies,
telecommunications and

7. Occupancy $  879.10 $ $ 879.10
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  659.34 $ $ 659.34

9. Software t $ - other current expenses.
10. Marketing/Communications $  . $ t - information systems,'
11. Staff Education and Training $  175.82 $ $ 175.82 accounting and payroll,
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ i - human resources and

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $ .
staff development, and

Training Development $ 2,000.00 $ - t 2,000.00'general administretive

Information Systems $ i 360.43 360.43'support costs. The

HR $ $ 360.43 $ 360.43
'approved basis for
•application of the NICRA

Is on salary/wages only
including holiday, sick
•and vacation.

Gen Admin $ $ 360.43 $ 360.43
Payroll and Accountinq $ 360.43 $ 360.43

$ $ - -

TOTAL $1,441.72 %
Indirect As A Percent or Direct 8.7%
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services - EPHT

f/\fame of RFPJ

Budget Period: SPY 2016

Unoittdm
1. Total SalarvA/Vages $ 6.433.30 $ $  6,483.30 The federally approved
2. Employee Benefits $ 2.463.62 $ $  2.463.62 Negotiated Indirect
3. Consultants t $ $  - Cost Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  200.98 $

(NICRA)forJSI

$  200.98 R®search and Training
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Phaimacy, Medical, OfHce) $  324.16 $

~ ' Institute, Irm. includes

S  324 16 benefits (38% Of
6. Travel $  450.00 $ $  450 bd othof
7. Occupancy $  648.32 $
8. Current Expenses (Includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  486.24 $

activities Including
occupancy, equipment,

$  486.24 aeneral office supplies,
9. Soft^re $ $ $  - telecommunications
10. Marketing/Communications $ $ $  - and other current
11. Staff Education and Training $  129.66 $ S  129.66 expenses, information
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 30.000.00 $ $  30,000.00 systems, accounting
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $  . and payroll, human
Meeting Expenses $ 4.600.00 $ $  4,600.00 resources and staff
Materials Development $ 3.150.48 t i  3 150 48 Tlaveiopment. and

Information Systems t $  265.81 $  265*81 y®"®'®'^^rrilnistrative
HR S-. $  265.81 265 81 costs. The

Gen Admin $ $  265.81 ' f " 'ogg Q.." approved basis for

Payroll and Accountinp $ $  265.61 t  occ Qt application of the

$ $ ^  _ salary/wages only
TOTAL S 72,200.00 »  50,406.99

Contractor Initialsitials:

Page 1 of 1 Dale: 'ib jl ll



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for; Services • EPHT

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2019

1  Total Salary/Wages

Indlr

$ 3,651.63

for
.vs.?;-
•'Vr.k

2. Employee Benefit's
3. Consultants T

Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) 297.90

5. Supplies: (Includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
6. Yravel

$  480.48

7. Occupancy
8

$

. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) .

1  960.96

5! Software
$  720.72

10. Marketing/Communications'
1 'l

T

. Sta^ Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

192.16

13. Other (specific details mandatory):
M

$ 30.000.00

T
aterials Production $ 2.510.64

TInformation Systems
HR $

Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting

T
$ 393.99
$ 393.99

$  393.99

$  393.99

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

T
T

297.90

480.48

960.96

i 4^,4^4.04 I i ̂.57g.9fe I f ^0.066.o6 |

The federally approved
3.651.63 Negotiated Indirect Cost

Rate Agreement
(NICRA) for JSl
Research and Training
Institute. Inc. includes

fringe benefits (38% of
salary) and other
general operating costs
to support project
activities including
occupancy, equipment,

$  720.72 general office supplies,
$  - telecommunications and
$  - other current expenses,
$  192.16 Information systems,
$  30.000.00 accounting and payroll.
^  ! human resources and
J  2 510.64 development, and

'  general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the NICRA

is on salary/wages only
including holiday, sick
and vacafion.

393.99

393.99

393.99

393.99

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
BidderfContractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • COG Lead

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

1. 1 otal Salary/Wages $11,208.70 $ S  11,208.79 The federally aooroved
2. Employee Benefits $ 4,259.34 $ $  4.259.34 Negotiated Indirect Cost
li. Consultants $ $  - $  . Rate Agreement
4. Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  347.47 $

(NICRA)forJSI

$  347.47 Research and Training
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical. Office) $  560.44 $

" Institute, inc. includes

S  *iRn AA benefits (38% of
6. Travel $ $
f. Occupancy $  1.120.88 $

-s 1 iof\ QQ 9°"®^* operating costs

tt. current Expenses (includes Telephone,

Postage, Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
insurance, Board Expenses) $  840.66 $

activities including
occupancy, equipment,

$  640.66 General office suoolies
9. Software $ $ $  - telecommunications
10. Marketing/Communications $ i  •- 4  - arKi other current
n. start Education and Training $  224.18 4  - $  224.18 expenses, Infomratlon
12. subcontracts/Agreements $ $ $  - systems, accounting
Id. other (specific details mandatory): $ 4  - $  . and payroll, human

Educational Outreach $ 15.600.00 4 $  15,600.00 '"ssoufces and staff
development, and

Information Systems $ $ 459.58 $  459 56 ®(lnfiinlstrative
HR 5 $  459.56 4  459 56 costs. The

Gen Admin ' $ 459.56 "S"' ■jiTn eo* approved basis for9  459.56
Payroll and Accountino $ $ 459.56 T ' " gft gg application of the9  459.56 k„oo* :

$ $ $  salary/wages only
TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Dlmet
$34,161.76 $ 1,838.24 1 9 36,000.00 jlnduding holiday, sick |

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date: Oiiill



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for; Services - CDC Lead
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

'in^if^ental
.^h^direct y t iyf:^Tota^^K%^
SiFbtbd-;.

i. Total SaiaryM/ages S 11,208.79 $ $  11.208.79 The federally
2. Employee Benefits $ 4,259.34 $ $  4,259.M approved Negotiated
3. Consu tants $ $ $  - Indirect Cost Rate
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals,
Repair & Maintenance, Purchase &

Depreciation) $  347.47 $

Agreement (NICRA)

for JSI Research and

$  347 47 Institute, Inc.
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab, Pharmacy, Medical,
Office) $  560.44 $

■  • ~ includes fflnye
benefits (38% of

c  cenAA salary) and other
6. Travel 4
7. Occupancy $  1,120.88 $ $  1,120.88 pmjent nrtivttiA<«
8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions,
Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  840.66 $

including occupancy,
equipment, general
office supplies,

$  840.66 telecommunications
9. Software t $ 3  . ano^oiner current
10. Marketing/Communications $ 4 5  ■ r ~ "ejqienses, Information
11. Staff Education and Training $  224.18 4  - 4  224 18 systems, accounting
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 4  - ■  and payroll, human

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ 4
resources and staff

Educational Outreach $15,600.00 $ i ' 15 600 00 development, and
Information Systems

HR $ $  459.56
Gen Admin $  459.56

Payroll and AccountInQ 4 $  459.56 $  459.56 Nir.RAi<inri

$ $ 459.56 $  459.56 ealary/wagea only
TOTAL $34,161.76 $ 1,838.24 4  36,000.00 huliday. sick

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services - EPA Lead

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 23,461. W $ $  23,461.54 The federally approved
2. bmployee Benefits $ 8,915.38 S  8,bl5.36 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $ $ $  - Rate Agreement
4. Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  727.31 $

(NICRA) for JSI

$  727 31 and Training
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $ 1,173.08 $

InsUlute, Inc. includes

«  1170 no fringe benefits (38% of
6. Travel $
7. Occupancy $ 2,346.15 $
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance, Board Expenses) $ 1,759.62 $

activities including
occupancy, equipment.

$  1,759.62 General office supplies.
9. Software i $ $  - telecommunications and
10. Marketing/Communications i t $  • other current expenses,
11. Staff Education and Training $  469.23 - $  469.23 information systems.
1^. Subcontracts/Agreements S $  . accounting and payroll.
13. Other (specific details mandatory); $ $ $  . human resources and

NELCC Meetings $ 6.750.01 ^  6 750.01 development, and
Educational Outreach $  550.00 $ i  550'00" administrative
Information Systems $ $ 961.92 3  961~92

HR $ $ 961.92
Gen Admin $ $ 961.92

I" " ' g'g|Q-2-application of the NICRA
Payroll and Accountino $ $ 961.92

-X IS on salaryfwaget

$ $ > ' ■ only including holiday.

TOTAL $46,-152.3^ $3,847.68 $  50,000.00 1

Contractor Initials;

Page 1 of 1 Date: Z^)/7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support Services
Budget Request for:• EPA Lead

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY2019

■rr >'

Indlreclv:;;'.^
.Flxod^i^k'?

, ■Totalie.;,-^-" uioc^ori|tMet^^

1. Total SalaryAA/ages $ 22,225.27 $ 5 22.225.27 The federally approved
2. Employee Benefits 8,445.60 $ 8.445.60 Negotiated Indirect
3. Consultants i -

$ $ - Cost Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, "(NICRA)for JSI
Repair & Maintenance, Purchase & Research and Training
Depreciation) $ 688.98 $ . $ 688.98 Institute, Inc. includes

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for "fringe benefits (38% of

Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, salary) and other

Office) $ 1,111.26 $ . $ 1,111.26
general operating costs

6. Travel i - $ -

7. Occupancy 2,222.53 $ 2.222.53 occupancy, equipment,8. Current E)^enses (includes general office supplies,
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions, telecommunicaUons
Audit & Legal, Insurance. Board and other current
Expenses) $ 1,666.89 S - $ 1,666.89 expenses, information
9. Software - % 4 -

systems, accounting
10. Marketing/Communications - $ $ .

'and payroll, human
11. Staff Education and Training $ 444.51 $ 4 ■444.51 'resources and staff

12. Subcontracts/Agreements - $ 4 -

'development, and
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - t 4 -

NELCC Meatinqs $ 9,000.00 $ 4 9,000.00
Educational Outreach 550.00 - 4 550.00
Information Systems $ - 911.24 4 911.24

HR $ 911.24 4 911.24
Gen Admin $ 911.24 4 911.24

Payroli and Accountinq $ 911.24 4 911.24 and vacation.
$ - - 4 -

TOTAL t 46,355.04 , % 3,644.96 , 6 50,000.00
7:9%

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Regional Public Health Network Services -
Budget Request for; Home Visiting

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Perlod:'SFY 2018

■■Mm
1. Total Salary/Wac lesfy/WaQ< I 5i569.S5

V: Uk»c9tlbh.M«ttiodior

2. Employee Benems
-  ̂ ^ Ita3. Consuitants
4. Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase ,& Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
6. Travel
7. Occupancy
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses)
9. Software
10. Marketina/Communlcatlons
1. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):
-earning Exchanges
Scholarships
HFA Training & Supports

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting
TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

$ 34,657.25

$  2,827.30

$  4,560.16
$  .5,000.00
$  9,120.33

$  6,840.24
TT
$-
$  1.824.07
$  5,000.00

1  5,000.00
$  6,000.00
$ 35,000.00

$ 207,032.66

T

$.

$-
T
T-

$.

J7

r—r

$ 3.739.33
$ 3,739.33
$ 3,739.33

$ 3.739.33
$ 14,957.32

2,827.30

4,560.16
$  5,000.00
$  9.120.33

$  6,840.24

The federally approved
34,657.25 Negotiated Indirect Cost

Rate Agreement
(NICRA)forJSI
Research and Training
Institute, Inc. includes
fringe beneflts'^(38% of
salary) and other
general operating costs
to support project
activities including
occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies,
telecommunications

-  and other current

$  1.624.07 expenses. Information
5  5,000.00 systems, accounting
J  I and payroll, human
I  5,000.00 resources and staff
I  6.000.00 «J®velopment, and

general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the
NICRAIson

$  3,739.33 salary/wages only
$ 221,990.00 )lnclud}ng holiday, sick

1
T

?  35,000.00
1  3,739.33
I  3,739.33
I  3.739.33

7:2%

Page 1 of 1

Contractor initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name; d/b/a Community Health Institute

Regional Public Health Network Services -
Budget Request for: Home Visiting

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

••iiwnwrrtal
1. Total SajarvA/Vages $ 91,203.33 $- $  91,203.33 The federally approved
2. Employee Benefits $ 34,657.25 $. $  34,657.25 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $- $- $  . Rate Agreement (NICRA)
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals,
Repair & Maintenance, Purchase & $  2,827.30 $-

tor Jt>i Research and

$  2 827.30 Training Institute, Inc.
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, $  4,560.16 $-

' includes fringe benefits

$  4 560 16 other
6. Travel $  5.000.00 $. S" 5 000 00 opofating w^sts to
7. Occupancy $  9,120.33 $. -X oionn support project activities

8. Current Expenses (includes

Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions,
Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board $  6,840.24 $-

equipment^ general office
supplies,

$  6,840.24 telecommunications and
9. Software $. $- $  - other current expenses.
10. Marketing/Communications $- $- $  - information systems,
11. Staff Education and Training $  1,824.07 i- $  1,8i24.07 accounting end peyroll,
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $  5,000.00 4- $  5,000.00 human resources and staff
13. Other ispecific details mandatory): $- $- $  . development, and general
Learning Exchanges $  5,000.00 $- $  5,000.00 administrative support
Scholarships $  6,000.00 $■ I  6,000.00 approved
HFA Training & Supports $ 35,000.00 $- ^  35 boo 00 application of the

Information Systems $ 3,739.33 $  3,739 33
MR $ 3,739.33 i  3,739.33

Gen Admin $ 3,739.33 $  3 739 33 tioliday, sick and
Payroii and Accounting $ 3,739.33 $  3,739.33
TOTAL $207,032.68 $14,957.32 1 $ 221,990.00 |

ndirect As A Percent of Direct 7.2%

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 1 Date: 23 17



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSi Research & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc., d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Network

Budget Request for; Services - Maternal & Child Health
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2016

i
1 ■ Total Salary/Wager
r

I Ota baiarv;

incrwne^
vrrsr;

Employee Benefits
3. Consultants

4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab. Pharmacy, Medical, Office)
6. Travel

7. Occupancy
6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscnptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance,
Board Expenses)
9. Softw^
10. Marketing/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training"
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

$ 24,000.00

T
T

$
TOT^

Indirect As A Percent of Direct OM

T
$  24,000.00

T
T

^The federally approved
"Negotiated Indirect
"Cost Rate Agreement
"(NICRA)for JSI
Research and Training

"Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of

-salary) and other
-general operating
. costs to support

project activities
including occupancy,
equipment, general
office supplies,
telecommunications

'and other current
'expenses, Information
'systems, accounting
'and payroll, human
' resources and staff

'development, and
■general administrative
•support costs. The
• approved basis for
. application of the
NICRA is on
salary/wages only24,000.00 linrJnrtinn «!rtc

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 1 Date: 'j



New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services *

JSi Research & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc., d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Network

Budget Request for: Services • Maternal & Child Health
(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

;... ' -: ■ : 1. ̂ :lPjlroct::. -f ^;UI<K^itlorvMothodifot
'  •• | Incrarii'entall^

1. Total Salary/Wages 5 $  - $  - The federally approved
2. Employee Benefits i $  - $  ̂ . Negotiated Indirect
3. Consultants $ i  - $  . Cost Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depredation) $ $ .-

(N[CRA)forJSI
5  . Research and Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab. Pharmacy, Medical. Office) $ $  -

liislltule, Inc. includes
j  _ fringe benefits (38% of

6. Travel $  .
7. Occupancy $ i  -
6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance,
Board Expenses) $ $  -

project activities
Including occupancy,

$  - eauioment. General
9. Software $ $  - $  - office supplies,
10. Marketing/Communications $ i  . $  - telecommunications
11. Staff Education and Training i  - $  . and other current
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 24,000.00 i  - $  24,000.0(r expenses, information
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $  - 5  . systems, accounting

$ i  - J  . and payroll, human

$ 4  - ^  _ resources and staff

$ 4  - ^  ■ daveiupiiient, and

$ $  . geneial administrative

i $  -
$ 4  -

$ $  -
^  _ NICRAison

TOTAL $ 24,000.00 $  -

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 1 Da.e:.5/2iiil



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSl Research & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc., d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Network

Budget Request for: Services - Radiological Emergency
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

;y Direct,
inicrwfneWtiil^sFb^

1. Total SalaryA/Vages $  494.51 $  ■ $  494.51..,.Th6 federally approved
2. Employee Benefits $  187.91 $  - $  187.91 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $ $  - $  . Kate Agreement (NICRA)

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  15.33 $  -

tor Jbi Kesearch and

$  15 33 Training Institute, Inc.
5. Supplies: (Includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  24.73 $  - ■

includes fringe beneRts

$  24 73 salary) and other
6;-'''Travel $ $  -
7. Occupancy $  49.45 $  .

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, ̂
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  37.08 $  -

equipment, general office
supplies,

$  37.08 telecommunications and
9. Software $ $  - $  • other current expenses.
10. Marketing/Communications $ $  - $  - information systems.
11. Staff Education and Training $  9.89 $  - $  9.89 accounting and payroll.
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $  - $  - human resources and staff

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $  - $  . aevelopment, and general

Radiological Emergencies Subcontracts $ 8,100.00 $  - ■■ $  8,100.00 fidminlstratjve support
$ $  -

^  costs. The approved
Information Systems $ 20.28 $  20 2fl application of the

HR t $20.28 i  20.28
Gen Admin $ $ 20.28 $  20 28 only

Payroll and Accounting $ $ 20.28

$ $  -
$ $  - $  , .

TOTAL $ 8,918.90 $81.10 1 $ 9,000.00 1

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initialsitials:

Date:



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name: inc., d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Network
Budget Request for: Services • Radiological Emergency

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

1. Total Salary/Wages

■ :Dlr^:,~
Ihcramenb^
T-W5T

Indl

.-^-FTxi
Xllocatlon'Method for

2. Employee Benefit's
3. Consultants

187.91

Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab, Pharmacy. Medical, Office)

$  15.33

6. Travel

7. Occupancy
8

24.73

. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses)

T  49!45

9. Software

37.08

10. Marketing/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

9.89

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

Radiological Emergencies Subcontracts

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting

TOTAL

$
$ 8,100.00

T
% 8,918.90

$  -

T
$ 20.28

$ 20.28
$ 20.28
S 20.28

$
T

187.91

15.33

24.73

49.45

37.08

$

T

T
$81.10 T

0.9%

The federally approved
Negotiated Indirect

' Cost Rate Agreement
(NICRA) for JSI
Research and Training
Institute, Inc. includes

fringe benefits (38% of
salary) and other
general operating costs
to support project
acUvlttes including
occupancy, equipment
general office supplies,
telecommunications

and other current

expenses, information
systems, accounting
and payroll, human
resources and staff

development, and
general administrative
support costs. The

approved basis for
application of the
NICRA is on

1  aataryfwages onfy
inrhiHif^g holiday, sick

9,000.00 land vacation.

9.89

20.28

20.28

20.28

20.28

$  8,100.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and '
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If It Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties

.  hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the dale on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period;
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommerKled that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Departrrient, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

ail costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: Ail materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any govemmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, cedifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to subrnit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://w>vw.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to.
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
1-12-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontrador's
peiiormance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and.orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines' and which contains the regulations governing the finandal
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time. ,

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as
follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, In whole or In part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, Including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or othenA^ise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other.account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,

30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early tennination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed Information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transltloned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controiled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against empioyees for violation of such
prohibition;

^ 1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workpiace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each empioyee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);.
1.4. Notifying the empioyee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actuai notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,-unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of,paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection v^th the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
\nc ri/b/A coTnmuAtTu

'^b^ln ^ ,
Date Name: J/iWfUanTitle: Ttik-cVor
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): '
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Prograrh under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor),

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have t>een paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an. employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sut>-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.'

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure. I (?e.SCafCh 0 <^^101 nft lOSh-Hi-fe,

ContractcrName:
.V f J

|n)n
Name: ¥Date

Title: p t
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibiiity Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the foilowing
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be s
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services" (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded ■
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineiigibiiity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may reiy upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary partcipant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or '

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in ali lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name

Name:

WcC

■JSi Uem'iCh anci TV^imr^A
inc., d/b/r^ CcnitnuAiKA

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foliowing
certification:

Contractor wiil comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may inciude:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federai funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

-the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obllgations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federai funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employhient Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federai financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
govemment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faitfi-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112^239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistieblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federai grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarment.

4^
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
ExhibK G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division wlthin.the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

liSi Qe':,eafCh Or'vd ̂ fd\n\nA
Contractor Name; lOC., <d/b|tX

Date Name:

Title: p
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New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-ChikJren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 1S, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

iJSI (?e.<iea.rch and InS-^tv+e,
Contractor Name: d/b|a Common'.M

Date Name:

Title:

CU/OHHS/110713
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45^ Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set"shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQorecation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

"Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

Exhibit I Contractor tnrtia
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement , 1^ o I -f
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. "Securltv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a'technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

P- Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infonnatlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business^

^014 Exhibit I Conlfactof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
<  disclosure was made;
0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with ail sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shali make available all of its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compiiance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractors business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3^2014 Exhibit I Contractor (nitia
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fororarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeaslble. for so long as Business

Exhibil I Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation{s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a- Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those tenms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c- Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhibit I Contractor Initiate
Health Insurance Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

e. Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

OSi -^TK6tinin(::A jnc-;
Department of Health Human Services In

Name of tl

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature bf i

lAAorns.
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

mtractor

Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

D\rech>r
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name; djblfA (.'DmnnUilltTj loihivt-c.

Narr

'Pi^ecvbr

Name:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: M \ 1 *1

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to ff2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO 1 YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU^HH3/110713
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